
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Sally Cole, Committee Manager 
Executive on (01432) 260249 or e-mail scole@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Cabinet 
 

 

Date: Thursday 20 October 2011 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Sally Cole, Committee Manager Executive 
Tel: (01432) 260249 
Email: scole@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s) 
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to decide 
first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will then have to 
decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 

  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.  
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.  Councillors 
will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation that they 
or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area.  If they do have a personal 
interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   

 

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What Councillors have 
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think 
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it.  If a Councillor 
has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is.  A Councillor who has declared a 
prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, but only in 
circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak.  In such 
circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting and on 
the same terms.  However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these circumstances must 
leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken. 
 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Cabinet 
  
Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor JG Jarvis 
   
  

Councillor AJM Blackshaw  
Councillor PM Morgan  
Councillor RJ Phillips  
Councillor PD Price  
Councillor DB Wilcox  
  

 
  

 
 

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  20 OCTOBER 2011 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive any apologies for absence.  
   
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
3. MINUTES   1 - 2  
   
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 

2011. 
 

   
4. YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN   3 - 24  
   
 The Youth Justice Plan is prepared on an annual basis on behalf of 

Herefordshire Council and Worcestershire County Council.  The basic plan 
preparation is undertaken by the Youth Offending Service according to the 
deadlines and guidance from the Youth Justice Board for England and 
Wales (YJB). 

 

   
5. NEW CHARTER 2011   25 - 40  
   
 To approve the New Charter 2011 between Herefordshire Council and Local 

Councils in the County. 
 

   
6. HEREFORDSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE   41 - 52  
   
 This paper describes the current governance for the Herefordshire Public 

Services (HPS) partnership and proposes revised arrangements for the 
future, to reflect the national changes to health commissioning and health 
and well being and the new Clinical Commissioning Group, Herefordshire 
Health-Care Commissioners (HHCC).  A similar paper is being presented to 
the NHS Herefordshire Board on 19 October and the HHCC Board on 25 
October 2011. 

 

   
7. INTEGRATED CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT   53 - 90  
   
 To provide Cabinet with an overview of performance against the Joint 

Corporate Plan 2011-14 for the first five months of 2011-12. 
 

 

   
8. LOCALITY ASSET REVIEW AND ACCOMMODATION PROGRAMME   91 - 96  
   
 To note progress made on locality asset reviews (including the Hereford 

Accommodation Programme) and to endorse the proposed master plan and 
work programme within each locality including the accommodation solution 
for Herefordshire Public Services (HPS) back office staff in Hereford as part 
of the Hereford City locality. 

 

   
9. ESTABLISHING THE EVIDENCE BASE FOR COMMISSIONING   97 - 100  
   
 To present the 2011 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and State of 

Herefordshire Reports, and provide an overview of the work being 
undertaken across HPS to develop an overall Integrated Needs 
Assessment. 

 

   
10. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 2011   101 - 120  
   



 

 

 To inform the Cabinet of key population health issues in Herefordshire and 
of the recommended strategies and actions to address these as set out in 
the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health – 2011. 

 

   
11. BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2011/12   121 - 140  
   
 To report the forecast financial position for both revenue and capital to 31 

August 2011 and provide an update on Directorates’ recovery plans IN 
PLACE to address projected overspends. 

 

   
12. REVIEW OF PARLIAMENTARY CONSTITUENCIES   141 - 146  
   
 To explain to the Cabinet the Boundary Commission for England’s 

proposals for new Parliamentary constituencies in Herefordshire and to ask 
if it wishes to make representations to Council on the Boundary 
Commission’s proposals as they affect the Herefordshire Parliamentary 
constituencies. 

 

   



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately 

every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the 
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with 
Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 

 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located at the 
southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken to 
ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the building 
following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Cabinet held at The Council 
Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford on Thursday 15 
September 2011 at 3.00 pm 
  

Present: Councillor JG Jarvis (Chairman) 
 

   
 Councillors: AJM Blackshaw, PM Morgan, PD Price and DB Wilcox 
 
  
In attendance: Councillors H Bramer, MAF Hubbard, JA Hyde, TM James, RI Matthews, 

NP Nenadich and GJ Powell 
  
  
119. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor RJ Phillips, Cabinet Member Enterprise 
and Culture. 
 

120. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 

121. MINUTES   
 
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2011 be approved as a 

correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

122. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK REVISED PREFERRED OPTION: 
CONSULTATION AND COMMUNITY POLL   
 
The Leader of the Council introduced the Local Development Framework report and 
emphasised that the report was for the consideration of the most appropriate way forward for 
the consultation process and the community poll, and was not about debating the Local 
Development Framework itself.  That would be discussed at the Council meeting considering 
the final Core Strategy.  He added that it was proposed that the consultation would be held 
between 26 September and 28 November 2011.   
 
The main points discussed by cabinet: 
 
• A relief road for the county was one of the biggest decisions for the Council and any 

decision needed to have the will of the majority of residents / businesses supporting, it 
was believed there was the support in the county. 

• Statistics presented at a recent seminar stated 79% of respondents wanted a relief road, 
with only 21% not wanting the road. 

• An extensive schedule of consultation meetings was proposed with City, market town 
and parish councils, the latter on a ward by ward basis.   

• A full and thorough consultation would be carried out using established consultation 
channels 

• Consultation with MPs and political group leaders had already taken place. 
• The Hearn report states that 14,400 additional homes were needed to maintain the 

current population of working age. . 

AGENDA ITEM 3

1



 

• The multi modal model report and the Amey report state that a relief road would be 
needed to address congestion in the city and support any additional homes. 

• The Parsons Brinkerhoff review states the eastern route is not an option for a relief 
road, leaving the western route as the only option. 

• The Highways Agency has stated it believed the county would become grid locked 
without a relief road. 

• The relief road was not a single item but part of an integrated transport plan with a 
park and ride system and about examining the infrastructure as a whole, including 
sustainable transport measures. 

• A variety of public and private sector organisation are to be invited to a stakeholder 
seminar. 

• It was stressed that the proposed poll was not asking residents to state which route 
was preferred, but on whether a relief road was wanted to the west of the city.  On 
that basis Cabinet agreed that a poll was not required as it was believed there was 
no choice over the route to be taken and that the majority residents were in support 
of a relief road. 
 

The Leader stated that he believed that as a result of the reports provided a community 
poll would not show good use of council tax money, as he felt there was no choice on 
which route to use.  Therefore, a western route would be the proposal for the 
consultation. 

Comments from political group leaders and backbench Members: 

• A no road option had not been considered or consulted upon. 
• Cabinet had not considered the issues relating to the environmental capacity of 

Herefordshire in accommodating the proposed growth. 
• Issues around air and water quality and sewage treatment capacity had not yet been 

resolved and were key issues for the development. 
• With regard to the community poll it was stated that a legal challenge might be made 

relating to the impact to the Special Area of Conservation, the River Wye. 
• Concern that the Council had increased the risk that the plan could be found to be 

unsound as it was believed that the testing of alternative options had been 
inadequate. 

• There was support both for and against an eastern relief road. 
• A community poll should be carried out as it would prove that the majority of 

residents were in favour of a relief road. 
• Clarity was sought on whether the relief road was to be a single road. 
• Any document provided for consultation must be clear so that everyone is fully 

aware of the proposals. 

The Leader gave an undertaking to provide a detailed response to the questions raised 
in a statement by one of the group leaders. 

RESOLVED 

 THAT: 

a) the arrangements for consultation on the Local Development 
Framework Core Strategy Revised Preferred Option be agreed; and 

b) the final arrangements for the consultation be delegated to the 
Director for Places and Communities upon legal advice, in 
consultation with the relevant Cabinet Members. 

 
The meeting ended at 4.15 pm CHAIRMAN 

2



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jo Davidson, Director of People Services, on (01432) 260039 

   

MEETING: CABINET  

DATE:  20 OCTOBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FINANCE 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

The Youth Justice Plan is prepared on an annual basis on behalf of Herefordshire Council and 
Worcestershire County Council.  The basic plan preparation is undertaken by the Youth Offending 
Service according to the deadlines and guidance from the Youth Justice Board for England and 
Wales (YJB). 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

THAT the Youth Justice Plan as prepared be endorsed and that it be recommended 
within the Policy Framework that the Plan be approved by Council at its meeting 
on 18 November 2011. 

Key Points Summary 

The Youth Justice Plan sets out how youth justice services across Herefordshire and Worcestershire 
are structured and identifies key actions to address identified risks to service delivery and 
improvement. 

Alternative Options 

There are no alternative options. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

The Youth Justice Plan is endorsed by Herefordshire Council annually. 

AGENDA ITEM 4

3



Introduction and Background 

Under section 40 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 each Local Authority has a duty to produce a 
Youth Justice Plan setting out how Youth Justice Services in their area are provided and funded and 
how the Youth Offending Service for the area is funded and composed, the plan is submitted to the 
Youth Justice Board for England and Wales 

The Youth Justice Plan for 2010/11 was prepared in March 2011 in line with the guidance issued by 
the YJB, the draft plan was agreed at the Youth Offending Management Board on 4 April 2011 and 
signed off by Management Board members in July 2011. 

A comparative analysis of resources with other Youth Offending Services within the family group 
(statistical neighbour group)undertaken in 2008, demonstrated that in terms of delivering 
performance, meeting National Standards and cost per youth justice disposal Worcestershire and 
Herefordshire YOS represented good value for money. Within the family group of 10 youth offending 
services Worcestershire and Herefordshire had the lowest overall cost per disposal at £2350 (range 
£2350 to £4394), had a higher than average case load per worker but was the fourth highest 
performing YOS in the family group, in terms of the overall performance, and the highest performing 
in terms of meeting the key performance indicators.  
 
A Core Case Inspection was undertaken by Her Majesty’s Inspectors in January 2011 and recorded 
that “… we consider this a very encouraging set of findings and that the prospects for the future are 
good”. 
 
During 2010/11 the Management Board reviewed their role in relation to providing strategic direction 
to the service and has commissioned a sub-group to appraise future service delivery options for 2012 
onwards. The review is considering developing the strategic leadership into a West Mercia model, 
incorporating Worcestershire and Herefordshire, Shropshire and Telford and Wrekin authorities. This 
model would mirror the strategic leadership of the Police and Probation Services across West Mercia 
and is seen as being able to achieve more value for money through shared services such as IT and 
improved performance through increased opportunities for sharing best practice. The operation of the 
YOS would remain Local Authority based, enabling specific operational processes to continue to 
reflect local needs and preferences. 
 
Key Considerations 

The Youth Offending Service had five indicators in the set of national indicators for local areas.   
Performance against the indicators for Worcestershire and Herefordshire is outlined in the plan and 
actions identified to address risks to performance improvement. 

Key data relating to YOS Performance and Youth Offending for Herefordshire is provided at 
Appendix 2 to this report. 

Community Impact 

The principal aim of the Youth Justice System is the prevention of offending and re-offending by 
children and young people. The Youth Justice Plan set out an action plan to address  future service 
delivery and improvement. 

Financial Implications 

The costs attributed to Herefordshire for YOS provision are covered by the existing budgetary 
contribution. However the Youth Justice Board is reviewing the national funding formula. 

4



The grant streams previously made available for YOS have been ring fenced to specific activities, 
and each has had its own allocation formula. Some grants have only been available to a restricted 
number of YOS, for example the grant for Integrated Resettlement Support was only available to 
areas where there was a Drug Intervention Programme. From 2012/13 the Youth Justice Grant will 
be a single pot and allocated across all YOS, and the Youth Justice Board (YJB) have been engaged 
in work on developing an allocation formula.   

The YJB have recently completed a consultation process on four formulae, and based on current 
year funding, the Worcestershire and Herefordshire grant would increase for two of the formulae, and 
decrease for other two. The YJB have committed to doing further work on revised versions of two of 
the formulae as the nation consultation has not identified any one of the four formulae as being most 
popular. Once a formula has been decided, there are a number of implementation options being 
considered to ensure that no YOS sustains too greater loss, the options being considered are phased 
implementation, capping and floor damping.   

In addition to any effect of the single pot allocation formula, the YJB currently do not know whether 
and to what level contributions from departments other than the Ministry of Justice will be for 2012/13. 

The position for 2012/13 is, therefore, currently unclear but the YJB have committed to letting local 
areas know the level of their grant by the end of the calendar year. 

Legal Implications 

There are no legal implications. 

Risk Management 

There are no risks associated with the endorsement of the Youth Justice Plan. 

Consultees 

As detailed in the Youth Justice Plan 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Youth Justice Plan 

Appendix 2 – Youth Offending Service Key Data for Herefordshire 

Background Papers 

None identified.   

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



Appendix 2 

Worcestershire and Herefordshire Youth Offending Service 
01905 732200 

Worcestershire and Herefordshire Youth Offending Service       
 
Key Data – Herefordshire 
 
The overall performance of the Worcestershire and Herefordshire Youth Offending 
Service is good in comparison with statistical, regional and national figures. 
 
There is a data health warning due to the low numbers contributing to the data for 
Herefordshire in that one or two young people entering any cohort can change the 
direction of travel (improvement or worsening) very quickly. However, the situation 
described by the First Time Entrants graph below does demonstrate a strong trend in 
improvement. 
 
An inspection of the case management processes undertaken by Her Majesty’s 
Inspectors in January 2011 judged that the Safeguarding aspects of the work were 
done well enough 74% of the time. With the Public Protection aspects, work to keep 
to a minimum each individual’s Risk of Harm to others was done well enough 63% of 
the time, and the work to make each individual less likely to reoffend was done well 
enough 68% of the time. These figures compare positively with National figures and 
are for the Worcestershire and Herefordshire service combined. 
 
The following figures are Herefordshire Performance figures and not combined 
Worcestershire and Herefordshire figures. 
 
1. First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice System (NI 111) 
 
First time entrants are defined as those young people receiving their first criminal 
justice sanction (either a reprimand, final warning or a conviction). The National 
Indicator is measured by the Department for Education using PNC1 and there is time 
delay in the publication of the results. The YOS collects and submits first time entrant 
data to the Youth Justice Board, who publish the data as an indication of direction of 
travel. The graph below outlines the first time entrant figures submitted to the YJB. 
 
The YCAP2 set a national aspiration for the reduction of first time entrants of 20% by 
2020. On the official DfE figures a reduction of 47% had been achieved in   
Herefordshire between 07/08 and 09/10. 
 
The graph shows a trend of a continuous reduction in the numbers of first time 
entrants since the end of 2006. This is likely to be the result of a number of 
developments including the targeting on young people at risk for interventions 
through the Prevent and Deter process, the work of the Targeted Family Support 
Project (now Herefordshire Families Matter), development of the CAF process and 
from July 2009 the introduction of Community Resolutions by the Police, and the 
development of the multi agency approaches adopted through  Locality working in 
Children’s Services. 
 

                                                 
1 Police National Computer 
2 Youth Crime Action Plan (2008) 

21



Appendix 2 

Worcestershire and Herefordshire Youth Offending Service 
01905 732200 

First Time Entrants April 2007 to March 2011 
Herefordshire

100

41
44

27
23

33

25

75
72

56

68

76

53

60

33 32

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Numbers 100 75 72 56 68 76 53 60 41 33 44 32 27 23 33 25

Apr - Jun 
07

Jul - Sep 
07

Oct - Dec 
07

Jan - Mar 
08

Apr - Jun 
08

Jul - Sep 
08

Oct - Dec 
08

Jan - Mar 
09

Apr - Jun 
09

Jul -Sep 
09

Oct - Dec 
09

Jan - Mar 
10

Apr - Jun 
10

Jul - Sep 
10

Oct - Dec 
10

Jan - Mar 
11

 
 
 
2 NI 19 – Rate of proven re-offending by young offenders 
 
The indictor compares the proven rate of re-offending of a cohort of offenders (over a 
12 month period) against a cohort of offenders identified in 2005. The measure used 
is the average number of re-offences per offender in the cohort. 
 
Cohort Average number of Re-

offences after 12 months 
2005 1.26 
2008 1.16 
2009 1.43 
2010 1.14 
 
 The 2010 performance represents a 9.5% decrease in number of re-offences 
compared with 2005 cohort. 
 
3 NI 43 (Custodial Sentences as a proportion of all sentencing outcomes) 

& NI 45 (Proportion of young offenders in full time education, training or 
employment at the end of their YOS Intervention) 

 
Performance Indicator 2009/10 2010/11 
NI 43 – Custodial Sentences as a proportion of all sentencing 
outcomes 

3.2% 3.7%  

NI 45 – Proportion of young offenders in full time education, 
training or employment at the end of their YOS Intervention 

74.1% 70.9%  

 
 
NI 43 – The previous national target was custodial sentences should not account for 
more than 5% of all sentencing outcomes. In both performance years reported in the 
table the performance in Herefordshire is well above the target. This is set against a 
national average of 5.6% (10/11) and a Family Group (statistical neighbour) average 
of 4.5%. 
 
NI 45 – The performance for this indicator in 2010/11 is slightly lower than in 
2009/10. This is mainly the effect of the increase in the number of young people 
above statutory school age who are NEET. The performance is in line with the Family 

22



Appendix 2 

Worcestershire and Herefordshire Youth Offending Service 
01905 732200 

Group average of 71.4%. This area of work is being targeted by the Management 
Board and the YOS are working in conjunction with the Herefordshire NEET strategy 
in order to improve outcomes under this indicator. The indicator will be removed as a 
national measure in 2012/13 but will remain as a local measure for the foreseeable 
future. 
 
 
4 Young People Offending by Offence Type 
 
The graph below outlines the primary offence3  for Herefordshire young people 
sentenced by the Court during 2010/11 
 

Court Disposals by Primary Offence

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Vi
ole
nc
e 
Ag
ain
st 
the
 P
er
so
n

Br
ea
ch
 of
 S
tat
uto
ry 
Or
de
r

Th
eft
 an
d H
an
dli
ng

Pu
bli
c O
rd
er

Cr
im
ina
l D
am
ag
e

Ot
he
r

Do
me
sti
c B
ur
gla
ry

Mo
tor
ing

Ar
so
n

Br
ea
ch
 of
 B
ail

Ve
hic
le 
Th
eft

Ra
cia
lly
 A
gg
ra
va
ted

No
n D
om
es
tic
 B
ur
gla
ry

Fr
au
d a
nd
 F
or
ge
ry

Dr
ug
s

Ro
bb
er
y

Offence

P
er
ce
n
ta
g
e

Series1

 
 
The most frequently occurring primary offence are offences of violence against the 
person accounting for 28% of primary offences. 
 
5 Young people offending by Age and Gender 
 
The graph below outlines the age and gender of Herefordshire young people 
sentenced by the Courts during 2010/11. 
 

                                                 
3  Primary offence relates to the most serious offence in a sentencing episode, there may be more than 
one offence and  different types of offences at each sentencing episode. 

23



Appendix 2 

Worcestershire and Herefordshire Youth Offending Service 
01905 732200 

Young People

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Young People 1 1 5 21 2 29 9 50 6 42 5 15

11yrs Male 12yrs Male 13yrs Male 14yrs Male
14yrs 
Female

15yrs Male
15yrs 
Female

16yrs Male
16yrs 
Female

17yrs Male
17yrs 
Female

18yrs Male

 
 
The peak age for young males sentenced is 16 years and for young females 
15 years. Males accounted for 79% of sentencing outcomes and females for 
21% 

24



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Anthony Bush Parish Liaison and Rural Services Officer on 01432 260611  

  

MEETING: CABINET  

DATE: OCTOBER 20 2011. 

TITLE OF REPORT: NEW CHARTER 2011. 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FINANCE 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To approve the New Charter 2011 between Herefordshire Council and Local Councils in the County. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision. 

.Recommendation 

 THAT: the New Charter 2011 be approved. 

Key Points Summary 

• The councils in Herefordshire have agreed to review and update the Charter which sets out 
how they aim to work together. The New Charter 2011 is the result of discussions locally and 
across Herefordshire to confirm existing good practice and to establish some new and 
enhanced ways of working.  

 
• In Herefordshire, there are 134 Parish and Town Councils and four Parish Meetings all playing 

an increasingly valuable role in local democracy and service provision. 
 

• The councils jointly represent all levels of democratic local government, to whose principles 
they are all committed.  They are all keen to see continued efforts made to improve our system 
of local democracy and to see greater public participation in and appreciation of the system. 

 
• Parish and town councils are the grass-roots level of local government.  By working with them 

and the Herefordshire Association of Local Councils, Herefordshire Council aims to act in 
partnership with local communities, whilst balancing the needs of the wider locality. 

 
• This New Charter 2011 updates and replaces the Charter for Herefordshire Councils agreed 

and published in October 2002. 
 

• The New Charter 2011 has been drawn up following discussions between representatives from 
the Herefordshire Association of Local Councils, the Market Towns Forum and Herefordshire 

AGENDA ITEM 5

25



 

 

Council (Cabinet member and officers).  

• The New Charter 2011 was the subject of a full consultation with Members and all parish, town 
and City councils in the May to August 2011 period. 

• The approval of Cabinet is now sought for the New Charter 2011. Simultaneously, HALC will 
seek endorsement from their AGM which is on 22 October. 

Alternative Options 

1. The alternative option is to do nothing. However the existing Charter is over eight years old and 
contains a commitment to review on a regular basis. In addition with the launch of the Big 
Society and the whole localism agenda, it is timely to review and update the Charter. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The New Charter 2011 has been drawn up following discussions between the Herefordshire 
Association of Local Councils (including the Market Towns Forum) and Herefordshire Council.  
All parish, town and city councils have been consulted on the proposals. 

Introduction and Background 

3 The existing Charter outlining how the councils in Herefordshire should work together was 
originally agreed in October 2002. It is now eight years since this agreement was reached and 
thus with the launch of the Big Society and the localism agenda it is both timely and necessary 
that this Charter is reviewed and updated. A working group made up of representatives from 
Herefordshire Council and the Herefordshire Association of Local Councils (including the Market 
Towns Forum) has agreed a draft New Charter 2011 which was consulted upon in the May to 
August period. Approval is now being sought from Cabinet. 

Key Considerations 

The Coalition Government is committed to a decentralisation agenda transferring power to local 
government and the communities they serve. The existing Charter has been reviewed, expanded and 
brought up to date to meet this new localism agenda. 

4 The New Charter 2011 (appendix 1) sets out the principles on how the councils will work 
together. It is a living document and will be developed in the coming months adding more details 
about how the relationship will work locally. 

5 The New Charter 2011 covers a wide range of activities including communication, ICT, 
community-led planning and community engagement, local governance and democracy, 
community resilience, delegation, devolution and adoption of services, clustering, practical 
support from Herefordshire Council, asset transfer and sharing of assets. 

6 By developing a closer working relationship in partnership, councils seek to deliver better and 
more effective services to the communities they serve. 

7 The New Charter 2011 will be reviewed regularly. The first review will take place at the end of 
2011 following the enactment of the Localism Bill. 

Community Impact 

8 In their role as democratically accountable bodies, local councils offer a means of shaping the 

26



 

 

decisions that affect their communities. They offer a means of decentralising the provision of 
certain services and of revitalising local communities. The New Charter 2011 is pivotal in 
establishing the mechanism by which all councils in Herefordshire will work together, in 
partnership, to the betterment of our communities 

Financial Implications 

9 The costs of operating this New Charter are restricted to officer time working in partnership with 
the Herefordshire Association of Local Councils. 

Legal Implications 

10 This document is not a legally binding document but relies on partnership working. It is 
conceivable, following the passing of the Localism Act that an instrument of this nature may be 
legally required in future. 

Risk Management 

11 Councils should be open to share details of risks they face (including the opportunities open to 
them by actively managing risks) with the other councils, thus ensuring there are no surprises in 
the future and giving them an opportunity to share solutions 

12 The devolution of powers to local councils may make it more difficult for Herefordshire Council 
to fulfil its agenda and plans. However designing a robust mechanism for managing any transfer 
should minimise this risk. 

13 The partnership between the councils proposed and the support offered to local councils by 
Herefordshire Council may stretch the unitary council’s resources. However the practical 
support offered will be on a costed basis and officer resource is in place to facilitate the 
partnership. 

14 Communication between all councils may not be consistent. However this will be mitigated by 
regular meetings, email alerts and ward member involvement. 

Consultees 

15 A working group, made up of representatives from Herefordshire Council and the Herefordshire 
Association of Local Councils (including the Market Towns Forum), have drawn up this New 
Charter. A Consultation with all parish, town and City councils has taken place. 

Appendices 

16 Appendix 1 – New Charter 2011 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

 

27



28



1 

 

 
 

DRAFT 
 
 

NEW CHARTER 2011. 
 

A Shared Community  
Working relationships in Local Government in 

Herefordshire. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2011 (Version Cabinet October 20th)

29



2 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Contents/Index 

 
 
          Page 
 
Introduction         3 
The Local Context        4 
The National Context       5 
The New Charter        5 
Working in Partnership       5 

Local Democracy       6 
Clustering of Local Councils and Cross  
Border Issues       7 

Consultation         7 
Communication        8 
Service Delivery        8 

Delegation, Devolution and Adoption of Services  8 
Service Changes by Herefordshire Council   9 
Asset Transfer and/or Sharing of Assets   9 

Operational Arrangements      10 
Quality Status and Power of Well-Being   10 
Emergency Planning      10 
Community Resilience      10 
Training and Development     10 
Compliments, Comments, Complaints and Disputes 11 
Social and economic Sustainability    11 
Equality of Opportunity      11 
Funding        11 
Monitoring, further work and Review    12 

 
 
 

 
NEW CHARTER 2011. 

30



3 

 

THE WORKING PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN 
THE COUNCILS IN HEREFORDSHIRE 

 
Definition 
 
In this document:  
 
Local Councils means all Parish, Town and City Councils. 
Councils means Local Councils and Herefordshire Council 
 
 
Introduction 
Herefordshire Council is the unitary authority for the County of 
Herefordshire. There are 58 Ward Councillors (Members) in 40 wards. 
The County is 100% parished with 1200 parish councillors in 134 parish 
and town/City Councils and 4 parish meetings. 
 
Herefordshire Council and Local Councils within Herefordshire have 
agreed to publish a Charter which sets out how they aim to work together. 
This Charter is the result of discussions locally and across Herefordshire 
to confirm existing good practice and to establish some new and 
enhanced ways of working.  
 
The Councils jointly represent all levels of democratic local government, 
to whose principles they are all committed.  They are keen to see 
continued efforts made to improve our system of local democracy and to 
see greater public participation in and appreciation of the system.   
 
In Herefordshire, individual town and parish Councils can become 
members of its county association of Local Councils, Herefordshire 
Association of Local Councils (HALC).  HALC is the representative 
body for Local Councils and supports its members by providing an 
advisory service, including legal advice supported by their national 
organisation, the National Association of Local Councils.  
 
Herefordshire Council employs a Parish Liaison Officer to further the 
interests of this Charter and to work with Local Councils in their dealings 
with Herefordshire Council.  
 
 

31



4 

 

This 2011 Charter updates and replaces the Charter for Herefordshire 
Councils agreed and published in October 2002. 
 
The Local Context 
 
Herefordshire is establishing its approach to locality working, which is 
about working in partnership with communities and the efficient delivery 
of services locally. 
 
A tiered approach to devolving services or budgets through a corporate 
and partnership policy framework will be a key plank of Herefordshire’s 
locality strategy and to achieving its aims and objectives.  Taking a 
partnership approach to decisions being made at the closest possible point 
to communities will be instrumental in gaining an understanding of how 
devolution (of decisions, budgets or services) could work and what this 
means in relation to local people and communities having a say about 
services that matter most to them. 
 
Local Councils are the grass-roots level of local government.  They have 
an increasingly valuable role to play in local democracy and service 
provision.  By working with them and HALC, Herefordshire Council 
aims to act in partnership with local communities, whilst balancing the 
needs of the wider locality. 
 
In their role as democratically accountable bodies, Local Councils offer a 
means of shaping the decisions that affect their communities.  They offer 
a means of decentralising the provision of certain services and of 
revitalising local communities.  In turn, Herefordshire Council has a 
strategic role in ensuring the equitable distribution of services which they 
have to achieve. 
 
This is consistent with the Sustainable Community Strategy for 
Herefordshire which states that across Herefordshire: “We will develop 
stronger, vibrant, more inclusive communities in which people enjoy a 
good quality of life and feel they have influence over decisions that affect 
them”. 

32



5 

 

 
A strong community is one that feels empowered, confident and accepted. 
In order to achieve this there should be respect for each other and groups. 
Individuals from all backgrounds need to be informed and have the 
opportunity to get involved in making decisions which affect their 
communities. 
 
The National Context 
 
The Big Society aims to put the community at the heart of taking action 
in their area by encouraging volunteering and involvement in social 
action, giving communities a greater say over local planning and 
delivering local services. 
 
The current Localism bill sets out a radical shift of power from central 
government to local communities helping to create the Big Society. 
 
More decisions will be taken within communities about how public 
money is raised and spent. This will give people more choice and a better 
standard of service. Local government will be held more accountable to 
its communities giving local people opportunities to take control of the 
process of decentralisation. 
 
THE NEW CHARTER 
 
This New Charter sets out the broad framework on how the Councils will 
work together. Councils agree that an action plan will be developed, 
adding more details about how the relationship will work locally across 
the County. 
 
Strong working relationships, that have already been developed and that 
can be further built upon, are key to the delivery of better and more 
effective services for our communities. 
 
 
Working in Partnership 
 
1. Herefordshire Council will seek to involve Local Councils in its 

governance arrangements and liaise in the following ways: 
 

a) Local Councils will invite appropriate Members and Officers of 
Herefordshire Council to their meetings. 

 

33



6 

 

b)  Members and officers of Herefordshire Council invited to 
attend local council meetings will use their best endeavours to 
attend such meetings 

 
c)  Herefordshire Council will maintain its close working 

relationship with HALC through  
 

• the regular attendance of the Parish Liaison Officer at its 
meetings 

• informal quarterly meetings between senior Council 
Members and Officers of Herefordshire Council  and HALC. 

 
Local Democracy 
 
2. Herefordshire Council will work with Local Councils and HALC 

to promote and to develop the public’s interest in local government 
and to strive to improve a broad community involvement in local 
democracy, specifically through attendance at local council 
meetings, participation in parish council working groups and/or 
standing as parish/town councillors. 

 
Local Councils will:- 
 

• Encourage the public to attend their meetings and give an 
opportunity to ask questions and make comments. 

• seek to encourage the talent available in communities to 
participate in local council business  

• Make available to the public a wide range of information 
making effective use of ICT. 

• Work with their Herefordshire Council Ward Members to 
carry out their ward responsibilities. 

• Advise Herefordshire Council Ward Members of their 
meeting dates and agenda. 

• Promote interest in local council elections 
• Encourage a diverse and representative membership of their 

council. 

34



7 

 

 
Herefordshire Council will:- 
 

• Encourage their Members to work closely with their Local 
Councils by regularly attending parish/town council 
meetings and holding surgeries. 

• Encourage their Members and officers to attend training 
courses on “working with Local Councils”. 

 
Clustering of Local Councils and Cross Border Issues 
 
3. It is recognised that some Local Councils may decide that there are 

advantages in “clustering” together to deliver a service and this 
may benefit the business case. 

 
4. It is recognised that Local Councils may wish to cluster with 

Councils across county borders or with Councils in Wales. 
Councils agree to promote cross-border cooperation, taking into 
account legal and funding constraints. 

 
 
Consultation 
 
5. Herefordshire Council will seek to give Local Councils and HALC 

the opportunity to comment before making decisions that affect 
their local area. The subject areas will include formulation of 
policy, planning issues and the delivery of services and functions at 
local level. 

 
6. In consulting with them, Herefordshire Council will provide Local 

Councils with sufficient information to enable them to reach an 
informed view on the matter under consideration and give adequate 
time to respond in accordance with Herefordshire Council’s 
standard and with any statutory requirements where applicable. 
Consultations will make full use of information technology. 

 
7. Local Councils will take the lead in actively encouraging their 

local communities to produce community-led plans that will not 
only inform those Local Councils’ business plans but also feed into 
Herefordshire Council’s service plans. The aim is to achieve 100% 
community-led plan coverage within five years. Local Councils 
will also ensure that the plans are reviewed at least annually and 
updated every 5 years.  

35



8 

 

 
8. Local Councils will ensure there is a mechanism in place to engage 

with their communities with regard to understanding and 
responding effectively to day-to-day issues as they arise. 

 
9. Local Councils will involve their communities in the annual 

budgeting process and promote participatory budgeting as a means 
of meeting the needs of their communities. 

 
 
 
Communication 
 
10. All Local Councils should make use of ICT wherever possible for 

the exchange of information, consultation documents, planning 
applications, committee papers and general correspondence. It is 
anticipated that this will be the preferred means of communication 
in the future ensuring that effective and efficient communication is 
achieved between the two tiers of local government. 

 
11. Furthermore, all Councils will be encouraged to set up and 

maintain websites for their communities and to link into partner 
websites. 

 
12. In order to optimise the ICT opportunity Herefordshire Council 

will endeavour to promote the development of superfast broadband 
as an efficient means of delivering 21st Century services. 

 
 
Service Delivery 
 
Delegation, Devolution and adoption of Services 
 
13. Local Councils will work with the Herefordshire Council and 

consider any delegated responsibility in detail, taking into 
consideration the cost, quality, local preferences and practicability 
at all times. 

 
14. Where a request for delegation or devolution is made, Local 

Councils will produce a costed business case in support of the 
request and provide evidence of local need for the service. A 
mechanism for the transfer of services between Councils will be 
developed following the adoption of this New Charter. 

36



9 

 

 
15. Any application should be accompanied by the Local Council 

demonstrating how they will achieve Quality Status standards. 
 
Service changes by Herefordshire Council 
 
16. Where Herefordshire Council decides to end a particular service, 

Local Councils will be given the choice of delivering the service at 
their cost by either funding Herefordshire Council or its partners to 
deliver the service or by providing the service themselves. 

 
 
Asset Transfer and/or Sharing of Assets 
 
17. Asset transfers will be considered by Herefordshire Council, 

subject to the demonstration of community need and in accordance 
with the Council’s Community Asset Transfer policy. 

 
18. Critical to the success of any transfer is having a clear rationale 

backed by a robust business-case demonstrating the sustainability 
of the proposal, and the ability of the recipient to manage the asset 
effectively, including an assessment of the financial and 
organisational capacity of the council.  

 
19. Local Councils will work with the Herefordshire Council to 

identify public assets that can be re-modelled or shared to improve 
service delivery at the locality level. 

 
20. It is recognised that asset transfer is a two-way process and Local 

Councils may wish to discuss with Herefordshire Council, 
transferring assets currently owned by them. 

 
21. All cases of service transfer to and from Local Councils under this 

New Charter will be reported annually to Herefordshire Council 
and by the Herefordshire Association of Local Councils to all 
Councils, including a nil return if applicable and published in the 
public domain. 

37



10 

 

 
Operational Arrangements 
 
Quality Status and Power of Well-Being. 
 
22. Herefordshire Council will work with Local Councils and HALC 

to promote the take–up by Local Councils of the Quality Parish 
Council Scheme (QPS) as a basic benchmark of good practice, 
embracing aspects of legal compliance, public accountability and 
community engagement.  

 
23. Local Councils are encouraged to adopt the Power of Well Being 

that will offer them more powers to benefit their communities’ 
social, economic and environmental well-being. 

 
Emergency Planning 
 
24. Local Councils will undertake to co-operate with the Herefordshire 

Council’s Emergency Planning procedures. 
 
25. Local Councils will be provided with e-mail alerts regarding 

emergency information, as appropriate. 
 
Community Resilience 
 
26. Councils will work together to encourage the development of a 

community resilience information file for each Local Council. 
 
Training and Development 
 
27. Local Councils, clerks and councillors will be encouraged to attend 

training and information sharing events whenever possible. 
 
28. Local Councils will encourage all their clerks to become qualified 

with the aim that all clerks in the County should hold the CiLCA 
qualification. 

 
29. Herefordshire Council will assist in identifying and helping to meet 

the training needs of Local Councils and participate in training 
events organised by HALC subject to staff availability. 

 

38



11 

 

30. Herefordshire Council will include the topic “working with your 
parish/town Councils” in the new ward members’ induction 
programme. 

 
Compliments, Comments, Complaints and disputes 
 
31. Any concerns about the operation of this New Charter will be 

resolved by early dialogue between Local Councils firstly by the 
clerk of the concerned council and the lead officer of Herefordshire 
Council and secondly by the Chair of the Local Council and the 
Lead Member of Herefordshire Council with officer support. 

 
32. Where practical and possible the Herefordshire Council will offer 

Local Councils access to support services to enable them to take 
advantage of facilities such as printing, ICT procurement and other 
services. 

 
33. Herefordshire Council will explore the provision of training and 

support on issues such as business planning and risk assessments. 
 
Social and Economic Sustainability. 
 
34. Councils agree to work in ways that are sustainable, reconciling the 

long-term needs with those of the present and protecting and 
improving the quality of life of current generations without 
compromising the quality of life of future generations. 

 
Equality of Opportunity 
 
35. Herefordshire Council embraces equality and diversity in all its 

work and is committed to serving the diverse needs of our 
communities, recognising that people have different needs, 
cultures, experiences and expectations. 

 
36. Local Councils will make the same commitments to eliminate 

discrimination in all its forms, providing equality of opportunity to 
all the communities we serve.  Wherever practicable they will 
endeavour to base local decisions on a broad community mandate, 
whilst taking into account the needs of the most vulnerable. 

39



12 

 

 
Funding 
 
37. Innovative ways to make the best use of limited resources will need 

to be identified, to reduce wastage wherever possible and to deliver 
services in the most cost effective way. 

 
38. All Councils will seek to include the principles of participatory 

budgeting in their future budgeting processes. 
 
Monitoring, Further work and Review 
 
39. This 2011 Charter is a living document and will be formally 

reviewed and evaluated regularly (at least annually) by the 
“Charter Group”, made up of representatives of Local Councils, 
HALC, the Market Towns Forum and Herefordshire Council. The 
first review is planned to be at the end of 2011 following the 
enactment of the Localism Bill and other relevant legislation. 

 
40. Following the adoption of the New Charter 2011 a mechanism for 

the transfer of services between Councils will be agreed and 
published. 

 
 
October 2011. 

40



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Dean Taylor, Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Corporate Services on (01432) 260037 
  

  

MEETING: CABINET  

DATE: 20 OCTOBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: HEREFORDSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES: 
PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FINANCE 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose  

This paper describes the current governance for the Herefordshire Public Services (HPS) partnership 
and proposes revised arrangements for the future, to reflect the national changes to health 
commissioning and health and well being and the new Clinical Commissioning Group, Herefordshire 
Health-Care Commissioners (HHCC).  A similar paper is being presented to the NHS Herefordshire 
Board on 19 October and the HHCC Board on 25 October 2011. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision. 

Recommendation 

THAT Cabinet: 

Agrees to the establishment of a Herefordshire Public Services Board to oversee the 
partnership between Herefordshire Council, Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioners 
and NHS Herefordshire, in accordance with the Terms of Reference and Constitution 
set out in Appendix A. 

Key Points Summary 

• Herefordshire Public Services (HPS) is the partnership between Herefordshire Council and 
NHS Herefordshire, which has been in development since 2006. 

• Although a vision for integrated working has been agreed, both bodies remain separately 
accountable public authorities, making decisions through their respective governance 
processes. 

• The HPS Steering Group has provided the main forum for the governance of the partnership 
since February 2007. 

AGENDA ITEM 6

41



• It is timely to review the direction of and arrangements for the next phase of the partnership in 
the light of the national changes to health commissioning and health and well being and 
following the local Elections.   

• This paper describes the current governance and proposes that a new HPS Board is set up to 
oversee the partnership between Herefordshire Council, Herefordshire Health-Care 
Commissioners and NHS Herefordshire over the next 18 months 

Alternative Options 

1 Given the strategic importance of the HPS partnership, it is essential that some form of 
governance is in place.  Other options for this include: 

• Option 1: retain the HPS Steering Group but include HHCC representation 

• Option 2: establish a new Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Steering Group, with the 
three organisations to oversee QIPP, joint commissioning plans, formulation of health and 
wellbeing strategy etc and to promote integration to deliver this 

• Option 3: promote Herefordshire system wide integration through the Herefordshire 
Partnership Executive Group, with HPS co-ordination through informal meetings of the 
Chairs, Leader and Chief Executives 

2 A review of the options has concluded that a new HPS Board with a remit to oversee both 
partnership working and to co-ordinate health and well being will best meet the challenges 
over the next 18 months. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

3 Revised governance arrangements for HPS are required to reflect the local and national 
changes that will impact on HPS, in particular the need engaged the Clinical Commissioning 
Group within HPS, to manage the transition period for the NHS and public health reforms and 
work together to manage the impact of further significant budgets cuts over the next 2/3 years 

Introduction and Background 

Herefordshire Public Services 

4 The concept of Herefordshire Public Services was developed in 2006 in response to the 
consultation on the reconfiguration of PCTs.  The proposed partnership (at the time described 
as a public service trust) was supported by the Council, the PCT, the SHA and by Government 

5 A project and “roadmap” for the development of HPS was set out in 2007 following various 
workshops and consultation. This contained milestones for several phases from first principles 
to deep integration 

6 Since 2007 a great deal has been achieved and Herefordshire’s model has been recognised 
nationally as leading the way. 

 

Key Considerations 

Review of Current Arrangements 

42



7 Current arrangements are considered in two areas: 

• the direction for HPS 

• the governance arrangements that have been put in place 

Direction 

8 At the start of the partnership in 2006, a paper was produced that set out a direction for HPS 
and a plan for integration.  During the first year or so HPS development was run as a project, 
but over recent years the approach has been to see HPS development as core business, not 
just a project 

9 This has led to a more organic approach, which has enabled opportunities to be taken to 
integrate and reduce costs as they have arisen.  But this has also meant less structure and 
formal recording of the benefits. 

10 Joint working has, nevertheless, taken place in key areas, for example: 

• Shared Services 

• Organisational Design 

• Rising to the Challenge (RTTC) 

• Integration of Health and Social Care 

11 In addition, major strategies and plans that cross the local authority and NHS have been 
considered by both Cabinet and PCT Board, for example: 

• Joint Corporate Plan 

• Medium Term Financial Plan 

• Commercial Strategy 

• Customer Strategy 

• Communications Plans 

Governance 

12 Governance and mechanisms for the co-ordination of activity across HPS has taken three 
main forms: 

• HPS Steering Group: consisting of the Leader and Chair of the PCT and 3 Cabinet 
Members and 3 NEDs, with agreed terms of reference, formal agenda and minutes (see 
further below) 

• Cabinet Member/NEDs Meetings: informal and ad hoc meetings, largely focusing on 
major partnership topics such as the joint corporate plan and budget 

• Joint Management Team/HPS Leadership Team: weekly meetings of  the Chief 
Executive and Directors, covering the whole range of joint business, including bi-monthly 
performance review meetings and bi-monthly RTTC Board meetings 

43



13 The core role of the HPS SG has been: 

• Set the strategic direction for HPS integration and the priorities for realising that strategy 

• Establish the criteria for measurement of success including the delivery of benefits through 
an integrated approach to services 

• Provide assurance that the partnership system is held to account for progress against 
those success criteria  

Comments on Current Arrangements 

14 There has been demonstrable progress and clear benefits from the HPS integration.  We have 
an agreed statement of Values, Principles, Organisational Vision and the Rising to the 
Challenge transformation programme.  

15 The recent national changes have inevitably distracted some attention from the integration 
agenda and raised questions about how HPS will continue as a result of the clinical 
commissioning and the abolition of the PCT.  However, the leadership of the Council, the PCT 
and the Clinical Commissioning Group are clear that integration is as important as ever. 

16 The observation from the West Mercia Cluster perspective is that the action taken across HPS 
have put Herefordshire in a stronger position than other areas to meet the challenges ahead, 
to manage the risks and to implement the national reforms. 

17 The Joint Management Team and now the HPS Leadership Team has been central to the 
success of HPS: 

• Joint appointments and formal management responsibilities for Council and PCT services 
has developed integration 

• Specifically, we have been able to reduce management costs, share expertise and 
knowledge and enhance collective capacity and resilience 

• JMT/HPSLT has been the key forum for the development of joint strategies (eg: customer, 
locality, commercial, health and social care commissioning) 

18 The HPS Steering Group has also been effective in monitoring the key partnership activities 
such as risks, communications, and latterly RTTC.  But it is recongised that partnership 
governance needs to provide a clear direction for the partnership and be the prime forum for 
debating key issues around integration and for capturing the benefits of the partnership. 

Conclusions 

19 The conclusions form the review of current arrangements are as follows: 

• We need to restate the purpose of HPS, the vision we aspire to and set out a number of 
priorities for our joint work over the next 18 months, up to April 2013 

• Previous governance arrangements have served a valuable purpose and have added to 
the achievements so far 

• But just as HPS needs to restate its purpose, so governance needs to change to meet the 
new agenda 

44



• Central to this is the formal engagement of the Clinical Commissioning Group within HPS – 
that is: HPS needs to be a three way partnership for the future 

• The new governance arrangements should also be seen as a bridge from the current 3 
way partnership until 2013 when the PCT is to be abolished and HHCC and HWBB have 
statutory powers 

• The changes to HPS purpose and governance also need to align with the other key local 
partnerships within which HPS operates, in particular the Herefordshire Partnership.  It is 
crucial that we understand the wider strategic role of the Herefordshire Partnership and 
engage other partners in our vision and priorities 

A Renewed Purpose for HPS 

Context 

20 In considering our future purpose, it is important to be clear about the local and national 
changes and other factors that will impact on HPS, including: 

q Newly elected Council… the need to review the arrangements in the light of the new 
Administration’s priorities 

q Establishment of the Clinical Commissioning Group… the need to engage representatives 
of HHCC in HPS 

q Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board… how the Board’s future role in system leadership 
and service integration will fit with the HPS vision 

q West Mercia Cluster… ensuring that there is no conflict between the role of the Cluster and 
what we are seeking to achieve locally 

q Future of the PCT… the current proposal is for the abolition of PCTs by April 2013 

q Public sector funding… how we will work together to manage the impact of further significant 
budgets cuts over the next 2/3 years 

q Strategic Direction… a purpose that is aligned with our overall vision and objectives set out 
in  the Joint Corporate Plan and HPS Organisational Vision and using Rising to the 
Challenge: as the overarching programme for managing change and realizing benefits 

q Herefordshire Partnership: the big prize is further integration with the Herefordshire 
Partnership, HPS playing a leading role in shaping the 9 localities  

q Providers: forging strong links with Wye Valley NHS Trust and other providers, given the 
objectives of Integrated Care and the inter-dependencies between us 

 

Key Principles for HPS 

21 A number of key principles are suggested upon which we will base the narrative of the 
renewed purpose and priorities of HPS: 

• Herefordshire: the further integration of public services is an essential response to meeting 
the challenges facing Herefordshire over the next decade or more 

45



• Outcomes: our partnership is based on delivering better outcomes for residents, not simply 
being a better partnership; this can only be achieved by working together at all levels, using 
the new integrated need assessment as our focus 

• Integration: customers and patients expect services that are designed around their needs, 
integration and service change is essential to break down silo delivery and create service 
pathways that provide better outcomes and earlier intervention 

• Capacity and Capability: our organisations are small and stretched in many directions; we do 
not have the capacity and capability to deliver what we need to do alone, but together – 
sharing leadership, skills and knowledge – we can 

• Value for Money: there are still areas of duplication, waste and separate processes which 
add to our costs, reduce funding for direct service delivery and do not offer value for money for 
local tax payers; shared services needs to enter a new phase 

• Community Engagement: we share the aim of a step change in our relationship with 
residents so that they are better informed, take greater personal responsibility for their lifes 
and we can plan services around their needs 

Priorities for HPS 

22 Translating these principles into priorities the focus for HPS over the next 18 months will 
need to include: 

• Integrated governance for leadership, strategy and accountability for delivery 

• Integrated commissioning strategy, support and delivery (including Section 75 
agreements) 

• Delivery of the QIPP and Adult Social Care cost improvement plan, including care pathway 
transformation and early intervention and prevention 

• Health and well being, including the development of the new Board, production of a new 
Integrated Needs Assessment and the Health and Well Being Strategy  

• Supporting the development of HHCC towards full authorisation and further delegation of 
functions and budgets 

• Integrated local delivery within the framework of the 9 areas 

• Maximum empowerment to frontline staff across the health and social care system to 
respond flexibly to meet patient and service user needs 

• Integrated customer access channels and data 

• Integrated plan to support staff through the transition and to ensure that we have the right 
skills and capacity for the future  

• Joint Communication and Community engagement, for example through Hearts of 
Herefordshire 

• Integrated corporate support functions 

• Shared and rationalised office accommodation 

46



• Shared performance and risk management 

Future Governance Options 

23 Based on the proposals about renewed Direction, a number of future options for HPS 
governance have been reviewed: 

q Option 1: retain the HPS Steering Group but include Clinical Commissioning Group (HHCC) 
representation 

q Option 2: establish a new Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Steering Group, with the three 
organisations to oversee QIPP, joint commissioning plans, formulation of health and wellbeing 
strategy etc and to promote integration to deliver this 

q Option 3: establish a new HPS Board that has formal delegated authority from the constituent 
members (as agreed) to approve plans and integrated structures and budgets to deliver QIPP, 
agreement of joint commissioning plans, formulation of health and wellbeing strategy 

q Option 4: promote Herefordshire system wide integration through the Herefordshire 
Partnership Executive Group, with HPS co-ordination through informal meetings of the Chairs, 
Leader and Chief Executives 

24 A review of the options has concluded that a combination of Options 3 and 4 – a new HPS 
Board with a remit to oversee both partnership working and to co-ordinate health and well 
being – will best meet the challenges over the next 18 months. 

25 Proposed Terms of Reference, working arrangements for the new HPS Board are set out in 
Appendix A. 

Community Impact 

The HPS partnership plays a significant part in delivering essential services and better outcomes for 
Herefordshire residents.  

Financial Implications 

No direct financial implications from this report.  However, the increasing financial constraints on the 
public sector mean that we need to address areas of duplication, waste and separate processes 
which add to our costs, reduce funding for direct service delivery and do not offer value for money for 
local tax payers. 

Legal Implications 

The Council and PCT are and will remain separate legal bodies.  The Health and Social Care Bill will 
create new statutory framework for NHS commissioning and establish the Health and Well Being 
Board.  The new governance arrangements for HPS anticipate these changes. 

Risk Management 

Failure to revise HPS purpose and governance will; impact on the effective management of the 
transition to the new NHS and public health system.  A new HPS Risk Register will be produced for 
the Board. 

47



Consultees 

Herefordshire Cabinet. 

NHS Herefordshire Board. 

Herefordshire Health-Care Commissioners Board. 

Appendices 

Appendix A  HPS Board Terms of Reference. 

Background Papers 

None. 

 

48



Appendix A 

HEREFORDSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Purpose: The governance of Herefordshire Public Services (HPS) is 
based on the operation of an extensive partnership between 
Herefordshire Council (HC), through its executive Cabinet, and 
the NHS in Herefordshire, through the Primary Care Trust Board 
(NHSH) and Herefordshire Healthcare Commissioning 
Consortium (HHCC). The partners remain separately 
accountable public authorities, making publicly accountable 
decisions through their respective governance processes.  

The Board has been established to provide a forum for the 
agreement of integrated structures and budgets to realise both 
the strategic vision for Herefordshire and the implementation of 
joint commissioning plans agreed by the Health & Wellbeing 
Board; the promotion of system wide integration within the 
county and to oversee the transition through the NHS and public 
health reforms. 

   

Membership: The Board is appointed from amongst the Cabinet, NHSH Board 
HHCC Board and officers of the constituent member bodies.  
The membership will include: 

• Leader of the Council 
• Chair of NHSH 
• Chair of HHCC 
• One further Cabinet Member, and a nominated alternative  
• One further Non-Executive NHSH Director, and a nominated 

alternative  
• One further HHCC Board Member, and a nominated 

alternative  
• HPS Chief Executive  
• HHCC Chief Officer  
• Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Corporate Services 

(Lead Officer) 
   

The quorum shall be not less than four members, of which one 
member from each of the three constituent partners must be 
present.  The Board shall elect a Chair from its own 
membership. 

  

49



Authority: In pursuit of the objectives of HPS, the Board will exercise all 
powers available to its individual members, within the authority 
delegated by existing HC, NHSH, and HHCC governance 
arrangements. 

    

Accountability: The Board is a working group that is jointly accountable to HC’s 
Cabinet, the NHSH Board, and the HHCC Board. 

    

Reporting 
Arrangements: 

The minutes of Board meetings shall be formally recorded. Any 
issues that require disclosure to the Cabinet/Council/NHSH 
Board/HHCC Board, or require their action, shall be reported 
accordingly.   

    

Secretarial/ 

Administrative 
Support: 

Administrative and secretarial support will be provided to the 
Board by the democratic services team.  This will include the: 

§ Attendance at meetings to take minutes, keep a record of 
matters arising, decisions taken, action agreed and issues to 
be carried forward;  

§ Preparation of the agenda and collation of papers; 
§ Provision of general administrative support to the Board in 

relation to its work. 
    

Frequency of 
Meetings: 

Meetings shall be held not less than quarterly.  Other meetings 
may be held by agreement of the Board or its Chair if it is 
considered necessary to the successful development of 
Herefordshire’s public services. 

    

Minimum notice 
period for meetings: 

A schedule of meetings will be agreed by the Board.  Agenda 
and papers will normally be distributed a minimum of five 
working days prior to the date of the meeting. 

    

Attendance: The Directors for People’s Services and Places & Communities, 
and other officers of HC, NHSH, HHCC or its partner 
organisations, may be invited to attend meetings to report on 
specific issues, respond to any questions of Board members 
and to seek advice or clarification on any issues requiring the 
support or direction of the Board as appropriate.  

A representative from the West Mercia NHS Cluster (Director of 
Commissioning Development?) will receive papers and have the 

50



right to attend meetings as appropriate.  

  

Key Relationships: The Board is accountable to the HC Cabinet, NHSH Board, and 
HHCC Board. The Board should provide strategic direction on 
integration issues to relevant bodies including: 

• Health & Wellbeing Board 
• The Shared Services Partnership Company 
• West Mercia NHS Cluster Board  
• QIPP/Social Care Delivery Board 
• Herefordshire Partnership Executive Group 
• Wye Valley NHS Trust 
• 2gether NHS Trust 

  

Principal 
Responsibilities / 
Duties: 

The responsibilities of the Board will be to: 

• Set the strategic direction for HPS integration and the 
priorities for realising that strategy in line with the key 
principles agreed 

• Establish the criteria for measurement of success including 
the identification, quantification and effective delivery of 
benefits (both financial and outcome) to be achieved through 
integration of public services in Herefordshire, maintaining a 
focus throughout on delivering better outcomes for the 
people of Herefordshire 

• Provide assurance that the partnership system is held to 
account for progress against those success criteria  

• Oversee the transition to the new NHS and public health 
system in Herefordshire, in particular supporting the 
development of the Clinical Commissioning Group and the 
Health and Well Being Board  
 

These will be achieved through development of a rolling work 
programme focussed on: 

• Ensuring that robust and effective partnership arrangements 
are in place 

• Providing guidance to the Cabinet, NHSH and HHCC Boards 
regarding policy co-ordination, resource allocation and 
implementation to ensure the objectives of HPS are achieved 

• Ensuring a unified and integrated approach to business in 
pursuit of optimising efficiency, effectiveness and services for 
people in Herefordshire 

• Promotion of system wide integration in Herefordshire and 
ensuring that the benefits are communicated widely and fully 
understood 

• Ensuring that arrangements for supporting effective transition 

51



of public health and commissioning functions to the new 
arrangements are established and effectively resourced, with 
accountabilities for delivery clearly identified 

• Maintaining an effective system of integrated governance, 
internal control and risk management, across the whole of its 
activities (both non-clinical and clinical), in support of the 
achievement of its aims and objectives. 
 

Date  Established: October 2011 

    

Terms of Reference 
to be reviewed: 

Annual 

  

Date of Next Review   October 2012 

All Terms of Reference, Agenda, Papers, Minutes, Action Plans and Reports 
must be archived in accordance with current best practice. 

 

52



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Jenny Lewis, Assistant Director People, Policy and Performance, on (01432) 261855 
  

  

MEETING: CABINET 

DATE: 20 OCTOBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: INTEGRATED CORPORATE PERFORMANCE 
REPORT – TO END OF AUGUST 2011 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  CORPORATE SERVICES AND EDUCATION 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To provide Cabinet with an overview of performance against the Joint Corporate Plan 2011-14 for the 
first five months of 2011-12.    

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision. 

Recommendations 

 THAT : 

(a) performance to the end of August 2011 and the measures being taken to 
address areas of under-performance be considered; and 

(b) proposed amendments to the Joint Corporate Plan 2011-14 in relation to Theme 
2, ‘Improve health and social care’ be considered. 

Key Points Summary 

• The proportion of performance measures achieving or better than target is 56.5%, broadly 
similar to that at the end of June.  Where comparison with the same period last year is 
available, 58% are showing improvement (33.3% at the end of June).    

• The majority of key projects are being delivered to schedule.    

• The overall revenue budget position for the Council at the end of August shows a projected 
£2.75m overspend.    

• A refresh of Joint Corporate Plan Theme 2, ‘Improve health and social care’, is proposed to 
better illustrate progress in delivering the relevant outcomes. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

53



 2

Alternative Options 

1. The Joint Performance Improvement Framework provides that Cabinet will formally review 
performance against the Joint Corporate Plan quarterly.  There are therefore no alternative 
options.   

Reasons for Recommendations 

2. To ensure that progress against the priorities, targets and commitments, as set out in the 
Joint Corporate Plan 2011-14, are understood. Further, to ensure that the reasons for 
important areas of actual or potential under-performance are understood and are being 
addressed to the Cabinet’s satisfaction.    

Introduction and Background 

3. The Integrated Corporate Performance Report is a regular report, focusing on progress 
towards achievement of the six themes (34 outcomes) in the Joint Corporate Plan 2011-14.     
Progress is measured through the management and monitoring of selected performance 
indicators and projects.   The appendices to this report include: 

Appendix 1 a key to what the symbols used in Appendices 2b and 2c represent 
and a list of the themes and outcomes, with lead directors; 

Appendix 2a exception report for those indicators and projects that are ahead of 
target; and 

Appendix 2b exception report for those indicators and projects that are behind 
target.    

Appendix 3 Proposed amendments to the Joint Corporate Plan 2011-14 

4. The more detailed financial context for this report is set out in the budget monitoring report 
elsewhere on your agenda.  The key financial headlines are included in the commentary in the 
scorecard below.    

Key Considerations 

5. Based on a balanced scorecard approach, the following six elements (A-F) have been 
identified to provide an overview of the key issues that enable the Council and NHS 
Herefordshire to achieve the desired outcomes of the Joint Corporate Plan.  These elements 
are monitored bi-monthly by the Herefordshire Public Services Leadership Team.   Work is 
underway to improve further the presentation of performance information. 

A – Performance against indicators 

6. The nature of the indicators selected for the Joint Corporate Plan means that not all have data 
reported at the same time / frequency. In particular, some indicators are only reported 
annually.  These are only reported at the appropriate time in the year.  At that time Cabinet 
can assure themselves that appropriate in year actions are being taken to maintain good 
performance or improve it where necessary.    

7. A large range of data is used to assess the quality of services provided and aid decision 
making.     Herefordshire Public Services is committed to ensuring that its performance data is 
both reliable and accurate.  Cabinet monitors performance against a range of indicators for 
each of the themes in the Joint Corporate Plan; this is summarised in the next 2 tables and full 
details are shown in Appendices 2a and 2b for those indicators that are significantly under or 
over achieving.    

54



 3

 
      

Theme 

No.    of 
indicators 
monitored 
this quarter 

More than 
10% ahead 
of target 

Achieved or 
exceeding 
target by 
less than 
10% 

Up to 5% 
behind 
target 

More than 
5% behind 
target 

Create a thriving 
economy 3 0 

2 

66.7% 
0 

1 

33.3% 

Improve health and 
social care 14 

2 

14.3% 

5 

35.7% 

2 

14.   3% 

5 

35.   7% 

Raise standards for 
children and young 
people 

7 0 
3 

42.9% 
0 

4 

57.1% 

Promote self reliant 
local communities 9 0 

3 
33.3% 

1 
11.1% 

5 
55.6% 

Create a resilient 
Herefordshire 8 

4 
50% 

3 
37.5% 

0 
1 

12.5% 

Commission the right 
services 5 

3 
60% 

1 
20% 

0 
1 

20% 

Total 46 
9 

19.5% 
17 
37% 

3 
6.5% 

17 
37% 

 

 % of indicators improving compared to 
last year 

Create a thriving economy - 

Improve health and social care 
1/1 

100% 

Raise standards for children and young people - 

Promote self reliant local communities 
1 / 2 

50% 

Create a resilient Herefordshire 
2 / 5 

40% 

Commission the right services 
3 / 4 

75% 

Total 
7 / 12 

58.3% 

8. Performance against target and direction of travel is broadly similar to last year.  When 

55



 4

considering the direction of travel it needs to be recognised that the majority of performance 
measures in the Joint Corporate Plan have no historic data to allow a judgement to be made.     
It should also be noted that at this period, there are still a relatively low number of measures 
where data is available to illustrate progress towards delivery of the various outcomes.    

9. The People’s Services Directorate are proposing a refresh of Joint Corporate Plan Theme 2, 
‘Improve health and social care’, to include revised performance measures and projects, that 
would better serve to illustrate progress in delivering the relevant outcomes.  These proposals 
are in appendices 3, 3a and 3b.    

Directorate summary reports on performance  

10. The following directorate reports provide a more in-depth overview of performance than the 
review of indicators and projects in appendices 2a and 2b alone.  The directorate reports 
reflect on performance against the Joint Corporate Plan, but also on other performance issues 
that may have an impact on delivery of the Joint Corporate Plan.    

11. Places and Communities 

What has gone well? 

Performance in the area of Waste Management is pleasing, in particular in increasing reuse, 
recycling and composting as well as well as in the reduction of residual household waste.    

It is also pleasing to see the positive reductions in carbon usage from Local Authority 
Operations, this level of performance will need to be maintained in order to meet the 
challenging target of a 30% reduction in emissions by April 2015.   Supported by prudential 
borrowing, the introduction of a scheme to introduce LED lighting should help in future carbon 
reduction. 

Examples of projects/schemes currently progressing well are: 

Overall we continue to see good progress with the delivery of key economic projects delivered 
by the Directorate.  The achievement of Enterprise Zone status with regards to Rotherwas 
Futures is particularly significant.    

The retail quarter development continues to progress with the vacation of the old livestock 
market site delivered, including the relocation of staff from Garrick to Franklin House, which 
was successfully managed by Property Services.     

The Herefordshire Branding Project is progressing well.  This includes communicating the 
various opportunities and potential of the county, as well as the creation of a concept which 
can be used as part of a wider campaign.  The brand was launched to the press on 6th 
October at Hampton Court and will be carefully managed over the next few months.  Work will 
continue in order to bring on board key businesses and brand champions.    

Work on the delivery of the Localities Strategy, as well as reviews of cultural services delivery 
are also progressing well.    

The Broadband Project continues to make good progress, 8 companies submitted PQQ (pre-
qualification questionnaire) with 6 companies proceeding to the next stage.    

The delivery of the Yazor Brook Flood Alleviation and Connect 2 Greenway schemes remains 
on programme for completion by the end of March 2012 and spring 2013 respectively.    

What has gone not so well? 

Despite the Councils efforts to promote the use of public transport there has been a failure to 
meet targets relating to bus patronage.  In light of increasing pressures on the subsidized bus 
network a high level public consultation was undertaken to capture the public’s views and 

56



 5

priorities for this network.  The results will inform the council’s decision on how to prioritise its 
services in the future.    

An increasing number of the domestic abuse cases heard at the Multi Agency Risk 
Assessment Conference (MARAC) are repeat cases.  As a result a forum meeting was 
convened in August where this was discussed.    Further actions are taking place in order to 
try and reduce the occurrence of repeated domestic abuse.    

The level of crime in the County is also currently higher than target, however this is in line with 
seasonal expectations and a re-profiling of the target may take place in order to reflect this.  
The Integrated Offender Management Group is making good progress with the selection 
progress for prolific and priority offenders.     

Concerns remain around the affordable homes delivery target and work is being undertaken 
by the Housing Needs and Development Service Manager in order to produce a revised 
target.  All options are being considered to increase delivery by reviewing partners, 
negotiating with developers and promoting affordable single plots.    

The project in relation to the construction/delivery of the link road from Edgar Street to the 
bottom of Aylestone Hill has been delayed.  A detailed review of funding opportunities has 
been conducted and will be considered as part of the Capital Programme.    

What has been done to rectify these problems? 

See above for detailed actions against each measure/project.     

In addition we review all areas of performance on a regular basis and concerns are raised with 
assistant directors and service managers to ensure that remedial actions are put in place to 
ensure we can deliver against agreed or revised targets in agreement with Herefordshire 
Public Services Leadership Team, and Cabinet Members.    

As a directorate we continue to review our action plans and targets for the forthcoming period 
through performance sessions at Directorate Management Team.    

Major Contract/Commissioning Agreements update: 

From a financial perspective all projected outturns for the major Places and Communities 
Commissioning agreements are currently in line with what was originally agreed, which is very 
pleasing.    

In terms of performance, all former National Indicator and Joint Corporate Plan targets 
relating to the waste collection and disposal contracts are being met.  With regards to the 
Amey Contract, a new reporting system has been implemented, which should improve the 
service to local parishes by working with them to identify defects within their Parishes.  All 
projects and outcomes for the Courtyard are on target for quarter 1.    

Areas of concern include the risks associated with not securing planning permission of the 
proposed Energy from Waste plant in Worcestershire; the planning inquiry for this will take 
place on the 20th November.  Outside of this the Contractors continue to meet or exceed the 
targets contained within the Waste PFI (Private Finance Initiative) (and relevant variations) for 
diversion from landfill.  A long list tender process to build the new Energy for Waste plant is 
also currently being evaluated by the contractor.  Another area of concern is the number of 
people using Halo facilities in the County as this is currently below target; work is taking place 
to increase joint working between Herefordshire Council and Halo with regards to customer 
feedback and also marketing in order to further improve the service and increase usage.   
Usage of gym and swim facilities is currently above target.    

12. Peoples Services  

57



 6

Commissioning 

What has gone well?  

• Work to build on the launch of personalisation and resource allocation system.    

• Some delivery lines of the cost improvement programme.    

• Joint approach to the challenges of the QIPP (Quality, Innovation, Prevention and 
Productivity framework) and Adult Social Care Cost Improvement Programme, led by the 
Deputy Chief Executive.    

• Initial work of interim programme director of adult social care has provided leadership and 
focus to key areas of the joint corporate plan and transformation agenda.    

• Support for schools choosing academy status.    

• Successful start of the academic year in terms of admissions (percentage of parents 
getting their first choice of school) and transport arrangements.    

What has not gone so well and how are issues being addressed?  

• Significant budget challenges across the health and social care economy, particularly for 
adults, including significant cost pressures due to back dated packages being identified.    

• Some areas are losing staff and therefore capacity or experiencing significant levels of 
sickness.    

What has been done to rectify these problems? 

• Work led by the Deputy Chief Executive to ensure a single approach across QIPP 
(Quality, Innovation, Prevention and Productivity framework) and Adult Social Care.    

• Engagement of regional support to develop our transformation approach.    

• Budget assurance work to ensure, following the transfer of services to 2gether and Wye 
Valley NHS Trust, there is clear budget accountability and robust budget management 
processes.    

• Review of all cost improvement programmes and QIPP (Quality, Innovation, Prevention 
and Productivity framework) programmes.  Work underway to establish alternatives to 
address budget shortfall.    

• Work underway to establish clear vision, principles and actions for adults in Herefordshire 
to be used in development with members, clinical commissioning group and other 
partners.    

Children & Young People  

What has gone well? 

• Significant improvements in early years and primary performance, according to the 
provisional 2011 examination results.  Improvement in the Early Years Foundation Stage 
Profile has been one of the biggest in the country.  Achievement in Key Stage 2, English 
and Maths in Herefordshire is above the national average, indicating an upward trend 
which, if continued, will move Herefordshire primary schools into the upper quartile of 
performance nationally.    

• Continuing good engagement of local stakeholders in the 7 locality Multi-Agency Groups 
resulting in early intervention and prevention services being implemented for vulnerable 
children and young people.    

58



 7

• Work to address social worker recruitment with corporate support 

What has not gone so well and how are issues being addressed?  

• Timeliness of initial assessments continues to be below target although there is a slow 
improvement trend.    

• Continuing high number of contacts to children’s social care not resulting in a social care 
service.    

• Slippage on the delivery of a number of service specifications within the Women, Children 
and Families Commissioning Programme.    

• Increase in the number of a high costs agency placements for looked after children as a 
result of 3 young people remanded to local authority care.    

• Some Initial Child Protection Conferences not taking place within 15 working days of the 
strategy meeting.    

What has been done to rectify these problems? 

• Work to address social worker recruitment being taken up with support from the 
Directorate of the Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Services.    

• Co-location of an officer from the Family Protection Unit with the Family Assessment and 
Safeguarding Team to more effectively filter and screen contacts from the police.    

• Roll out of targeted training to professionals on the Levels of Need policy (threshold 
criteria) to ensure that thresholds are clearly understood and applied.    

• Re-assessment of the service specifications expected to be produced leading to a 
prioritised programme of specifications that can be delivered in the current financial year.    

• Targeted assessment of 3 young people remanded to local authority care to consider their 
longer term needs and whether they can be cared for in a family environment.  Ongoing 
work to review residential placements to ensure value for money.    

• Revised, streamlined process and setup for initial and review child protection conferences 
developed for consideration by Herefordshire Safeguarding Children Board Steering 
Group in October 2011.    

Public Health 

What has gone well? 

• Smoking cessation performance has improved and is now on target and the QIPP 
(Quality, Innovation, Prevention and Productivity framework) financial savings target for 
reducing smoking related hospital admissions is achieving above target.     

• Environmental Health has piloted an out of hour’s noise complaints team on Friday and 
Saturday nights over the summer period.  The initial evaluation suggests it has been a 
successful service development.  Consideration is being given to establishing the service 
on a permanent basis.     

• MRSA performance has improved and is well within target, but an outbreak of Clostridium 
difficile (C diff) means there have been a high number of Clostridium difficile (C diff) cases.  
Outbreak control measures have been taken and the number of new cases of Clostridium 
difficile (C diff) has been brought back within a revised target.    

What has not gone so well and how are issues being addressed?  

59



 8

• The NHS constitution includes an entitlement to a free NHS Health Check once every five 
years for people age 40-74, and there is a requirement to establish an NHS Health Check 
programme in Herefordshire.  The national annual target is to offer a health check to 18% 
of the eligible population and is expected to be delivered as a 5-year programme that will 
result in 90% of the eligible population offered a health check.  The plan to implement the 
programme in Herefordshire is being finalised and the first offers of a Health Check will be 
made in October with full roll out of the scheme by January 2012, and 36% of the eligible 
population being offered a Health Check by March 2013.    

• Alcohol admission rates are rising year on year, and alcohol harm reduction is the initial 
focus for the shadow Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB) with the intention of agreeing 
an integrated strategy for alcohol harm reduction in December to inform 2012/13 
commissioning plans.  The licensing team, trading standards team, police and third sector 
have been involved in the integrated needs assessment being carried out to inform the 
strategy development.    

13. Corporate Services 

An overview of performance for Finance, Customers and Employees appears in Sections C, D 
and E.   For other areas of Corporate Services:  

What has gone well? 

• A Direction has been received from the NHS Pensions Agency for the transfer of NHS 
Employees to The Shared Services Partnership; the transfer will take place on 1 
November 2011.    

• There have been a number of Property related achievements: 

Asset Transfer of former Bulmer’s Bowling Club Pavilion to Herefordshire Cricket Limited 
for development of County Centre of Excellence (completed); 

Phase 1 of Hereford Leisure Pool refurbishment completed, phase 2 to commence end 
October; 

Hereford Centre opened on 8th August – deadline achieved; and 

Multi-agency offices (CYPD) all complete.    

• The Organisational Design Project continues to meet its objectives: 

- Corporate timeline on track; 

- Corporate reviews progressing – although improved clarity is required with regards 
to key milestones against which progress can be monitored; and 

- Change Champions playing a key role. 

• Herefordshire’s work on Equalities and Human Rights has been showcased at the Equality 
and Human Rights Commission in London in respect of the development of our Human 
Rights Charter and future delivery of outcomes.  The European Fundamental Rights 
Agency is also maintaining an interest in the work of the team.    

 

What has not gone so well? 

• Delivery of effective Health and Safety provision remains a corporate risk given demand 
and recruitment difficulties.    

60



 9

• Significant objections to the proposed staff car parking proposals have been raised by the 
Trade Unions.  Change Champions are also highlighting this as an issue impacting upon 
staff morale.     

• Unison are balloting their members about whether they are prepared to take strike action 
over the proposed revised national pension arrangements. Other Trade Unions are 
awaiting the outcome of national negotiations that are scheduled to conclude on 31 
October 2011. The Unison ballot ends on the 3rd November 2011 and the results should 
be available shortly afterwards. The impact of potential strike action on the 30 November 
2011 is being assessed with a focus on our critical services. 

What has been done to rectify these problems? 

• The new Resilience Forum has provided a new corporate focus for health and safety.  
Recruitment of a Health and Safety Adviser is underway.    

• Further engagement of Trade union members, staff and mangers is proposed in order to 
establish the best way of achieving the objectives set for this initiative.    

• The risk associated with industrial action to be added to the risk register and mitigation 
actions taken forward through the resilience group.    

B – Delivery of projects 

14. The majority of projects are being delivered to plan, although nine are currently reported as 
being behind schedule.  These are listed in Appendix 2b and, where applicable, also referred 
to in the directorate commentaries in paragraphs 11-13 above.    

Of those that are behind schedule, 5 are within the theme of ‘Improve Health Care and Social 
Care’.    

C – Finance 

15. As at 31st August 2011 the overall revenue budget position for 2011/12 shows a projected 
£2.75m overspend.  This is approximately 1.9% of the council’s £146.3m revenue budget 
(excluding Dedicated Schools Grant funding).    

The key area of concern continues to be the People’s Services Directorate, with a projected 
£3.39m overspend, which is being addressed.    

A detailed report on financial outturn appears elsewhere on today’s agenda.    

The Audit Commission anticipates issuing an unqualified opinion on both the statement of 
accounts for 2010/11 and the Council’s arrangements for securing value for money by the 
statutory deadline of 30 September 2011.  The Audit Commission has not identified any 
material or significant issues.  Significantly there are no important weaknesses in internal 
control and it has been noted that proper arrangements are in place to secure value for 
money.    

In 2010/11 the Council was required for the first time, to prepare financial statements under 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and The Audit Commission commented 
that this project was very well managed.    

Finally, the Audit Commission reached an unqualified conclusion stating that the Council had 
adequate arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resources 

61



 10

D – Customers (Corporate Plan indicators identified in bold) 

16. Service Delivery 

Organisational Reputation (Council 40%, PCT 65% approval rating) – Performance 
against both measures are derived from annual/ biannual surveys. Ongoing performance 
therefore needs to be measured by proxy. In this instance this is progress against the 
Organisational Communications and Reputation Management Strategy action plan. Progress 
against each section of the 6 sections of the plan is broadly on track. Of note, the review of 
Herefordshire Matters which has begun through feedback requested through the last edition. 
Initial results show an approximate 75% approval rating  

This area is also primarily affected by LICS02 ‘% of calls answered within 15 secs’ (57.3%).  
Here performance has held up well with that of the same period last year. There have been a 
number of contributing factors to the under-performance to date, including the move to the 
new contact centre and a delay in the issue of council tax reminders.  Further improvements 
to the performance management processes are planned which should gain additional 
performance.  For LICS 06 ‘% of issues resolved at first contact (60%). Performance is 
broadly in-line with that of the same period last year. The Customer Organisation/ Digital 
Channels projects will have a positive impact on performance in this area. For LICS1 ‘Did you 
get the outcome you wanted’ (87%) a small number of returns has skewed performance in 
period – however some clearly identifiable issues have contributed to performance which will 
be addresses through the SLA review process. 

Service Quality 

LICS5 – Reduction in avoidable contact (20%): There has been a significant improvement 
year to date compared with 2010 / 2011 where performance was regularly around 30% or 
more. Current performance is 19.98%. Customer satisfaction surveys will be reviewed at SLA 
meetings to ensure a consistent approach is taken to reducing avoidable contacts. 

For LICS4 ‘Overall satisfaction with the service provided’ (80%) - There is some detailed 
analysis of the reasons cited by customers for this answer underway. Where issues are 
clearly identified, customer service managers will work with service managers to rectify the 
problems through the review of information and service delivery processes 

LICIU1 Satisfaction of complaint handling (90%) - The number of satisfaction surveys 
returned is low however, all have been positive and performance is therefore currently 100%. 
This can be attributed to the work of the Customer insight Unit acting and advocating on 
behalf of complainants to get issues resolved quickly and definitively. Work is underway to 
increase the overall level of returns. 

LI.ICT.PI.03 Better Connected annual audit of website (3*) – The digital channels project 
will result in the implementation of many elements which will contribute to the achievement of 
target. However, for 2011/2012 the audit will likely occur just before the new website gets 
implemented. Nevertheless an action plan has been developed to attain the highest possible 
score – following the recently announced changes to the measurement of this audit. 

For LICS2 ‘Whether you felt listened to and understood  ‘(87%) and LICS3 ‘Politeness and 
courtesy of staff’ (95%).  Performance in both areas year on year is favourable. A formal 
training package is currently being developed for roll out later in the year, which will address 
these areas of service quality.  

Service Failure 

62



 11

Number of complaints escalated to the ombudsman (council 5%, PCT 5%) – 
Performance against this measure is strong with just 0.5% of complaints escalated to the local 
government ombudsman and 5% to the Health and Parliamentary Ombudsman. This 
demonstrates an increase in performance for the council in particular, compared to previous 
years. 

For LICS7 Call Centre Abandon Rate (8.9%) performance year on year has been quite strong. 
However, the clear decreasing trend in performance has been the result of the factors 
described above.  Year-to-date performance is circa 6.4%. These specific issues are being 
addressed and it is expected that performance will return to target levels within the financial 
year. 

E – Employees 

17. Currently only sickness absence within the Council and NHS Herefordshire is reported in the 
Integrated Corporate Performance Report; this is currently better than target.    

F – Risks 

18. Further improvements have been made to risk management processes, and key performance 
risks are described in section A above.    

Community Impact 

19. Delivering the Joint Corporate Plan is central to achieving the positive impact that 
Herefordshire Public Services wishes to make across Herefordshire and all its communities.    

Financial Implications 

20. None.    

Legal Implications 

21. None.    

Risk Management 

22. By highlighting progress against the Joint Corporate Plan, including the major risks to 
achievement and how they are being mitigated, this report is an essential component of the 
management of risks.    

Consultees 

23. None.     

Appendices 

Appendix 1 Key to what the symbols used in Appendices 2a and 2b represent, and 
a list of the themes and outcomes with lead directors 

Appendix 2a Exception report for those measures and projects that are ahead of 
target; and 

63



 12

Appendix 2b Exception report for those measures and projects that are behind 
target 

Appendix 3 Proposals from People’s Services Directorate for refreshing Theme 2 
of the Joint Corporate Plan 

Appendix 3a Current Joint Corporate Plan Theme 2 

Appendix 3b Proposed Joint Corporate Plan Theme 2 

Background Papers 

24. None.    

64



Appendix 1 

12 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Measures Symbols 
 

Projects 

More than 10% ahead of 
target 

 Ahead of Plan 

Achieved or exceeded 
target by less than 10% 

 On schedule 

Up to 5% behind target  N/A 
More than 5% behind 

target 
 Behind Plan 

Better than the same 
period last year 

 N/A 

Same performance as last 
year 

 N/A 

Worse than the same 
period last year 

 N/A 

65



Appendix 1 

13 
 

List of Joint Corporate Plan themes and outcomes 
 

Theme and Outcome Lead Director 
Theme 1 Create a thriving economy 
HPS 1.1 The regeneration of Herefordshire with a particular focus on Hereford City Places and Communities 
HPS 1.2 The delivery and maintenance of key infrastructure including actions to reduce congestion Places and Communities 
HPS 1.3 Growing businesses, jobs & wage levels. Places and Communities 
HPS 1.4 The development of employment skills, including access to higher education Places and Communities 
HPS 1.5 A reduction in health inequalities for the working age population People’s Services 
HPS 1.6 Improved access to superfast broadband and wider use of technologies Places and Communities 
Theme 2 Improve health care and social care 
HPS 2.1 Improved intervention and support for older people and keeping them safe People’s Services 
HPS 2.2 A robust & healthy provider market People’s Services 
HPS 2.3 Financial balance across Herefordshire’s health & social care economy People’s Services 
HPS 2.4 The development of a new local commissioning infrastructure DCX and Corporate Services 
HPS 2.5 Good quality corporate and clinical governance standards are embedded in all services provided TBC 
HPS 2.6 A reduction in health inequalities for frail, elderly people People’s Services 
HPS 2.7 More people retaining their independence through greater choice and control People’s Services 
Theme 3 Raise standards for children and young people 
HPS 3.1 Sustainable educational provision throughout Herefordshire People’s Services 
HPS 3.2 Improved intervention and support for children & young people and keeping them safe People’s Services 
HPS 3.3 Improved performance by early years and primary school pupils including vulnerable groups relative to 
their peers People’s Services 

HPS 3.4 Reduced child poverty People’s Services 
HPS 3.5 Families & communities that are able to support all children & young people effectively People’s Services 
HPS 3.6 A reduction in health inequalities for children & young people People’s Services 
Theme 4 Promote self reliant local communities 
HPS 4.1 Vibrant cultural opportunities Places and Communities 
HPS 4.2 Safe places where people feel secure Places and Communities 
HPS 4.3 Enhanced local democracy and community engagement. Places and Communities 

6
6



Appendix 1 

14 
 

Theme and Outcome Lead Director 
HPS 4.4 Ways of working that reflect the needs and priorities of people & place Places and Communities 
HPS 4.5  A balanced housing market to meet resident’s needs Places and Communities 
Theme 5 Create a resilient Herefordshire 
HPS 5.1 The preservation and enhancement of our environment. Places and Communities 
HPS 5.2 Accessible services and countryside Places and Communities 
HPS 5.3 A strong regional and national reputation DCX and Corporate Services 
HPS 5.4 The protection of people’s health & wellbeing People’s Services 
HPS 5.5 Increased equality of opportunity DCX and Corporate Services 
HPS 5.6 Sustainable public transport provision Places and Communities 
Theme 6 Commission the right services 
HPS 6.1 High quality assessments of need NHS Resources and Delivery 
HPS 6.2 Streamlined, working practices DCX and Corporate Services 
HPS 6.3 High levels of customer and citizen satisfaction DCX and Corporate Services 
HPS 6.4 A high quality workforce DCX and Corporate Services 
 

6
7



68



A
pp
en
di
x 
2a
 

 
15

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 –
 E
xc
ep
ti
o
n
s 
(G
re
en
 –
 1
0%
 o
r 
m
o
re
 a
h
ea
d
 o
f 
ta
rg
et
) 

T
h
em
e 
&
 M
ea
su
re
 

 
F
re
q
u
en
cy
 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)
 

D
o
T
 s
in
ce
 

la
st
 y
ea
r 

D
at
e 
o
f 

Ju
d
g
em
en
t 

A
ct
u
al
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)
 

T
ar
g
et
 

(Y
ea
r 
T
o
 

D
at
e)
 

Im
p
ro
ve
 h
ea
lt
h
 c
ar
e 
an
d
 s
o
ci
al
 c
ar
e 

C
om

pl
y 
w
ith
 H
ea
lth
ca
re
 A
cq
ui
re
d 
In
fe
ct
io
n 
ta
rg
et
s 
- 

M
R
S
A
 

S
m
al
le
r 

is
 

be
tte
r 

M
on
th
ly
 

 
n/
a 

31
/0
8/
20
11
 

0 
2 

T
he
 a
ve
ra
ge
 w
ee
kl
y 
ra
te
 o
f d

el
ay
ed
 tr
an
sf
er
s 
of
 c
ar
e 

fr
om

 a
ll 
N
H
S
 h
os
pi
ta
ls
 p
er
 1
00
,0
00
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
ag
ed
 

18
 o
r 
ov
er
. 

S
m
al
le
r 

is
 

be
tte
r 

M
on
th
ly
 

 
 

31
/0
7/
20
11
 

9.
77
 

18
.6
 

C
re
at
e 
a 
re
si
lie
n
t 
H
er
ef
o
rd
sh
ir
e 

N
um

be
r 
of
 S
ch
oo
ls
 ta
ki
ng
 p
ar
t i
n 
S
ch
oo
ls
 E
ne
rg
y 

C
ha
lle
ng

e 

B
ig
ge

r 
is
 

be
tte
r 

M
on
th
ly
 

 
n/
a 

31
/0
7/
20
11
 

16
 

10
 

%
 o
f c
om

pl
ai
nt
s 
re
ce
iv
ed
 th

at
 a
re
 r
ef
er
re
d 
to
 th

e 
om

bu
ds
m
an
 (
LA

) 

S
m
al
le
r 

is
 

be
tte
r 

M
on
th
ly
 

 
n/
a 

31
/0
7/
20
11
 

1.
82
 

5 

%
 o
f c
om

pl
ai
nt
s 
re
ce
iv
ed
 th

at
 a
re
 r
ef
er
re
d 
to
 th

e 
om

bu
ds
m
an
 (
H
ea
lth
) 

S
m
al
le
r 

is
 

be
tte
r 

M
on
th
ly
 

 
n/
a 

31
/0
7/
20
11
 

1.
25
 

5 

N
o.
 o
f p

eo
pl
e 
ki
lle
d 
or
 s
er
io
us
ly
 in
ju
re
d 
in
 r
oa
d 
tr
af
fic
 

co
lli
si
on
s 

S
m
al
le
r 

is
 

be
tte
r 

M
on
th
ly
 

 
 

31
/0
7/
20
11
 

47
 

58
 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 t
h
e 
ri
g
h
t 
se
rv
ic
es
 

 S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 
w
ith
 C
om

pl
ai
nt
 H
an
dl
in
g 

B
ig
ge

r 
is
 

be
tte
r 

M
on
th
ly
 

 
n/
a 

31
/0
7/
20
11
 

10
0 

90
 

A
ve
ra
ge

 s
ic
kn
es
s 
F
T
E
 (
C
ou
nc
il)
 

S
m
al
le
r 

is
 

be
tte
r 

M
on
th
ly
 

 
 

31
/0
5/
20
11
 

3.
15
 

4.
1 

69



A
pp
en
di
x 
2a
 

 
16

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 –
 E
xc
ep
ti
o
n
s 
(G
re
en
 –
 1
0%
 o
r 
m
o
re
 a
h
ea
d
 o
f 
ta
rg
et
) 

T
h
em
e 
&
 M
ea
su
re
 

 
F
re
q
u
en
cy
 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)
 

D
o
T
 s
in
ce
 

la
st
 y
ea
r 

D
at
e 
o
f 

Ju
d
g
em
en
t 

A
ct
u
al
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)
 

T
ar
g
et
 

(Y
ea
r 
T
o
 

D
at
e)
 

A
ve
ra
ge

 s
ic
kn
es
s 
F
T
E
 (
P
C
T
) 

S
m
al
le
r 

is
 

be
tte
r 

M
on
th
ly
 

 
 

30
/0
6/
20
11
 

2.
17
 

3.
9 

 

70



A
pp
en
di
x 
2a
 

 
17

 

P
ro
je
ct
s 
– 
E
xc
ep
ti
o
n
s 
(G
re
en
 –
 a
h
ea
d
 o
f 
sc
h
ed
u
le
) 

P
ro
je
ct
 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
 

O
ff
ic
er
 

L
at
es
t 
ra
ti
n
g
 

D
u
e 
D
at
e 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 t
h
e 
ri
g
h
t 
se
rv
ic
es
 

C
us
to
m
er
 O
rg
an
is
at
io
n 
P
ro
je
ct
 (
C
R
M
 / 
S
el
f S

er
vi
ce
) 

P
ro
gr
am

m
e 

M
an
ag

er
 (
C
us
to
m
er
 

O
rg
an
is
at
io
n)
 

 
31
/0
3-
20
12
 

 

71



72



A
pp
en
di
x 
2b
 

 
18

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 –
 E
xc
ep
ti
o
n
s 
(R
ed
 a
n
d
 A
m
b
er
 -
 b
eh
in
d
 t
ar
g
et
) 

T
h
em
e 
&
 M
ea
su
re
 

 
F
re
q
u
en
cy
 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)
 

D
o
T
 s
in
ce
 

la
st
 y
ea
r 

D
at
e 
o
f 

Ju
d
g
em
en
t 

A
ct
u
al
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)
 

T
ar
g
et
 

(Y
ea
r 
T
o
 

D
at
e)
 

C
re
at
e 
a 
th
ri
vi
n
g
 e
co
n
o
m
y 

P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ag
ed

 4
0-

74
 to

 b
e 

of
fe

re
d 

an
 N

H
S

 H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 
 

n/
a 

30
/0

6/
20

11
 

0 
18

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  I
t i
s 
in
te
nd
ed
 th
at
 th
is
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
op
er
at
io
na
l f
ro
m
 1
st
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
1 
w
ith
 G
P
 p
ra
ct
ic
es
 d
el
iv
er
in
g 
th
e 
H
ea
lth
 C
he
ck
 

in
vi
ta
tio
n,
 a
ss
es
sm
en
t a
nd
 d
is
ea
se
 fo
llo
w
 u
p 
el
em
en
ts
 o
f t
he
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
an
d 
H
A
LO
 L
ei
su
re
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
de
liv
er
in
g 
ad
di
tio
na
l l
ife
st
yl
e 
su
pp
or
t 

th
ro
ug
h 
LI
F
T
 fo
r 
hi
gh
 r
is
k 
pa
tie
nt
s.
 T
en
de
r 
w
ai
ve
r 
ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 h
av
e 
be
en
 s
ub
m
itt
ed
 to
 N
H
S
H
 fo
r 
H
ea
lth
 S
m
ar
t I
T
 s
of
tw
ar
e 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 th
e 
he
al
th
 

ch
ec
k 
as
se
ss
m
en
t p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
an
d 
to
 e
xt
en
d 
th
e 
LI
F
T
 c
on
tr
ac
t t
o 
su
pp
or
t p
at
ie
nt
s 
w
ith
 a
n 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
hi
gh
 r
is
k 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
a 
he
al
th
 c
he
ck
. I
n 
th
e 

ev
en
t t
ha
t t
he
 w
ai
ve
rs
 a
re
 n
ot
 g
ra
nt
ed
 th
en
 a
 v
ie
w
 w
ill
 n
ee
d 
to
 b
e 
ta
ke
n 
as
 to
 w
he
th
er
 th
e 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
de
fe
rr
ed
 w
hi
le
 a
 fu
ll 
co
m
pe
tit
iv
e 

te
nd
er
in
g 
ex
er
ci
se
 is
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
or
 w
he
th
er
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y 
m
od
el
 is
 r
ev
is
ed
 to
 r
ef
le
ct
 e
le
m
en
ts
 o
f w
ha
t i
s 
ac
hi
ev
ab
le
 w
ith
in
 c
ur
re
nt
 

re
so
ur
ce
s 
an
d 
ca
pa
ci
ty
. 

Im
p
ro
ve
 h
ea
lt
h
 c
ar
e 
an
d
 s
o
ci
al
 c
ar
e 

A
ve

ra
ge

 le
ng

th
 o

f s
ta

y 
fo

r 
ol

de
r 

pe
op

le
 

S
m

al
le

r 
is

 
be

tte
r 

M
on

th
ly

 
 

n/
a 

31
/0

7/
20

11
 

4.
46

 
4.

18
 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
   

P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

a 
st

ro
ke

 w
ho

 
sp

en
d 

at
 le

as
t 9

0%
 o

f t
he

ir 
tim

e 
in

 a
cu

te
 h

os
pi

ta
l o

n 
a 

st
ro

ke
 u

ni
t 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
M

on
th

ly
 

 
n/

a 
31

/0
8/

20
11

 
77

 
80

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  A
s 
re
po
rt
ed
 p
re
vi
ou
sl
y,
 o
ve
r 
th
e 
pa
st
 1
8 
m
on
th
s 
co
m
m
is
si
on
er
s 
ha
ve
 w
or
ke
d 
cl
os
el
y 
w
ith
 H
er
ef
or
d 
H
os
pi
ta
ls
 T
ru
st
/W
ye
 V
al
le
y 

N
H
S
 T
ru
st
 c
ol
le
ag
ue
s 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 in
 s
tr
ok
e 
ca
re
 a
nd
 N
H
S
H
 h
as
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
th
at
 th
e 
T
ru
st
 B
oa
rd
 is
 c
om
m
itt
ed
 to
 im
pr
ov
in
g 

th
e 
qu
al
ity
 o
f s
tr
ok
e 
ca
re
. 

N
H
S
H
 w
ro
te
 to
 th
e 
W
ye
 V
al
le
y 
T
ru
st
 C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
se
tti
ng
 in
te
rim
 lo
ca
l t
ar
ge
ts
 to
 b
e 
ac
hi
ev
ed
 d
ur
in
g 
Ju
ne
, w
ith
 th
e 
fu
ll 
na
tio
na
l t
ar
ge
ts
 to
 b
e 

m
et
 fr
om
 J
ul
y 
on
w
ar
ds
.  
It 
w
as
 s
ta
te
d 
th
at
 fa
ilu
re
 to
 d
o 
th
is
 w
ou
ld
 r
es
ul
t i
n 
a 
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 N
ot
ic
e/
C
on
tr
ac
t Q
ue
ry
 N
ot
ic
e 
be
in
g 
is
su
ed
.  
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 

ta
ke
n 
fo
rw
ar
d 
vi
a 
C
on
tr
ac
t M
on
ito
rin
g 
m
ee
tin
gs
. 

P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
at

 h
ig

h 
ris

k 
fr

om
 a

 s
tr

ok
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
a 

T
IA

 w
ho

 a
re

 a
ss

es
se

d 
an

d 
tr

ea
te

d 
w

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
M

on
th

ly
 

 
n/

a 
31

/0
8/

20
11

 
50

 
60

 

73



A
pp
en
di
x 
2b
 

 
19

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 –
 E
xc
ep
ti
o
n
s 
(R
ed
 a
n
d
 A
m
b
er
 -
 b
eh
in
d
 t
ar
g
et
) 

T
h
em
e 
&
 M
ea
su
re
 

 
F
re
q
u
en
cy
 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)
 

D
o
T
 s
in
ce
 

la
st
 y
ea
r 

D
at
e 
o
f 

Ju
d
g
em
en
t 

A
ct
u
al
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)

 

T
ar
g
et
 

(Y
ea
r 
T
o
 

D
at
e)

 
R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  A
s 
re
po
rt
ed
 p
re
vi
ou
sl
y,
 o
ve
r 
th
e 
pa
st
 1
8 
m
on
th
s 
co
m
m
is
si
on
er
s 
ha
ve
 w
or
ke
d 
cl
os
el
y 
w
ith
 H
er
ef
or
d 
H
os
pi
ta
ls
 T
ru
st
/W
ye
 V
al
le
y 

N
H
S
 T
ru
st
 c
ol
le
ag
ue
s 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 in
 s
tr
ok
e 
ca
re
 a
nd
 N
H
S
H
 h
as
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
th
at
 th
e 
T
ru
st
 B
oa
rd
 is
 c
om
m
itt
ed
 to
 im
pr
ov
in
g 

th
e 
qu
al
ity
 o
f s
tr
ok
e 
ca
re
. 

N
H
S
H
 w
ro
te
 to
 th
e 
W
ye
 V
al
le
y 
T
ru
st
 C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
se
tti
ng
 in
te
rim
 lo
ca
l t
ar
ge
ts
 to
 b
e 
ac
hi
ev
ed
 d
ur
in
g 
Ju
ne
, w
ith
 th
e 
fu
ll 
na
tio
na
l t
ar
ge
ts
 to
 b
e 

m
et
 fr
om
 J
ul
y 
on
w
ar
ds
.  
It 
w
as
 s
ta
te
d 
th
at
 fa
ilu
re
 to
 d
o 
th
is
 w
ou
ld
 r
es
ul
t i
n 
a 
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 N
ot
ic
e/
C
on
tr
ac
t Q
ue
ry
 N
ot
ic
e 
be
in
g 
is
su
ed
.  
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 

ta
ke
n 
fo
rw
ar
d 
vi
a 
C
on
tr
ac
t M
on
ito
rin
g 
m
ee
tin
gs
. 

Q
IP

P
 s

av
in

gs
 p

la
n 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 
 

n/
a 

30
/0

6/
20

11
 

2.
48

 
3.

66
 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  O
ve
ra
ll 
sa
vi
ng
s 
no
t y
et
 a
ch
ie
ve
d.
 Q
IP
P
 s
ch
em
es
 a
re
 r
un
ni
ng
 a
t a
 d
el
iv
er
y 
ra
te
 o
f c
irc
a 
68
%
 o
f e
xp
ec
te
d 
de
liv
er
y 
at
 m
on
th
 4
. 

M
or
e 
de
ta
ile
d 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
pr
ov
id
ed
 in
 Q
IP
P
 s
to
ck
 ta
ke
. 

A
S

C
 C

os
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 
 

n/
a 

30
/0

6/
20

11
 

72
1,

12
4 

1.
5 

m
 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  F
or
 fu
ll 
co
m
m
en
ta
ry
 p
le
as
e 
se
e 
C
IP
 c
om
m
en
ta
ry
 c
al
cu
la
te
d 
by
 s
av
in
gs
 o
f t
w
el
fth
s 
ov
er
 th
e 
ye
ar
 a
nd
 s
av
in
gs
 to
 d
at
e.
 

C
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 H
ea

lth
ca

re
 A

cq
ui

re
d 

In
fe

ct
io

n 
ta

rg
et

s 
- 

C
.d

iff
 

S
m

al
le

r 
is

 
be

tte
r 

M
on

th
ly

 
 

n/
a 

31
/0

7/
20

11
 

50
 

30
 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
   

N
um

be
r 

of
 a

du
lts

, o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
ca

re
rs

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
D

ire
ct

 P
ay

m
en

t a
nd

/o
r 

an
 

In
di

vi
du

al
 B

ud
ge

t p
er

 1
00

,0
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

ag
ed

 1
8 

or
 

ov
er

 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
M

on
th

ly
 

 
 

31
/0

8/
20

11
 

12
.5

8 
40

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  T
he
 ta
rg
et
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 is
 4
0%
 b
y 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
2.
 It
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
th
at
 s
om
e 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 p
ie
ce
s 
of
 w
or
k 
ar
ou
nd
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 a
nd
 

sy
st
em
s 
ne
ed
ed
 to
 ta
ke
 p
la
ce
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 th
is
. 

W
e 
ha
ve
 tr
ai
ne
d 
30
0+
 fr
on
tli
ne
 p
ra
ct
iti
on
er
s 
an
d 
la
un
ch
ed
 n
ew
 s
up
po
rt
ed
 a
ss
es
sm
en
t f
ra
m
ew
or
k.
 S
ig
ni
fic
an
t c
ha
ng
es
 h
av
e 
be
en
 m
ad
e 
to
 

F
ra
m
ew
or
k-
i t
o 
su
pp
or
t t
he
 u
p-
ta
ke
 o
f s
el
f-
di
re
ct
ed
 s
up
po
rt
. A
s 
a 
re
su
lt 
of
 th
es
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
an
om
al
ie
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
in
 th
e 
m
on
ito
rin
g 
ag
ai
ns
t 

th
is
 in
di
ca
to
r 
w
hi
ch
 h
as
 im
pa
ct
ed
 o
n 
th
e 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 fi
gu
re
 r
ep
or
te
d 
fo
r 
Ju
ly
. T
he
 la
te
st
 A
ug
us
t d
at
a 
sh
ow
s 
an
 im
pr
ov
em
en
t t
o 
12
.5
8%
 a
nd
 w
e 

74



A
pp
en
di
x 
2b
 

 
20

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 –
 E
xc
ep
ti
o
n
s 
(R
ed
 a
n
d
 A
m
b
er
 -
 b
eh
in
d
 t
ar
g
et
) 

T
h
em
e 
&
 M
ea
su
re
 

 
F
re
q
u
en
cy
 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)
 

D
o
T
 s
in
ce
 

la
st
 y
ea
r 

D
at
e 
o
f 

Ju
d
g
em
en
t 

A
ct
u
al
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)

 

T
ar
g
et
 

(Y
ea
r 
T
o
 

D
at
e)

 
ar
e 
ex
pe
ct
in
g 
th
is
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 to
 in
cr
ea
se
 a
s 
w
e 
m
ov
e 
to
w
ar
ds
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2.

 
R
ai
se
 s
ta
n
d
ar
d
s 
fo
r 
ch
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
eo
p
le
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 s

ch
oo

ls
 in

 a
n 

O
fs

te
d 

ca
te

go
ry

 
S

m
al

le
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
M

on
th

ly
 

 
n/

a 
31

/0
7/

20
11

 
1 

0 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  O
ne
 p
rim
ar
y 
sc
ho
ol
 r
em
ai
ns
 in
 a
n 
O
fs
te
d 
ca
te
go
ry
 -
 s
pe
ci
al
 m
ea
su
re
s 
- 
bu
t i
s 
m
ak
in
g 
go
od
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
to
w
ar
ds
 m
ee
tin
g 
its
 

ta
rg
et
s 
an
d 
is
 a
nt
ic
ip
at
ed
 to
 b
e 
re
m
ov
ed
 fr
om
 th
e 
ca
te
go
ry
 a
t i
ts
 n
ex
t i
ns
pe
ct
io
n 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

iti
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 1
0 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s.
 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
M

on
th

ly
 

 
n/

a 
31

/0
7/

20
11

 
50

.1
 

75
 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 is
 im
pr
ov
in
g 
fr
om
 a
 lo
w
 b
as
e.
  S
ta
ffi
ng
 in
 th
e 
te
am
 is
 n
ow
 a
t f
ul
l e
st
ab
lis
hm
en
t b
ut
 w
or
k 
is
 o
ng
oi
ng
 to
 im
pr
ov
e 
th
e 

w
ay
 in
 w
hi
ch
 it
 w
or
ks
 a
nd
 m
an
ag
em
en
t c
ap
ac
ity
 to
 s
ig
n 
of
f e
le
ct
ro
ni
c 
as
se
ss
m
en
ts
.  
A
 n
ew
 m
od
el
 o
f w
or
ki
ng
 w
en
t l
iv
e 
on
 2
5 
Ju
ly
 2
01
1.
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

on
ta

ct
s 

an
d 

re
fe

rr
al

s 
no

t r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
M

on
th

ly
 

 
n/

a 
31

/0
7/

20
11

 
26

.4
 

30
 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  M
an
y 
of
 th
e 
co
nt
ac
ts
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
ar
e 
ac
tu
al
ly
 n
ot
ifi
ca
tio
ns
 o
f i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
an
d 
re
qu
es
ts
 fo
r 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
an
d 
as
 s
uc
h,
 w
ou
ld
 n
ot
 b
e 

re
fe
rr
al
s 
fo
r 
so
ci
al
 c
ar
e 
se
rv
ic
es
.  
W
or
k 
is
 u
nd
er
w
ay
 w
ith
 th
e 
po
lic
e 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 
th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 c
on
ta
ct
s 
th
at
 a
re
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
on
ly
, i
nc
lu
di
ng
 th
e 
co
-

lo
ca
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
F
am
ily
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
U
ni
t w
ith
 th
e 
F
am
ily
 A
ss
es
sm
en
t a
nd
 S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
T
ea
m
 fr
om
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
11
 a
nd
 th
e 
ap
po
in
tm
en
t o
f a
 

D
et
ec
tiv
e 
S
er
ge
an
t p
os
t t
o 
jo
in
 th
e 
fr
on
t l
in
e 
so
ci
al
 c
ar
e 
de
sk
. 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 h

ig
h 

co
st

 
ag

en
cy

 p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
M

on
th

ly
 

 
n/

a 
31

/0
7/

20
11

 
2 

3 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  F
ro
m
 A
pr
il 
to
 J
un
e,
 g
oo
d 
pr
og
re
ss
 h
ad
 b
ee
n 
m
ad
e 
in
 b
eg
in
ni
ng
 to
 s
ee
 th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 r
es
id
en
tia
l p
la
ce
m
en
ts
 r
ed
uc
in
g.
  

H
ow
ev
er
, i
n 
Ju
ly
, t
hr
ee
 te
en
ag
e 
bo
ys
 w
er
e 
ta
ke
n 
in
to
 s
ec
ur
e 
ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
a 
se
rio
us
 o
ffe
nc
e,
 w
er
e 
su
bs
eq
ue
nt
ly
 r
em
an
de
d 
in
to
 lo
ca
l 

au
th
or
ity
 c
ar
e 
an
d 
re
qu
ire
d 
pl
ac
em
en
ts
 o
ut
si
de
 o
f t
he
 H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 a
re
a.
  A
ll 
w
er
e 
pl
ac
ed
 in
 c
os
tly
 r
es
id
en
tia
l p
la
ce
m
en
ts
.  
P
la
ns
 a
re
 n
ow
 in
 

pl
ac
e 
to
 a
ss
es
s 
th
os
e 
th
re
e 
te
en
ag
er
s 
an
d 
co
ns
id
er
 th
ei
r 
lo
ng
 te
rm
 n
ee
ds
 in
 o
rd
er
 to
 id
en
tif
y 
w
he
th
er
 th
ey
 c
an
 b
e 
ca
re
d 
fo
r 
in
 a
 fa
m
ily
 

en
vi
ro
nm
en
t. 
 F
ur
th
er
 w
or
k 
co
nt
in
ue
s 
to
 r
ev
ie
w
 r
es
id
en
tia
l p
la
ce
m
en
ts
. 

75



A
pp
en
di
x 
2b
 

 
21

K
ey
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 In
d
ic
at
o
rs
 –
 E
xc
ep
ti
o
n
s 
(R
ed
 a
n
d
 A
m
b
er
 -
 b
eh
in
d
 t
ar
g
et
) 

T
h
em
e 
&
 M
ea
su
re
 

 
F
re
q
u
en
cy
 

o
f 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)
 

D
o
T
 s
in
ce
 

la
st
 y
ea
r 

D
at
e 
o
f 

Ju
d
g
em
en
t 

A
ct
u
al
 

(Y
ea
r 
to
 

D
at
e)

 

T
ar
g
et
 

(Y
ea
r 
T
o
 

D
at
e)

 
P
ro
m
o
te
 s
el
f 
re
lia
n
t 
lo
ca
l c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 

N
um

be
r 

of
 P

eo
pl

e 
us

in
g 

H
al

o 
Le

is
ur

e 
F

ac
ili

tie
s 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
M

on
th

ly
 

 
n/

a 
31

/0
8/

20
11

 
53

6,
45

2 
57

0,
84

9 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
   

R
ep

ea
t i

nc
id

en
ts

 o
f d

om
es

tic
 a

bu
se

 c
as

es
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 
at

 M
A

R
A

C
 

S
m

al
le

r 
is

 
be

tte
r 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

 
n/

a 
30

/0
6/

20
11

 
38

 
30

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  1
2 
m
on
th
 r
ol
lin
g 
to
ta
l t
o 
30
th
 J
un
e 
20
11
. 3
8%
 o
f c
as
es
 h
ea
rd
 a
t M
A
R
A
C
 w
er
e 
re
pe
at
 c
as
es
. D
om
es
tic
 A
bu
se
 F
or
um
 m
ee
tin
g 

he
ld
 in
 A
ug
us
t w
he
re
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 w
as
 d
is
cu
ss
ed
. F
ur
th
er
 d
is
cu
ss
io
ns
 b
ei
ng
 h
el
d.
 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
   

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 d

el
iv

er
ed

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 s

oc
ia

l r
en

te
d 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 
ho

us
in

g,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

t p
ric

es
 o

r 
re

nt
s 

ab
ov

e 
th

os
e 

of
 s

oc
ia

l-r
en

t b
ut

 b
el

ow
 m

ar
ke

t p
ric

es
 o

r 
re

nt
s.

 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 

 
 

30
/0

6/
20

11
 

22
 

30
 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  D
el
iv
er
y 
is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 b
el
ow
 ta
rg
et
 w
ith
 c
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t m
ee
tin
g 
ov
er
al
l t
ar
ge
t f
ol
lo
w
in
g 
a 
qu
ar
te
rly
 r
ev
ie
w
.  
W
e 
ar
e 
no
w
 

re
vi
ew
in
g 
al
l s
ite
s 
fo
r 
po
te
nt
ia
l d
el
iv
er
y 
th
is
 y
ea
r,
 c
on
si
de
rin
g 
la
nd
 in
 th
e 
S
H
LA
A
 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
in
g 
un
de
r 
U
D
P
 p
ol
ic
ie
s,
 a
s 
w
el
l a
s 
su
pp
or
tin
g 

sc
he
m
es
 th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
H
C
A
 fu
nd
in
g 
fo
r 
eq
ui
ty
 s
ha
re
s 
di
re
ct
 w
ith
 d
ev
el
op
er
s.
 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 t
h
e 
ri
g
h
t 
se
rv
ic
es
 

 O
ve

ra
ll 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 (
bi

-
m

th
ly

) 

B
ig

ge
r 

is
 

be
tte

r 
B

i-m
on

th
ly

 
 

 
31

/0
7/

20
11

 
80

 
85

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
n:
  Y
T
D
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 is
 c
om
pa
ra
bl
e 
to
 th
e 
20
10
 -
 2
01
1 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
. 

T
he
 fr
eq
ue
nc
y 
of
 is
su
in
g 
th
e 
sa
tis
fa
ct
io
n 
su
rv
ey
s 
ha
s 
ch
an
ge
d;
 th
e 
ch
an
ge
 in
 fr
eq
ue
nc
y 
m
ay
 h
av
e 
an
 im
pa
ct
 o
n 
th
e 
cu
st
om
er
 r
es
po
ns
e.
 In
 

ad
di
tio
n 
to
 th
e 
ch
an
ge
 o
f f
re
qu
en
cy
 o
f t
he
 s
ur
ve
y,
 th
er
e 
ha
s 
be
en
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t c
ha
ng
es
 w
ith
in
 s
er
vi
ce
 a
re
as
, d
ur
in
g 
an
y 
pe
rio
d 
of
 p
la
nn
ed
 c
ha
ng
e,
 

it 
is
 fa
irl
y 
ty
pi
ca
l t
o 
se
e 
an
 in
iti
al
 d
ow
n 
tu
rn
 in
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 d
ur
in
g 
in
iti
al
 p
er
io
ds
 o
f c
ha
ng
e,
 h
ow
ev
er
 o
n 
th
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n 
to
 s
er
vi
ce
 b
us
in
es
s 
pl
an
s 

de
liv
er
 th
e 
lo
ng
er
 te
rm
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
 w
e 
w
ou
ld
 e
xp
ec
t t
o 
se
e 
an
 im
pr
ov
em
en
t o
ve
r 
tim
e.
 

76



A
pp
en
di
x 
2b
 

 
22

 

P
ro
je
ct
s 
– 
E
xc
ep
ti
o
n
s 
(R
ed
 –
 b
eh
in
d
 s
ch
ed
u
le
) 

P
ro
je
ct
 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
 

O
ff
ic
er
 

L
at
es
t 
ra
ti
n
g
 

D
u
e 
D
at
e 

C
re
at
e 
a 
th
ri
vi
n
g
 e
co
n
o
m
y 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
/ D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 L

in
k 

R
oa

d 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f P
la

ce
 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
 

31
/1

2/
20

14
 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
ns
:  
A
 d
et
ai
le
d 
re
vi
ew
 o
f f
un
di
ng
 o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s 
ha
s 
be
en
 c
on
du
ct
ed
 a
nd
 w
ill
 b
e 
co
ns
id
er
ed
 a
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 C
ap
ita
l P
ro
gr
am
m
e.
 

Im
p
ro
ve
 h
ea
lt
h
 c
ar
e 
an
d
 s
o
ci
al
 c
ar
e 

F
ra

il 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

P
at

hw
ay

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
In

te
rim

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

D
ire

ct
or

: A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 

 
31

/0
3/

20
12

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
ns
:  
W
or
k 
on
 th
is
 is
 n
ow
 b
ei
ng
 a
cc
el
er
at
ed
; f
oc
us
 o
n 
ne
ig
hb
ou
rh
oo
d 
te
am
s 
an
d 
re
ab
le
m
en
t a
re
 k
ey
 to
 p
at
hw
ay
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

an
d 
w
ill
 b
e 
pr
io
rit
is
ed
 g
oi
ng
 fo
rw
ar
d.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f C

on
tin

ui
ng

 H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

an
d 

F
un

di
ng

 N
ur

se
 C

ar
e 

In
te

rim
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
D

ire
ct

or
: A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

 
30

/0
1/

20
12

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
ns
:  
P
la
n 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 s
av
in
gs
.  
R
ev
ie
w
 h
as
 b
eg
un
, s
om
e 
sa
vi
ng
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
se
cu
re
d.
  P
ac
e 
of
 r
ev
ie
w
 h
as
 b
ee
n 

ac
ce
le
ra
te
d.
 

Q
IP

P
 P

la
n 

In
te

rim
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
D

ire
ct

or
: A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

 
31

/0
3/

20
12

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
ns
:  
O
ve
ra
ll 
sa
vi
ng
s 
ar
e 
no
t y
et
 a
ch
ie
ve
d 
– 
Q
IP
P
 s
ch
em
es
 a
re
 r
un
ni
ng
 a
t a
 d
el
iv
er
y 
ra
te
 o
f 6
8%
 o
f e
xp
ec
te
d 
de
liv
er
y 
at
 m
on
th
 4
.  

A
 d
et
ai
le
d 
re
po
rt
 w
as
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
at
 H
P
S
LT
 o
n 
6t
h  
S
ep
te
m
be
r,
 w
ith
 m
iti
ga
tio
n 
pl
an
s.
 

C
IP

 P
la

n 
In

te
rim

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

D
ire

ct
or

: A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 

 
31

/0
3/

20
12

 

77



A
pp
en
di
x 
2b
 

 
23

P
ro
je
ct
s 
– 
E
xc
ep
ti
o
n
s 
(R
ed
 –
 b
eh
in
d
 s
ch
ed
u
le
) 

P
ro
je
ct
 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
 

O
ff
ic
er
 

L
at
es
t 
ra
ti
n
g
 

D
u
e 
D
at
e 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
ns
:  
19
%
 d
el
iv
er
ed
 to
 d
at
e;
 th
e 
sa
vi
ng
s 
ta
rg
et
 is
 m
on
ito
re
d 
fo
r 
A
du
lt 
S
oc
ia
l C
ar
e 
on
 a
 m
on
th
ly
 b
as
is
 b
y 
th
e 
C
os
t I
m
pr
ov
em
en
t 

B
oa
rd
. 

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e 

in
to

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

In
te

rim
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
D

ire
ct

or
: A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

 
31

/0
3/

20
12

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
ns
:  
N
ee
d 
to
 b
rin
g 
ba
ck
 r
es
id
en
tia
l w
or
ki
ng
 a
ge
 a
du
lts
 b
ac
k 
in
 c
ou
nt
y.
  W

or
k 
pr
og
re
ss
ed
 to
 d
at
e 
re
pl
ac
in
g 
re
si
de
nt
ia
l c
ar
e 
w
ith
 

su
pp
or
te
d 
ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n.
  R
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 to
 u
se
 c
ar
e 
fu
nd
in
g 
ca
lc
ul
at
or
 to
 n
eg
ot
ia
te
 w
ith
 p
ro
vi
de
rs
. 

R
ai
se
 s
ta
n
d
ar
d
s 
fo
r 
ch
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
eo
p
le
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

W
om

en
, C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

F
am

ili
es

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 

P
eo

pl
e’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

 
01

/0
4/

20
12

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
ns
:  
T
he
re
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
sl
ip
pa
ge
 o
n 
th
e 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t o
f s
er
vi
ce
 s
pe
ci
fic
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 th
e 
ab
ili
ty
 to
 d
el
iv
er
 a
ll 
th
at
 w
as
 a
nt
ic
ip
at
ed
 in
 th
e 

ye
ar
.  
E
ac
h 
ar
ea
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
re
as
se
ss
ed
 a
nd
 a
 p
rio
rit
is
ed
 li
st
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 s
pe
ci
fic
at
io
ns
 to
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
ha
s 
be
en
 a
gr
ee
d.
  H
ow
ev
er
, s
av
in
gs
 in
 

re
la
tio
n 
to
 th
e 
m
at
er
ni
ty
 s
er
vi
ce
 a
re
 b
ei
ng
 d
el
iv
er
ed
. 

P
ro
m
o
te
 s
el
f 
re
lia
n
t 
lo
ca
l c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 

In
cr

ea
se

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 a

nd
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

er
 

 
31

/0
3/

20
12

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
ns
:  
B
el
ow
 ta
rg
et
; c
on
si
de
rin
g 
al
l o
pt
io
ns
 to
 in
cr
ea
se
 th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
by
 r
ev
ie
w
in
g 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 a
nd
 n
eg
ot
ia
tin
g 
w
ith
 d
ev
el
op
er
s 
an
d 

pr
om
ot
in
g 
af
fo
rd
ab
le
 s
in
gl
e 
pl
ot
s.
 

A
dd

re
ss

 h
ou

si
ng

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
he

al
th

 
P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

an
ag

er
 

 
31

/0
3/

20
12

 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
ns
:  
S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 s
til
l t
o 
be
 e
st
ab
lis
he
d.
 

78



A
pp
en
di
x 
2b
 

 
24

P
ro
je
ct
s 
– 
E
xc
ep
ti
o
n
s 
(R
ed
 –
 b
eh
in
d
 s
ch
ed
u
le
) 

P
ro
je
ct
 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le
 

O
ff
ic
er
 

L
at
es
t 
ra
ti
n
g
 

D
u
e 
D
at
e 

C
re
at
e 
a 
re
si
lie
n
t 
H
er
ef
o
rd
sh
ir
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 W
as

te
 to

 E
ne

rg
y 

P
la

nt
 

W
as

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

 
 

31
/0

3/
20

12
 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
ns
:  
P
ro
je
ct
 r
em
ai
ns
 s
ub
je
ct
 to
 d
el
ay
 d
ue
 to
 c
al
l i
n 
by
 S
ec
re
ta
ry
 o
f S
ta
te
. 

P
ro

du
ce

 K
in

g 
G

eo
rg

e 
V

 a
nd

 Q
ue

en
sw

oo
d 

C
ou

nt
ry

 P
ar

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

ns
 

 
 

31
/0

3-
20

12
 

R
em
ed
ia
l A
ct
io
ns
:  
Q
C
P
 k
ey
 s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
 v
is
io
ni
ng
 to
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t w
/c
 5
th
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
11
.  
P
ro
je
ct
 p
la
ns
 a
nd
 ti
m
in
gs
 to
 b
e 
as
se
ss
ed
 a
nd
 

co
m
pi
le
d.
 

M
ee
tin
g 
ar
ra
ng
ed
 w
ith
 A
m
ey
 to
 a
llo
ca
te
 ta
sk
s 
an
d 
re
po
rt
 b
ac
k 
on
 in
iti
al
 fi
nd
in
gs
 o
f g
ro
un
ds
 m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
 r
ev
ie
w
. 

 

79



80



Appendix 3 

 

For further information on this report please contact the report author: Chris Baird, Assistant 
Director People’s Services Commissioning on tel: 01432 260 264 

25

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE REVISIONS TO JOINT 
CORPORATE PLAN – THEME 2 

REPORT OWNER:  JO DAVIDSON 

APPENDUM BRIEFING NOTE 

 
Purpose 

To outline proposed revisions to theme 2 in the joint corporate plan 2011/12, in light of 
changes to QIPP and ASC Cost Improvement Plan, and NHS Operating Plan.  

Those revisions agreed will be the key projects and targets that will be monitored for the 
remaining 6 months of the year. Priorities for 2012/13 will be developed via the Corporate 
Planning cycle and in liaison with members and NEDS over the coming 2/3 months.  

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: 

 (a) Revisions to Outcome 2 are noted 

(b) The changes are agreed; and 

(c) HPS LT support delivery of projects and measures 

Key Points Summary 

• The projects and measures contained in the original QIPP system plan, and Health 
and Social Care strategy were developed in February and March 2011. Revisions to 
these plans and subsequent revisions to the NHS Operating Framework have meant 
the need to review which projects and measures are included and how these are 
described within the plan.  

• The main focus of the changes is centred on theme 2 and the 7 outcomes within this 
theme. In some cases the descriptions have been slightly reframed to ensure greater 
consistency and alignment with QIPP and CIPs plans to make certain the projects 
are recognisable to officers, members and NEDs alike. Additionally ‘duplicates’ have 
been removed from these outcomes.  

• Work has also been undertaken to develop targets and measures within JCP that 
align with QIPP and CIP and which can be can be reported against easily. These 
measures relate to the key projects. The aim has been to ensure that the plan also 
identifies the key priorities for the organisation and focuses on the 2-4 key 
projects/programmes and 3-5 key measures per outcome.  

• The suggested refreshed plan in detail can be found in appendix 3b. The key projects 
in the refreshed plan by outcome are: 

o Improved intervention and support for older people and keeping them safe  
§ Review of Reablement and Intermediate Care Services 

81



Appendix 3 

 

For further information on this report please contact the report author: Chris Baird, Assistant 
Director People’s Services Commissioning on tel: 01432 260 264 

26

§ Review of Continuing Healthcare and Free Nursing Care (considers 
funding an process issues)  

§ Delivery of Frail and Elderly Care Pathway, to improve outcomes for 
older people 

o A robust & healthy provider market 
§ Improve NHS Dentistry access and use 
§ Market Development Project to improve the range of provision across 

health and social care (includes development of Market development 
strategy) 

§ Re-commissioning the third sector, to improve range of services and 
level of provision 

o Financial balance across Herefordshire’s health & social care economy 
§ Delivery of NHS QIPP Plan and associated savings  
§ Delivery of Adult Social Care Cost Improvement Plan 
§ ASC & NHS Management Cost Savings 

o The development of a new local commissioning infrastructure  
§ Commissioning and Commercial Market Strategy and Framework 
§ GP Consortium - Implementation of a work plan for GP commissioning 

o Good quality corporate and clinical governance standards are embedded in 
all services provided 

§ Deliver Healthcare Acquired Infection Strategy and Work plan 
§ Integration of quality schedules and safeguarding requirements in 

provider contracts  
§ 10 Work streams of the Service Integration programmes 
§ Enhancing safeguarding arrangements and processes 

o More people retaining their independence through greater choice and control  
§ Personalisation  - implementation of RAS and customer journey to 

increase uptake of Personal Budgets and improve outcomes for adults 
§ Further develop rapid response service and urgent care to reduce 

emergency admissions 
§ Supporting people of working age into employment and 

accommodation 
§ Delivery of Stroke Care pathway and improvement of stroke services 

 

Considerations 

In identifying the key targets and initiatives the following issues were considered:  

1. The Joint Corporate Plan aligns with existing plans and targets developed for the 
QIPP and Adult Social Care Cost Improvement plan and delivers the outcomes 
stated in the Joint Corporate Plan.  

2. The projects and initiatives link with the outcomes agreed by Cabinet for 2011/12 
relating to health and social care, which were:  

o Improved intervention and support for older people and keeping them safe  
o A robust & healthy provider market 
o Financial balance across Herefordshire’s health & social care economy 
o The development of a new local commissioning infrastructure  
o Good quality corporate and clinical governance standards are embedded 

in all services provided 
o A reduction in health inequalities for frail, elderly people  

82



Appendix 3 

 

For further information on this report please contact the report author: Chris Baird, Assistant 
Director People’s Services Commissioning on tel: 01432 260 264 

27

o More people retaining their independence through greater choice and 
control  

 
The projects and targets within the plan should relate to the delivery of these 
outcomes 

3. Projects and initiatives within plan relate to initiatives and projects local authority 
officers and NHS staff recognise as key deliverables within the QIPP and ASC 
Plan for 2011/12. 

4. Members and NEDs understand and recognise the priority projects being 
delivered and the main focus of the organisation’s work around health and social 
care intended to deliver improved outcomes for Herefordshire residents.  

5. Measures and projects link and support one another, and there is minimal 
duplication across the outcomes.  

6. Performance Indicators and targets selected for 2011/12 are ones that can be 
measured from existing data collection mechanisms and collections, and link to 
Community Impact. 

Financial Implications 

Delivery of financial savings attached to the QIPP and CIP plans are priority targets 
for Herefordshire Public Services, it is essential we deliver these to make sure we 
continue to deliver good quality services within the challenging financial constraints 
we are now facing.  

Risk Management 

The key risks relate to the capacity to deliver the priorities and targets within the plan, 
and to being clear around the governance and accountabilities around the work 
programme. These risks will be monitored via the HPS risk register.  

Legal Implications 

Need to ensure that we maintain a focus on our statutory responsibilities in delivering 
our corporate priorities i.e. responsibilities of DASS.  

Alternative Options 

To maintain the descriptions of the existing projects and targets within the plan, and 
focus on developing 12/13 targets and priorities; however this would result in a plan 
that had limited ownership within the organisation. 

Communication 

Consultation has taken place with both Council and PCT staff. 

Appendices 

Appendix 3a -  Original Theme 2 

Appendix 3b -  Proposed Theme 2  

83



84



A
pp

en
di

x 
3a

 

 
28

 

 
2.

 Im
pr

ov
e 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

&
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
 

RT
TC

 li
nk

 
Cu

st
om

er
 fo

cu
s 

Be
tt

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

St
re

am
lin

in
g 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss
 

Be
tt

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

Be
tt

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

Lo
ng

 
te

rm
 

ou
tc

om
e 

2.
1 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

ke
ep

in
g 

th
em

 s
af

e 
 

  D
ir

ec
to

r:
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Le

ad
 A

D
: A

du
lt

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

 

2.
2 

A
 ro

bu
st

 &
 h

ea
lt

hy
 

pr
ov

id
er

 m
ar

ke
t 

   D
ir

ec
to

r:
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Le

ad
 A

D
: A

du
lt

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

2.
3 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l b
al

an
ce

 a
cr

os
s 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 h
ea

lt
h 

&
 s

oc
ia

l 
ca

re
 e

co
no

m
y 

 
   D

ir
ec

to
r:

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

 A
D

:  
TB

A
 

2.
4 

Th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 n

ew
 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
  

 D
ir

ec
to

r:
 D

CX
 &

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Le

ad
 A

D
:  

H
ea

d 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

Se
rv

ic
es

  
G

P 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
Le

ad
 - 

 
D

ir
ec

to
r N

H
S 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
D

el
iv

er
y 

2.
5 

G
oo

d 
qu

al
it

y 
co

rp
or

at
e 

an
d 

cl
in

ic
al

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
ar

e 
em

be
dd

ed
 in

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
 D

ir
ec

to
r:

 D
ir

ec
to

r N
H

S 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Le

ad
 A

D
: D

ir
ec

to
r o

f C
lin

ic
al

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s 

●
 In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f o

ld
er

 
pe

op
le

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
d 

fr
om

 
ho

sp
ita

l t
o 

re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n 
or

 
in

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 c

ar
e,

 w
ho

 a
re

 
liv

in
g 

at
 h

om
e 

91
 d

ay
s 

af
te

r 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

by
 1

0%
 

●
 R

ed
uc

e 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

be
d 

da
ys

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 m
ul

tip
le

 (t
w

o 
or

 m
or

e 
in

 a
 y

ea
r)

 a
cu

te
 

ho
sp

ita
l a

dm
is

si
on

s 
fo

r o
ve

r 
75

s 
by

 4
%

 
●

 R
ed

uc
e 

by
 1

5%
 a

dm
is

si
on

s 
to

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l c
ar

e 
ho

m
es

, p
er

 
1,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
●

 R
ed

uc
ed

 a
ve

ra
ge

 le
ng

th
 o

f 
st

ay
 fo

r o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
by

 1
0%

 
ov

er
 2

 y
ea

rs
 

●
 5

%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 n

ew
 

ou
tp

at
ie

nt
 re

fe
rr

al
s 

in
 

20
11

/1
2 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 a

 1
%

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 in

pu
t a

nd
 d

ay
 

ca
se

 a
ct

iv
ity

.  
●

 R
ed

uc
e 

in
 o

ut
pa

tie
nt

 n
ew

 to
 

fo
llo

w
 u

ps
 b

y 
1.

5%
 a

nd
 fo

llo
w

 
up

 b
y 

17
.5

%
  

●
 R

ed
uc

ed
 n

um
be

r o
f 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 to

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 

re
fe

rr
al

s 
by

 1
%

 (2
01

1/
12

)  
●

 In
cr

ea
se

 in
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
a 

st
ro

ke
 w

ho
 s

pe
nd

 a
t l

ea
st

 
90

%
 o

f t
he

ir 
 ti

m
e 

in
 a

cu
te

 
ho

sp
ita

l o
n 

a 
st

ro
ke

 u
ni

t t
o 

10
0%

 b
y 

20
12

  

Sa
vi

ng
 m

ea
su

re
s 

20
11

-1
2 

 
●

 S
am

e 
Ac

tiv
ity

 fo
r l

es
s 

(c
os

t)
  

▪R
ig

ht
 C

ar
e 

 - 
£1

,3
77

,0
00

 
▪P

la
nn

ed
 C

ar
e 

- £
1,

64
8,

00
0 

▪M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
- £

50
0,

00
0 

▪C
ar

e 
pa

th
w

ay
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

  -
 

£1
,7

71
,0

00
 

●
 S

am
e 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r l

es
s 

(s
er

vi
ce

 c
ha

rg
e)

  
▪U

rg
en

t c
ar

e 
 - 

£2
74

,0
00

 
▪M

at
er

ni
ty

 a
nd

 n
ew

 b
or

n 
- 

£5
00

,0
00

 
▪L

ow
 p

rio
rit

y 
tr

ea
tm

en
ts

  -
 

£2
8,

00
0 

▪M
ed

ic
in

es
 u

se
 &

 

●
 N

um
be

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

re
-

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 a

nd
 m

ar
ke

t 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Pl

an
  

Ta
rg

et
: T

BA
 o

nc
e 

pl
an

 a
nd

 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ag

re
ed

 
 ●

 S
av

in
gs

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
fo

r e
ac

h 
ne

w
 re

-c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
   

Ta
rg

et
: T

BA
 o

nc
e 

pl
an

 a
nd

 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ag

re
ed

 
 ●

 L
ow

er
 c

os
ts

 fr
om

 c
o-

w
or

ki
ng

 
w

ith
 k

ey
 s

up
pl

ie
rs

 o
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 to

 lo
w

er
 o

r r
em

ov
e 

co
st

s 
 

 T
ar

ge
ts

:  

●
 C

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

 
Ac

qu
ire

d 
In

fe
ct

io
n 

ta
rg

et
s 

 
C.

di
ff

 - 
TB

A 
M

RS
A 

– 
TB

A 
 ●

 N
o 

si
ng

le
 s

ex
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

br
ea

ch
es

 
 ●

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 d
el

ay
ed

 
tr

an
sf

er
s 

of
 c

ar
e 

 - 
ta

rg
et

 T
BA

 
  

85



A
pp

en
di

x 
3a

 

 
29

 

●
 R

ed
uc

ed
 a

ve
ra

ge
 le

ng
th

 o
f 

st
ay

 fo
r o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

by
 1

0%
 

ov
er

 2
 y

ea
rs

 n
on

-e
le

ct
iv

e 
sp

el
ls

 

●
 In

cr
ea

se
 in

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 

pe
op

le
 a

t h
ig

h 
ris

k 
of

 S
tr

ok
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
a 

TI
A 

w
ho

 a
re

 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

nd
 tr

ea
te

d 
w

ith
in

 
24

 h
ou

rs
 to

 6
0%

 o
ve

r 4
 y

ea
rs

  
●

 D
ec

re
as

e 
th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
ad

m
is

si
on

s 
to

 a
ny

 
ho

sp
ita

l i
n 

En
gl

an
d 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
w

ith
in

 2
8 

da
ys

 o
f t

he
 la

st
, 

pr
ev

io
us

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 fr

om
 

ho
sp

ita
l b

y 
10

%
 o

ve
r 5

 y
ea

rs
  

●
 D

ec
re

as
e 

A&
E 

at
te

nd
an

ce
s 

by
 7

30
 in

 2
01

1/
12

 b
y 

ut
ili

si
ng

 
ra

pi
d 

re
sp

on
se

  

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t -

 £
1,

40
0,

00
0 

▪W
ho

le
 s

ys
te

m
 re

-a
bl

em
en

t 
re

vi
ew

 
 - 

£1
,2

00
,0

00
 

▪O
th

er
 Q

ip
p 

sc
he

m
es

 T
BA

 
▪M

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

- £
50

0,
00

0 
●

 R
ed

uc
ed

 d
em

an
d 

 
▪H

ea
lth

y 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
 - 

£7
5,

00
0 

●
 M

an
ag

em
en

t c
os

ts
  -

 
£1

,3
00

,0
00

 

20
11

-1
2 

- 1
%

 s
av

in
gs

  
20

12
-1

3 
- 2

%
 s

av
in

gs
  

20
13

-1
4 

- 2
%

 s
av

in
gs

  
 ●

 %
 o

f c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

bu
dg

et
 

m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

G
PC

  
Ta

rg
et

: 7
0%

 
  

Pr
oj

ec
ts

  
 

●
 P

er
so

na
lis

at
io

n 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

●
 W

ho
le

 s
ys

te
m

 re
-a

bl
em

en
t 

an
d 

CH
C 

an
d 

fr
ee

 n
ur

si
ng

 
ca

re
 d

em
an

d 
●

 F
ra

il 
El

de
rly

 P
eo

pl
e 

Pa
th

w
ay

 
●

 D
ev

el
op

 U
rg

en
t C

ar
e 

●
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n,
  e

ar
ly

 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
an

d 
re

ab
le

m
en

t 
in

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 
de

m
en

tia
 

●
 Im

pr
ov

e 
en

d 
of

 li
fe

 c
ar

e 
   

●
 P

er
so

na
lis

at
io

n 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

rs
on

al
 

H
ea

lth
 B

ud
ge

ts
 

 ●
 W

ho
le

 s
ys

te
m

 re
de

si
gn

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n,
 e

ar
ly

 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
an

d 
ca

re
 c

lo
se

r 
to

 h
om

e 
●

 N
H

S 
D

en
tis

tr
y 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 u

se
 

●
 M

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

●
 M

ar
ke

t D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
ro

je
ct

 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

 
●

 D
ia

be
te

s 
pa

th
w

ay
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
●

 R
ad

io
th

er
ap

y 
se

rv
ic

e 

●
 P

er
so

na
lis

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

●
 W

ho
le

 s
ys

te
m

 re
-a

bl
em

en
t 

●
 F

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
 R

ap
id

 
Re

sp
on

se
 

●
 U

rg
en

t C
ar

e 
●

 In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

ta
ke

 u
p 

of
 

Te
le

ca
re

 b
y 

50
%

 
●

 R
ed

uc
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ac
ka

ge
s 

> 
£2

5,
00

0 
by

 1
0%

 
●

 R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f o
ld

er
 

pe
op

le
 in

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l c

ar
e 

by
 

50
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 

●
 In

cr
ea

se
 in

 c
ha

rg
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 
cl

ie
nt

s 
●

 R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 

●
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 M

ar
ke

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
●

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

Pl
an

 
●

 D
ev

el
op

 a
 p

rio
rit

is
ed

 
m

ile
st

on
e 

pl
an

 fo
r r

e-
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
m

ar
ke

t 
te

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 

●
 G

P 
Co

ns
or

tiu
m

 - 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 a

 w
or

k 
pl

an
 fo

r G
P 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

 

●
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

 A
cq

ui
re

d 
In

fe
ct

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 W
or

k 
pl

an
 

●
 In

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 q
ua

lit
y 

sc
he

du
le

s 
in

 p
ro

vi
de

r c
on

tr
ac

ts
 

●
 1

0 
W

or
k 

st
re

am
s 

of
 th

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
In

te
gr

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 

  

86



A
pp

en
di

x 
3a

 

 
30

 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 a

du
lts

 in
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l c

ar
e 

by
 2

5 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 
●

 R
ev

ie
w

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s 

as
 to

 In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
pe

rs
on

al
 b

ud
ge

ts
 c

os
tin

g 
< 

£1
3k

 b
y 

30
%

 
●

 R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
re

ab
le

m
en

t r
es

id
en

tia
l b

ed
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Co

un
ty

 
●

 In
cr

ea
se

 u
se

 o
f r

ea
bl

em
en

t 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

no
 lo

ng
er

 re
qu

iri
ng

 h
ea

lth
 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

or
 w

ith
 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 re
du

ce
d 

on
-

go
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

fo
r c

ar
e 

&
 

su
pp

or
t 

●
 IC

O
 v

ac
an

cy
 ta

rg
et

 
 

87



88



A
pp

en
di

x 
3b

 

 
30

   
 

2.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 
&

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

 
RT

TC
 li

nk
 

Cu
st

om
er

 fo
cu

s 
Be

tt
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
St

re
am

lin
in

g 
th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

Be
tt

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

Be
tt

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

Cu
st

om
er

 fo
cu

s 
Be

tt
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
Lo

ng
 

te
rm

 
ou

tc
om

e 

2.
1 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

ke
ep

in
g 

th
em

 s
af

e 
 

  D
ir

ec
to

r:
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Le

ad
 A

D
: A

du
lt

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

 

2.
2 

A
 ro

bu
st

 &
 h

ea
lt

hy
 

pr
ov

id
er

 m
ar

ke
t 

   D
ir

ec
to

r:
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Le

ad
 A

D
: A

du
lt

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

2.
3 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l b
al

an
ce

 a
cr

os
s 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 h
ea

lt
h 

&
 s

oc
ia

l 
ca

re
 e

co
no

m
y 

 
   D

ir
ec

to
r:

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

 A
D

:  
TB

A
 

2.
4 

Th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 n

ew
 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
  

 D
ir

ec
to

r:
 D

CX
 &

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
Co

rp
or

at
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Le

ad
 A

D
:  

H
ea

d 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

Se
rv

ic
es

  
G

P 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
Le

ad
 - 

 
D

ir
ec

to
r N

H
S 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
D

el
iv

er
y 

2.
5 

G
oo

d 
qu

al
it

y 
co

rp
or

at
e 

an
d 

cl
in

ic
al

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
ar

e 
em

be
dd

ed
 in

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
 D

ir
ec

to
r:

 D
ir

ec
to

r N
H

S 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Le

ad
 A

D
: D

ir
ec

to
r o

f C
lin

ic
al

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 

2.
6 

A
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 h

ea
lt

h 
in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
fo

r f
ra

il,
 e

ld
er

ly
 

pe
op

le
  

  D
ir

ec
to

r:
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Le

ad
 A

D
: H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
W

el
l 

Be
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

2.
7 

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 re
ta

in
in

g 
th

ei
r i

nd
ep

en
de

nc
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

gr
ea

te
r c

ho
ic

e 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l  
  D

ir
ec

to
r:

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

 A
D

: A
du

lt
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
 

M
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s 

●
 N

um
be

r o
f o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

ed
 fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
l t

o 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n 

or
 

in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 c
ar

e,
 w

ho
 a

re
 

liv
in

g 
at

 h
om

e 
91

 d
ay

s 
af

te
r 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
 

Ta
rg

et
 2

01
1/

12
 –

 8
0%

 
● 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
be

d 
da

ys
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 m

ul
tip

le
 (t

w
o 

or
 m

or
e 

in
 a

 y
ea

r)
 a

cu
te

 
ho

sp
ita

l a
dm

is
si

on
s 

fo
r o

ve
r 

75
s 

 
Ta

rg
et

 2
01

1/
12

 –
 1

4,
50

0 
(v

al
id

at
in

g)
 

● 
Re

du
ce

d 
av

er
ag

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f 

st
ay

 fo
r o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 a

cu
te

 
se

tt
in

g 
Ta

rg
et

 2
01

1/
12

 –
 x

x 
da

ys
 

Ta
rg

et
 2

01
2/

13
 x

x 
da

ys
 d

ay
s 

(n
ee

d 
to

 v
al

id
at

e)
 

• 
Ti

m
el

in
es

s 
of

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 
Ta

rg
et

 2
01

1/
12

 –
 8

8%
 

• 
Ti

m
el

in
es

s 
of

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

pa
ck

ag
es

 
Ta

rg
et

 2
01

1/
12

 –
 9

0%
 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 n

um
be

r o
f j

oi
nt

ly
 

fu
nd

ed
 p

ac
ka

ge
s 

(t
bc

) 
Ta

rg
et

 2
01

1/
12

 
 

• 
Ac

ce
ss

 to
 p

rim
ar

y 
de

nt
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
- y

ea
r-

on
-y

ea
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
in

 n
um

be
r o

f p
at

ie
nt

s 
ac

ce
ss

in
g 

N
H

S 
de

nt
al

 
se

rv
ic

es
  

Ta
rg

et
 2

01
1-

12
 - 

 
• 

M
ar

ke
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

st
ra

te
gy

  
Ta

rg
et

 –
 p

ub
lis

h 
- 

N
ov

em
be

r 
• 

Re
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
th

e 
3rd

 S
ec

to
r 

Ta
rg

et
 2

01
1/

12
 –

 8
0 

pe
r 

ce
nt

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
ts

 re
vi

ew
ed

 
an

d 
re

-c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
  

 
   

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 Q

IP
Ps

 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
   

   
   

   
 T

ar
ge

t 2
01

1/
12

 - 
£1

0.
9m

 
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

Ad
ul

t S
oc

ia
l 

Ca
re

 C
os

t I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pl

an
  

   
   

   
   

   
Ta

rg
et

 2
01

1/
12

 - 
£3

.6
m

 
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

os
t 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

ac
ro

ss
 H

ea
lth

 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
   

   
   

   
Ta

rg
et

  2
01

1/
12

 - 
£1

.3
m

 

●
 N

um
be

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

re
-

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 a

nd
 m

ar
ke

t 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Pl

an
  

Ta
rg

et
: T

BA
 o

nc
e 

pl
an

 a
nd

 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ag

re
ed

 
 ●

 S
av

in
gs

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
fo

r e
ac

h 
ne

w
 re

-c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
   

Ta
rg

et
: T

BA
 o

nc
e 

pl
an

 a
nd

 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ag

re
ed

 (m
ov

e 
to

 2
.2

?)
  

 ●
 L

ow
er

 c
os

ts
 fr

om
 c

o-
w

or
ki

ng
 

w
ith

 k
ey

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 o

n 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 to
 lo

w
er

 o
r r

em
ov

e 
co

st
s 

 
 T

ar
ge

ts
:  

20
11

-1
2 

- 1
%

 s
av

in
gs

  
20

12
-1

3 
- 2

%
 s

av
in

gs
  

20
13

-1
4 

- 2
%

 s
av

in
gs

  
 ●

 %
 o

f ‘
he

al
th

’ c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

bu
dg

et
 m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
G

PC
  

Ta
rg

et
: 7

0%
 

 
  

●
 C

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

 
Ac

qu
ire

d 
In

fe
ct

io
n 

ta
rg

et
s 

 
Ta

rg
et

 –
 2

01
1-

12
 

C.
di

ff
 - 

72
 

M
RS

A 
– 

2 
 ●

 N
o 

si
ng

le
 s

ex
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

br
ea

ch
es

 
Ta

rg
et

 2
01

1/
12

 - 
0 

 ●
 R

at
e 

of
 d

el
ay

ed
 tr

an
sf

er
s 

of
 

ca
re

 p
er

 1
00

,0
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

(a
ge

d 
18

 a
nd

 o
ve

r)
 

 T
ar

ge
t –

 2
01

1-
12

 –
 1

8.
6 

 Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 m
ea

su
re

 to
 b

e 
de

fin
ed

 b
y 

H
SA

B 
    

●
 R

ed
uc

e 
ra

te
 o

f a
dm

is
si

on
s 

fo
r 

fa
lls

 in
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
ag

e 
75

 p
lu

s 
 

(b
as

el
in

e 
to

 b
e 

se
t)

 
●

 In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f o
ld

er
 

pe
op

le
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
ho

m
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t  

an
d 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
re

du
ce

 th
ei

r r
is

k 
of

 a
 fa

ll 
 a

t h
om

e 
(lo

ca
l b

as
el

in
e 

to
 b

e 
se

t b
y 

D
ec

 
20

11
) 

 ●
 In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

ol
de

r p
eo

pl
e 

re
gu

la
rly

 
ex

er
ci

si
ng

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

m
us

cl
e 

st
re

ng
th

  
(lo

ca
l b

as
el

in
e 

to
 b

e 
se

t b
y 

D
ec

 
20

11
)  

●
 In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f o

ld
er

 
pe

op
le

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

m
ed

ic
in

es
 

re
vi

ew
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

ei
r r

is
k 

of
 

a 
fa

ll 
(lo

ca
l b

as
el

in
e 

to
 b

e 
se

t 
by

 D
ec

 2
01

1)
 

  

• 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
ad

m
is

si
on

s 
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

w
ith

in
 2

8 
da

ys
 o

f t
he

 la
st

, 
pr

ev
io

us
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 
fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
l  

Ta
rg

et
 –

 2
01

1/
12

 –
 

• 
Re

du
ce

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ad
m

is
si

on
s 

20
11

/1
2 

 
Ta

rg
et

 2
01

1/
12

 –
 7

30
  

• 
Ad

ul
ts

 w
ith

 m
en

ta
l 

ill
ne

ss
 o

r L
D

 in
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t  

Ta
rg

et
 –

 2
01

1-
12

 –
 1

2%
 (t

bc
) 

• 
Ad

ul
ts

 w
ith

 m
en

ta
l 

ill
ne

ss
 o

r L
D

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 

in
 s

et
tle

d 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
Ta

rg
et

 –
 2

01
1/

12
 –

 7
9%

 (t
bc

) 
• 

So
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

cl
ie

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
Se

lf 
D

ire
ct

ed
 

Su
pp

or
t  

Ta
rg

et
- 2

01
1/

12
 –

 4
0 

%
 

• 
Pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

a 
st

ro
ke

 
w

ho
 s

pe
nd

 a
t l

ea
st

 9
0%

 
of

 th
ei

r  
tim

e 
in

 a
cu

te
 

ho
sp

ita
l o

n 
a 

st
ro

ke
 

un
it 

 
Ta

rg
et

 –
 2

01
1-

12
 –

 8
0%

 
• 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

at
 

hi
gh

 ri
sk

 o
f S

tr
ok

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

a 
TI

A 
w

ho
 

ar
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
nd

 
tr

ea
te

d 
w

ith
in

 2
4 

 
Ta

rg
et

 –
 2

01
1-

12
 –

 6
0 

%
 

89



A
pp

en
di

x 
3b

 

 
31

Pr
oj

ec
ts

  
 

• 
Re

vi
ew

 o
f R

ea
bl

em
en

t 
an

d 
In

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 C

ar
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
• 

Re
vi

ew
 o

f C
on

tin
ui

ng
 

H
ea

lth
ca

re
 a

nd
 F

re
e 

N
ur

si
ng

 C
ar

e 
• 

D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 F
ra

il 
an

d 
El

de
rly

 C
ar

e 
Pa

th
w

ay
, 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 

fo
r o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

    

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
N

H
S 

D
en

tis
tr

y 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 u
se

 
• 

M
ar

ke
t D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 
ac

ro
ss

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

• 
Re

-c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

th
e 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r,

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

le
ve

l o
f p

ro
vi

si
on

 
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 N

H
S 

Q
IP

P 
Pl

an
 a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
sa

vi
ng

s 
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 A

du
lt 

So
ci

al
 

Ca
re

 C
os

t I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
os

t 
Sa

vi
ng

s 

●
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 M

ar
ke

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

&
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

●
 G

P 
Co

ns
or

tiu
m

 - 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 a

 w
or

k 
pl

an
 fo

r G
P 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

 

●
 D

el
iv

er
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

 A
cq

ui
re

d 
In

fe
ct

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 W
or

k 
pl

an
 

●
 In

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 q
ua

lit
y 

sc
he

du
le

s 
an

d 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
 

●
 1

0 
W

or
k 

st
re

am
s 

of
 th

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
In

te
gr

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 

 En
ha

nc
in

g 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

  

●
 E

xt
en

d 
th

e 
fa

lls
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

 g
re

at
er

 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ol

de
r 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
at

 ri
sk

 o
f f

al
lin

g.
 

●
 P

er
so

na
lis

at
io

n 
 - 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 R
AS

 a
nd

 
cu

st
om

er
 jo

ur
ne

y 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 
up

ta
ke

 o
f P

er
so

na
l b

ud
ge

ts
 

●
 F

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
 ra

pi
d 

re
sp

on
se

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 u
rg

en
t 

ca
re

 to
 re

du
ce

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ad
m

is
si

on
s 

●
 S

up
po

rt
in

g 
pe

op
le

 o
f w

or
ki

ng
 

ag
e 

in
to

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
• 

D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 s
tr

ok
e 

Ca
re

 
pa

th
w

ay
 

 

90



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Geoff Hughes, Director for Places and Communities on 01432 260695 
David Powell, Chief Officer: Financial and Commercial on 01432 383518 

$veoa5hk3.doc 22/02/10 

MEETING: CABINET  

DATE: 20 OCTOBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: LOCALITY ASSET REVIEW AND 
ACCOMMODATION PROGRAMME 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  CORPORATE SERVICES AND EDUCATION 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To note progress made on locality asset reviews (including the Hereford Accommodation Programme) 
and to endorse the proposed master plan and work programme within each locality including the 
accommodation solution for Herefordshire Public Services (HPS) back office staff in Hereford as part 
of the Hereford City locality.  

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: 

(a) the overall principles to form an accommodation and asset management 
plan for the requirements within each of the localities be endorsed; 

(b) the master plan and work programmes for each locality be endorsed; 

(c) the proposal to deliver a refurbished Plough Lane facility rather than extend 
the site be agreed; and 

(d) the options for partner organisations to be co-located at the Plough Lane 
site continue to be explored. 

Key Points Summary 

• The Localities Asset Review work forms part of the Council’s Locality Strategy and is delivered 
through the Communities First work stream in Rising to the Challenge. 

• This report summarises the work carried out to date and the locality master plans attached as 
appendices indicate the potential work programme of key projects that could be undertaken 
within each of the localities. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

91



• The Hereford City locality strategy encompasses the Council’s Accommodation strategy with 
Plough Lane being the main focus for HPS back office staff. Following a high level review in 
June and July 2011 a refurbished office (without the need to extend the building) can 
accommodate projected staff numbers. 

• This refurbishment option is feasible with a parallel strategy for relocation of Shared Services 
staff in line with the Joint Venture Company’s aspirations.  A high level review of property 
options for Shared Services has indicated a medium term cost neutral option. 

• An outline refurbishment scheme for Plough Lane has been developed and costed based on a 
most likely headcount scenario of 800 with a 6 desks to 10 people working ratio. 

• The refurbishment of Plough Lane would be funded through a programme of disposals of 
surplus properties and prudential borrowing funded by revenue savings from vacated 
properties. This means no additional costs of the refurbishment will be met by the council tax 
payer. 

• The refurbishment of Plough Lane will mean that the provision of a new car park to the north 
of Plough Lane and a link from Yazor Road to Plough Lane is not now necessary. 

• The revised proposal presents opportunities for use of the land acquired from Heineken 
adjacent to the Plough Lane offices. This will need to be investigated further with partners. 

• The Plough Lane scheme and associated decant of HPS staff into the building is dependent 
on the delivery of a new Modern Records Unit (MRU) accommodation. 

• The Plough Lane scheme and associated decant of staff into a refurbished building will be 
delivered alongside the provision of a new site for the Council Chamber and democratic 
services (most likely in Hereford Shire Hall). 

Alternative Options 

1 The Locality Asset Review process identifies options to support a locality based approach to 
service delivery.  It is possible that alternatives may emerge as detailed delivery plans are 
developed. 

2 The decision to purchase Plough Lane in 2009 signalled the commitment to bring together 
functions on a single site being delivered from several locations across Hereford.  The initial 
assessment in 2008 suggested that a significant enlargement of the capacity at the site would 
be needed.  This option is no longer appropriate given the changes delivered since the date of 
purchase. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

3 The accommodation and asset management plan developed for each locality identifies 
opportunities for services to co-locate as well as opportunities to dispose of properties no 
longer suitable for service delivery. Transforming the portfolio of public sector assets across 
the county seeks to improve outcomes for the local population within existing financial 
constraints. 

4 The refurbishment of Plough Lane will enable the release of various properties.  This will 
assist the delivery of the Herefordshire locality master plan and improve service delivery. 

92



Introduction and Background 

5 Detailed analysis has been undertaken in each of the nine localities within the county, taking 
account of the approach endorsed by the Herefordshire Partnership.  As a result detailed 
master plans have been developed for each locality. 

6 The Hereford City locality strategy and master plan includes the Council’s Accommodation 
strategy with Plough Lane being the main focus for HPS back office staff. 

7 A detailed benefits case has been made for the refurbishment of Plough Lane which can be 
delivered in parallel with a relocation of Shared Services staff in line with the Joint Venture 
Company’s aspirations 

8 This scheme can be delivered without new build or new infrastructure and will allow 
opportunities for the use of the land adjacent to the Plough Lane offices. 

Key Considerations 

9 The 2009 Joint Corporate Property Strategy set out a vision to support the integrated delivery 
of Public Services across the County through accessible and adaptable, community based, 
multi-functional buildings, shared by public agencies. The Total Place agenda and the 
Government’s emerging approach to place-based asset management, when coupled with 
ever-increasing financial constraints has seen Herefordshire Public Services develop a 
common approach to localities in Herefordshire. 

10 A series of asset reviews have been undertaken within the county over the past 12 months. 
Potential options include the identification of opportunities for services to co-locate, as well as 
those properties no longer suitable for service delivery.  This means that properties surplus to 
operational requirements and available for disposal (either to achieve a capital receipt or a 
community asset transfer) have all been assessed with the following objectives: 

a. More effective/efficient use of assets 

b. Improved public access to services 

c. Increased co-location and co-working across all sectors 

d. Reduced revenue expenditure by sharing and redesigning services 

e. Reduced county carbon footprint 

11. Funding from the Regional Improvement & Efficiency Partnership (RIEP) has enabled the 
Council to commission support (EC Harris) for a number of feasibility studies in order to test 
and validate the outputs from these reviews.  This process has looked at capital delivery 
projects required to transform the portfolio of public sector assets across the county. 

12. Detailed analysis has been undertaken in each of the nine localities within the county, taking 
account of the tiered approach to service delivery and community engagement that has been 
endorsed by the Herefordshire Partnership. A further general principal is that any proposals 
must have regard to our key partner organisations. Proposals would need to be tested with 
Local Elected Members; Parish and Town Councils; and other local stakeholders. It is then 
intended that this work may be shared with newly established locality based partnerships by 
the end of 2011. 

13. The attached table provides an initial analysis of those properties potentially within scope of a 
rationalisation of our localities asset base. This synthesises work done by Asset Management 
and Property Services, EC Harris and others, and constitutes our first take on the work that 
could be undertaken within each of the localities. 

14. The following summarises this analysis into key projects: 

93



a. Hereford: accommodation strategy (back office), city centre campus (including 
Hereford Centre), data centre and records office. 

b. Leominster: redevelopment of the Westfield Walk / Windsor Place area, consolidation 
of the Old Priory and Earl Mortimer hubs. 

c. Ross-on-Wye: integrated customer services and visitor centre, community asset 
transfers of Tudorville and Wilton sports pavilion, John Kyrle High School 
redevelopment to incorporate leisure hub. 

d. Ledbury: creation of integrated service hub at Master’s House. 

e. Kington: potential for community asset transfers of Old Police Station and Mill Street 
offices, relocation of Police and Fire Station. 

f. Bromyard: limited opportunities given the development of the public services hub 
model in the Bromyard Centre, and Children’s & families services at the HOPE Centre. 

g. Golden Valley/Mortimer/Weobley: limited opportunities given the small size of the asset 
base in these localities. 

h. Wigmore: HALO Management. 

i. Peterchurch: Police and Fire Station and mobile provision. 

15. Herefordshire Council’s aim is to ensure that assets are managed in a way that strongly 
underpins wider corporate aims. Where appropriate asset transfers are to be used as a means 
of enabling voluntary sector organisations to improve outcomes for local people and become 
sustainable on a long-term basis. 

16. The Hereford locality centres on a Plough Lane HQ building for HPS back office staff. It also 
identifies the refurbishment of the Shire Hall and a replacement archive/data centre and 
modern records unit as key ‘spoke’ projects to help deliver the locality strategy objectives. 

17. In December 2009 the Council acquired land from Heineken adjacent to the Plough Lane to 
deliver a HQ project.  Following a period of internal management of the project the Council 
commissioned EC Harris to manage the programme of accommodation projects, including 
development of the overall programme and procurement of the design and construction 
phases of the individual project elements of the programme. 

18. During Phase 1 of their commission EC Harris collected data through a series of interviews 
which suggested that the HPS organisation would have an approximate headcount of 1,150 in 
2014. With a desk sharing ratio of 6 desks to 10 people this indicated that it would be 
necessary to extend Plough Lane to provide a floor area of 7,400 m2, which included a new 
building of 3,200m2. 

19. At that time EC Harris analysis showed that the Plough Lane extension project was financially 
viable and depending on headcount and desk sharing ratios could deliver up to £18m of net 
benefit.  Their suggested option of 1,150 FTEs with a 6:10 ratio was agreed at this stage. 

20. Work progressed on this option. However in June 2011 a review of the scheme was 
undertaken prior to the Plough Lane Extension scheme being finalised and submitted for 
planning.  As staff numbers directly drive the overall office requirement and staff numbers had 
undoubtedly changed as a result of reorganisations since the original interviews in August 
2010 it was considered prudent to review at this stage. 

21. EC Harris undertook a high level review to understand the numbers of staff that could be 
incorporated into the existing building without extension and this short review indicated that up 
to 998 (with a working ratio of 6:10) could be housed within a reconfigured building without the 
need to extend.  

94



22. A more detailed process was then commenced to obtain a firmer view of current and future 
headcount of the organisation to enable refurbishment scheme options to be developed and 
costed for consideration by the Accommodation Board. 

23. During July and August 2011 EC Harris undertook a series of focus interviews with Directors 
and key staff which enabled a better understanding of current and future headcount forecasts 
for directorates than that collected in August 2010. 

24. This work has indicated that the likely headcount at Plough Lane in 2014 will be in the region 
of 800 staff.  This cannot be achieved without changing the accommodation layout at Plough 
Lane.  This will also require changes to the way that employees work, including flexible 
working and the use of new technology.  This is being addressed through the New Ways of 
Working project under Rising to the Challenge.  

25. Based on this information EC Harris have created scheme options / space plans for a 
refurbished Plough Lane for headcounts ranging from 920 to 800 and even down to 700 
should further reorganisations bring such staff reductions. They have undertaken a structural 
review of the existing building to inform the refurbishment scheme options. 

26. Using the most likely scenario of 800 people in the organisation (with a 6:10 desk sharing 
ratio) a detailed benefits case has been modelled for this refurbishment project which indicates 
positive benefits and supports the consolidation of staff at Plough Lane without requiring 
additional build and infrastructure. 

27. The consolidation of accommodation will see up to twenty properties being disposed with the 
sale proceeds supporting the funding model.  The likely income which would be raised by 
disposing of these assets has been reviewed and there is a current estimate of £5.3m 
receipts. 

28. The impact of disposing the current portfolio will be to reduce operational costs. A detailed 
review of current operational costs has been undertaken and a forward view of likely costs of a 
refurbished Plough Lane indicate that operational costs could significantly reduce from 
£828.5K to £348K. In addition, by disposing of these buildings the current backlog 
maintenance costs of £884K would be avoided. 

29. There will also be wider benefits associated with the Plough Lane refurbishment – these 
include transportation benefits from greater co-location and reduced travel; improved 
environmental performance of the asset which will assist in our carbon reduction targets; 
improved ways of working, improved productivity and service delivery improvements through 
co-location. 

30. This refurbishment option is feasible with a parallel strategy for relocation of The Shared 
Services Partnership (TSSP) out of Plough Lane. As the refurbishment scheme was being 
investigated a high level review of property options for TSSP was undertaken with the 
aspiration of siting all of the organisations staff within one facility. 

31. The review indicates that across Hereford buildings which are large and used for offices are 
generally split up into small office suites whilst there are a limited number other larger  office 
blocks they are not in the Council’s ownership. Given the limited options and possible high 
costs associated with finding a building large enough to house all TSSP staff it seems that a 
feasible option will be to use existing locations to deliver a cost neutral solution.  

32. As a result of not extending the office building there may be opportunities for use of the land 
acquired from Heineken adjacent to the Plough Lane offices. Options continue to be 
investigated further with partners.  

33. The Plough Lane scheme is dependent on delivering a long term solution for Modern Records 
accommodation. Work on this proposal has been progressing alongside the Plough Lane 
project. Concepts for a new build have been developed and a potential site has been identified 
at Rotherwas following evaluation of a number of alternatives.  A detailed design and planning 

95



application will now be developed for this project and funding may be released from the car 
parking now available as a result of the reduced proposal for Plough Lane. 

34. The Plough Lane scheme will be delivered alongside the provision of a new site for the 
Council Chamber and democratic services (most likely in Hereford Shire Hall). A project 
initiation document is currently being developed for this project for agreement with the 
Accommodation Board. 

Community Impact 
35 High as this impacts on people’s ability to access the services they want, when and how they 

want to receive them. 

Financial Implications 
36 Capital costs for the 920, 800 and 700 refurbishment scheme options have been developed 

which range from £8.9m, £8.8m and £8.7m respectively. It should be noted that these cost 
estimates are based on concepts for the Plough Lane offices and will need to be regularly 
reviewed as the scheme progresses with an associated review of the benefits case. 

37. A current estimated £5.3m capital receipt from properties no longer required will make a 
significant contribution to the cost with the balance being funded by savings from the current 
costs of running existing buildings. 

38. Based on this the scheme demonstrates a clear positive Net Present Value of £540K over a 
25 year period. 

39. The Council’s current capital programme includes funding of £17.08mm for corporate 
accommodation.  To date £6.05m has been spent.  The proposal for a reduced corporate 
accommodation project will release funding to support other key requirements such as a new 
Archives and Modern Records facility. 

Legal Implications 

40 None at this stage. 

Risk Management 

41 The risk that insufficient resources are allocated to enable this work to be undertaken is 
mitigated by business cases to identify required resources. 

42 There may be a risk that failure to secure buy in from key stakeholders affects delivery.  The 
mitigation is that proposals will be fully tested across Herefordshire Partnership. 

43 The nine locality master plans will need to be delivered in a manner that secures partnership 
working is a key success factor to closer working relationships at a local level. 

Appendices 

43 Master plans of potential work that could be undertaken within each of the localities. 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

96



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Dr A Talbot-Smith on (01432) 344344 
  

$1knpmmwn.doc 22/02/10 

MEETING: CABINET  

DATE: 20 OCTOBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: ESTABLISHING THE EVIDENCE BASE FOR 
COMMISSIONING 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  HEALTH AND WELLBEING  

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To present the 2011 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and State of Herefordshire Reports, and 
provide an overview of the work being undertaken across HPS to develop an overall Integrated 
Needs Assessment. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision. 

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: 

  (a) the 2011 JSNA key points and recommendations document be noted; 

  (b) the 2011 State of Herefordshire key findings report be noted; 

  (c) the plans to develop an Integrated Needs Assessment (INA) be noted. 

Key Points Summary 

• The 2011 JSNA has been produced using research and analysis undertaken across HPS 
throughout the year. More detail can be found on the JSNA webpages at 
www.Herefordshire.gov.uk/JSNA, along with the summary document provided as the 2011 
Key Points and Recommendations (see Appendix 1). 

• The State of Herefordshire (SOH) report has been refreshed for 2011, and the summary 
provided as Appendix 2. 

• A more comprehensive examination of the JSNA process and how needs assessments are 
undertaken across HPS is being undertaken to inform the development of a wider INA. As 

AGENDA ITEM 9

97



part of a three year programme to a 'Gold Standard INA' it will result in the 2012 JSNA being 
produced in line with planning and commissioning frameworks, by the end of June 2012. 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options – statutory requirement. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To comply with statutory requirements. 

Introduction and Background 

3. The intention for 2011 has been to refresh the JSNA and SOH reports. The summary findings 
are provided as Appendix 1 and 2. 

4. Underpinning the JSNA Key Points and Recommendations summary document, and the State 
of Herefordshire report summary document, are the relevant websites which are integrated 
with the ‘Facts and Figures’ web-site resource. This provides a central repository of detailed 
analysis and research information that allow colleagues and stakeholders to find additional 
information on a range of areas as required, ranging from information by topic through to 
specific needs assessment that have been undertaken over the last year (e.g. the child poverty 
needs assessment; local economic assessment). This approach is line with good practice 
undertaken by many areas across the country.  

Key Considerations 

5. The recommendations of the 2011 JSNA have been categorised as i) Areas for future work 
and ii) Challenges for commissioners. The dynamic approach to the JSNA means that many of 
these have been fed into the relevant fora in-year. The fact that work is already underway on 
some of these areas is a measure of success.  

6. The development of an INA  is intended to improve how we undertake needs assessments and 
analysis across HPS and with our partners. The key products to be delivered include: 

Ø A standard methodology for undertaking needs assessment that is robust and produces 
high quality analysis and intelligence 

Ø A high quality 'Gold Standard’ INA – through a three year development programme but 
with the first iteration late June 2012 to ensure synergy with the annual commissioning 
cycle 

Ø A corporately agreed and prioritised programme of needs assessments  

7. In moving forward with this work a number of key issues have been identified: 

Ø A need for greater engagement and involvement of stakeholders across the third sector. 
Events and workshops are being held in October to ensure this input occurs. This will 
feed into the development of the JSNA in 2012 and the INA process.  

Ø The JSNA and State of Herefordshire report support one another and are heavily 
interlinked. As we develop a ‘Gold Standard’ JSNA this relationship will become stronger, 
and we anticipate them being incorporated into a single integrated evidence base for 
commissioners available online. This will enable us to encapsulate the broad range of 
inter-linked issues that need to be considered but minimise duplication, enabling us to be 
more efficient in the way we identify, analyse, and present our intelligence. 

98



Ø The importance of the locality approach, with stakeholders knowledge providing 
important local knowledge to supplement routine data collection.  

Community Impact 

8. Good quality needs assessments and analysis are essential to determining both community 
needs and gaps in service provision. This type of analysis is required to enable robust 
commissioning, planning and development of services that meet the needs of communities 
and individuals. 

9. The documents will be available on the JSNA and ‘Facts and Figures’ public facing web-sites. 
Much of the underlying evidence for JSNA and SoH is already available on this website. 

Financial Implications 

10. Good quality needs assessment and analysis will enable robust financial decision making and 
prioritisation processes, aiding how it allocates and makes the best use of resource. 

Legal Implications 

11. The Health and Social Care reform Bill proposes that the delivery of a JSNA should be the 
statutory duty of the Health and Wellbeing Board, with both the Clinical Commissioning Group 
and the Local Authority having responsibility for its delivery 

Risk Management 

12. There is a risk that the JSNA does not become integral to the commissioning cycle and that it's 
importance is not acknowledged. To ensure that the assessment of need and the associated 
process is recognised as a key analytical tool, a programme of engagement and promotion is 
planned. 

Consultees 

13. There is no requirement to consult on the production of this document; however the findings 
are being presented to the Herefordshire Healthcare Commissioning Consortium, NHS 
Herefordshire Board, Herefordshire Partnership Executive Group and Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Herefordshire's 2011 JSNA Key Points and Recommendations.  

Appendix 2 - 2011 State of Herefordshire report. 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

99



100



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Dr Sarah Aitken, Interim Director of Public Health on (01432) 260668 
  

$n3pwxpvr.doc 22/02/10 

MEETING: CABINET  

DATE: 20 OCTOBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 
2011 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  HEALTH AND WELLBEING  

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

1. To inform the Cabinet of key population health issues in Herefordshire and of the 
recommended strategies and actions to address these as set out in the Annual Report of the 
Director of Public Health – 2011. 

2. To seek support from the Cabinet that the recommended approach and actions highlighted in 
the report will inform service development and commissioning aimed at improving health and 
wellbeing of the population of Herefordshire. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision. 

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: 

(a) the Director of Public Health Annual Report 2011 Executive Summary, 
attached as Appendix 1 to the report be received.  The full report can be 
accessed at http://www.herefordshire.nhs.uk/156.aspx; 

(b) the implementation of the report’s recommendations and the proposed 
approach and actions highlighted in the report to inform service 
development and commissioning during the next planning cycle and in 
the medium term be supported; and 

(c) the dissemination of the report and help to cascade the key messages be 
supported. 

AGENDA ITEM 10

101



Key Points Summary 

• This is the third Annual Report of the Director of Public Health since the appointment of a 
Joint Director of Public Health for the county; 

• This year, the key messages are: 

o There is a social gradient in health in Herefordshire and reducing that social gradient is 
important for the sustainability of both the economy and health and social care 
services in the county.;  

o The ladder of intervention framework provides a vehicle for integrating lifestyle and 
enforcement action into a single integrated strategy for improving population health 
and wellbeing. 

o The social gradient in health starts in the womb and accumulates through life. A life 
course approach is necessary to reduce the social gradient in health. 

o A child’s readiness for school at age 5 is strongly predictive of their future health and 
wellbeing, and the development of 5 year olds in Herefordshire is significantly below 
average for England. 

o Circulatory disease is the single largest cause of long term ill-health and disability in 
Herefordshire. The NHS Health Checks programme has the potential to reduce the 
social gradient in circulatory disease in Herefordshire. 

o The cost of falls-related admissions for older people in Herefordshire is substantial and 
could be reduced through strength and balance training, assessment of hazards in the 
home, assessment of vision and medication review. 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no Alternative Options as the Director of Public Health Annual Report is a statutory 
requirement. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The report is required to provide an overview of health and wellbeing in the county and is the 
view of the Director of Public Health. The Cabinet is asked to support the recommended 
approach and actions to improve health and wellbeing in Herefordshire.  

Introduction and Background 

3 There has been significant progress in implementing the recommendations from the previous 
reports and the longer term strategic actions from those reports are now embedded in current 
strategic and operational plans.  

• The report complements the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and recommends areas of 
focus over the next 3 years to reduce the social gradient in health and reduce health 
inequalities; 

• The Executive Summary of the report is attached and will be made widely available. 

• The full report will be available online via the Herefordshire Public Services websites, with a 

102



limited number printed for distribution on request. 

• The 2011 Public  Health Annual Report was launched at the public meeting of the shadow 
Health and Wellbeing Board on 18 October 2011 

Key Considerations 

4 These are as follows:  

• Implications for the health and well-being of HPS staff as members of the local 
population and as key providers of the lifestyle management interventions 
recommended in the report. 

• Implications for changing traditional work practices, adding more people to the lifestyle 
management workforce and for staff training across HPS to accommodate the 
proposals in the report. 

• Supports the NHS Herefordshire QIPP agenda (quality, innovation, productivity and 
prevention). 

• Supports the implementation of the Public Health system reforms proposed in the 
white paper ‘Healthy Lives, Healthy People’. 

Community Impact 

5 The report highlights a range of health inequalities in the county and makes recommendations 
in relation to reducing inequalities. 

Financial Implications 

6  Following consultation with relevant stakeholders and through the annual planning and 
prioritisation processes, if agreed, the cost of implementation of recommended actions would 
be included in annual operating budgets of relevant partner organisations in the county. There 
are potential long term financial and workforce implications around the strategic shift to the 
prevention of ill health. 

Legal Implications 

7  None  

Risk Management 

8 If not addressed, issues raised in the report will have an impact on the achievement of health 
and wellbeing targets to reduce inequalities in health. 

The main risks revolve around the implementation of service transformation and challenge to 
traditional practices. 

Consultees 

9 HPS Leadership Team   (6 September 2011) 

Leader’s Briefing    (15 September 2011) 

103



PCT Public Board    (28 September 2011) 

Health and Wellbeing Public Board (18 October 2011) 

Cabinet     (20 October 2011) 

Appendices 

10 Appendix 1 - Director of Public Health Annual Report 2011 – Executive Summary 

Background Papers 

None. 

104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Heather Foster, Head of Corporate Finance on 01432 260284 

1 

MEETING: CABINET  

DATE: 20 OCTOBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2011/12 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  CORPORATE SERVICES AND EDUCATION 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To report the forecast financial position for both revenue and capital to 31 August 2011 and 
provide an update on Directorates’ recovery plans IN PLACE to address projected 
overspends. 

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: 

 (a) Cabinet note the report and the forecast deficit position of £2.75 
million; and  

(b) Cabinet note the Chief Executive’s requirement that Directors 
deliver recovery plans to ensure a balanced revenue budget. 

Key Points Summary 

• As at 31 August 2011 the overall revenue budget position for 2011/12 shows a 
projected £2.75m overspend. This is approximately 1.9% of the council’s £146.3m 
revenue budget (excluding Dedicated Schools Grant funding). 

Considerations 

1. Appendix A includes the detailed revenue budget monitoring report.  The key area of 
concern continues to be the People’s Services Directorate, with a projected £3.4m 
overspend. The position was a projected £3.0m overspend in July. 

2. The major area of overspend within People’s Services is commissioning of adult 
services, where there is an underlying overspend position and continuing 
demographic pressures. A detailed recovery plan is in place aimed at balancing the 
budget over a 2 year period. 

AGENDA ITEM 11

121



2 

3. The council’s overall financial performance has a direct bearing on the level of 
reserves balance at year end, as any overspend on the revenue account would be 
funded from this source.   

4. The overall revenue position continues to be mitigated by savings on borrowing, 
partly due to slippage in the capital programme and timing of borrowing in the year.  
This is playing a key part supporting the overall position. 

5. Appendix B includes the position on the capital programme for 2011/12, which is a 
forecast out-turn spend of £57.3. 

6. Appendix C sets out the treasury management position, which currently shows a 
projected under-spend of £600k.  

 
Community Impact 

7. Not applicable.  

Financial Implications 

8. These are contained in the report. 

Risk Management 

9. Effective financial reports, used to facilitate robust budget monitoring are an essential 
element in the management of risks and the delivery of the council’s and 
Herefordshire Partnership’s priorities.  

Legal Implications 

10. None. 

Alternative Options 

• There are no Alternative Options. 

Appendices 

Appendix A – Revenue Budget Monitoring  

Appendix B – Capital Monitoring 

Appendix C – Treasury Management  

 

122



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Heather Foster, Head of Corporate Finance on 01432 260284 

$rpbo0zaw.docx          3  

Appendix A 

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 
 

Summary 

1. The following table summarises the 2011/12 projected outturn based on the financial position as 
at 31st August 2011. 

£’000  Budget Projected (over) or 
under  spend 

Director of People’s Services 74,619 (3,389) 

Director for Places and Communities  34,739 25 

Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Corporate Services  

23,079 250 

Directorate Position 132,437 (3,114) 

Capital funding 16,609 500 

Investments (249) 100 

Revenue contribution to capital  95 0 

WMS Profit Share (624) 0 

Centrally Held Budgets  1,355 0 

Government grants (2,810) (70) 

Transfer to/from Reserves (500)  

Total 146,313 (2,584) 

 
2. As of the end of August 2011 the overall revenue budget position for 2011/12 shows a projected 

£2.58m overspend. This is approximately 1.6% of the council’s £146m revenue budget 
(excluding Dedicated Schools Grant funding). In order to address the forecast position the 
delivery of recovery plans is required by the relevant Directorates, and ongoing monitoring by 
HPSLT of those recovery actions.. 

 
3. The most significant overspend relates to commissioning of adult services, which relates to the 

brought forward budget issues plus increasing service pressures.  
 
4. In addition to the revenue overview a capital monitoring summary is provided at Appendix B. 

The forecast outturn spend is £57.3m. The council has been successful in its application for a 
capitalisation direction of up to £1.5m to enable statutory redundancy costs incurred in this 
financial year to be capitalised. 

 
5. Appendix C provides a Treasury Management update and explains an expected underspend of 

£500k on borrowing costs and £100k on interest received. The savings on loan charges are due 
to slippage on the capital programme, lower borrowing rates than forecast and the timing of 

123



 

4 

 

taking out loans. Additional interest earned is due to both higher cash balances and improved 
returns through investing in longer term deposits. 

 
Revenue Reserves Position  
 
6. The general reserve balance as at 31st March 2011 was £6.4m. The council has a policy of 

maintaining a minimum of £4.5m of general reserves as a contingency against unforeseen 
emergencies and events. 

   
7. At 1st April 2011 the council held £17.6m of earmarked reserves, which are detailed in the table 

below 
 
Earmarked Reserves 

 

 31 Mar 2011 

 £000 

Balances held by schools under a scheme of delegation 6,002 

Grange Court 41 

Commuted sums 36 

Industrial Estates - maintenance 400 

Schools Balance of Risk 175 

ICT 595 

Members ICT 40 

Planning 24 

College Hill Community Centre 180 

Waste Disposal 2,907 

Invest to Save 305 

Contingent liabilities 300 

Edgar Street Grid  482 

Whitecross school PFI 331 

LPSA 2 reward grant 210 

Schools Rates Reserve 217 

Economic Development 168 

Insurance reserve 296 

Pool car reserve 10 

Unused Grants cfwd 4,853 

 17,572 
 
 

124



 

5 

 

DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE’S SERVICES 
 
 

£’000 Annual Budget  Under / (Over) 
spend  

Services Commissioning  – Adults 48,549 (2,964) 

- Childrens*   

Public Health 2,116 0 

Children’s and Young People Provider Services* 23,954 (425) 

Total 74,619 (3,389) 

 

8. * The allocation of the Children and Young People’s Directorate budget between Provider 
Services and Commissioning has not yet been finalised, therefore the full budget is shown 
against provider services. This will be updated when budgets are confirmed. 

 Services Commissioning - Adults 

9. The current report for adult services indicates an outturn position of £51,513k against a budget 
of £48,549k resulting in a projected £2,964k overspend. This projection also assumes the 
delivery in full of a £3,565k savings target and £1,043k transfer of NHS funding. 

10. The budgeted £3,565k savings target contributes towards the recovery of the brought forward 
deficit and achievement of a balanced budget by 31st March 2013. This leaves a further target 
saving of £3,614k to be achieved in 2012/13. 

11. As at 31st August £721k has been achieved towards the target of £3,565k.  This current position 
shows that £2,745k will be achieved across 16 schemes with a potential shortfall in year of 
£820k. Further work is being undertaken to identify savings to compensate for the shortfall and 
a report is to be taken to HPSLT by October.  

12. The key pressures lie within Physical Disabilities (£1,372k), Mental Health (£881k) and Learning 
Disabilities (£1,114k). In the case of the first two pressures these are a direct result of 
demographic changes with an ageing population living longer, often in poor health.  

13. Pressures within the Learning Disabilities budget are partly demographic as people with these 
disabilities live longer due to improved health care, partly due to increasing numbers coming 
through from Children’s services (also due to more children with complex needs surviving to 
adulthood and increasing numbers of Children with Special Educational Needs) and pressures 
on an aging carer population which itself requires additional support.  

14. The outturn position has increased by £393k as a result of:  

a. Increases in residential (£87k) and personal budgets (£127k) over the expected 
demographic levels which in some cases have been backdated.  

b. Contract inflation of £55k (agreed at 2.5% previously committed at 1%), contract let with no 
base budget of £50k (this was previously paid for out of transformation grant),  

c. An increase in carers breaks; £33k and staff costs. 

d. This is partially compensated by a reduction in domiciliary care. 

  

125



 

6 

 

Integrated Commissioning Recovery Plan 

15. The schemes within the recovery plan are underway although some will only be realised as a 
part year effect due to the ability to: review cases, implement more effective processes and 
procedures for care planning and further the work in effective contract monitoring.  

16. The proposed changes to charging rates are due to go out to consultation, with potential 
implementation in December 2011. In addition work is underway to improve financial 
assessments and collection which will start to make savings over the coming months. 

17. The recovery measures are monitored on a monthly basis by the Cost Improvement Programme 
(CIP) Board and also through the Benefits Board. The CIP has three main themes; Managing 
Demand, Diverting Demand and Reducing Demand.  

18. The recovery plan is regularly reviewed in order to bring forward new schemes upon 
presentation of sound business cases in order to achieve the target of budget balance by April 
2013. 

Public Health 

19. Overall this service expects to meet budget for 2011/12, achieving the planned savings of £297k 
for the year.  

20. At this point savings above the planned level cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty, 
some savings may emerge in landfill maintenance budgets but requirements vary according to 
weather conditions and cannot be anticipated in advance of the winter.  

21. Charges for services which are not dictated by nationally set rates are being reviewed in line 
with the income strategy and will be increased wherever appropriate, subject to market 
conditions and parity with neighbouring authorities. Increases will be introduced as early as 
possible subject to Cabinet member and other relevant bodies approval. 

Children’s Services 

22. Children’s Services is currently predicting an over spend of £425k. This relates principally to 
Safeguarding services where costs are currently predicted to be £774k over the agreed budget. 
The two key reasons for the high level of over spend relate to the costs of caring for Looked 
after Children (LAC) and also the requirement to use agency social workers to cover vacancies 
and long term absences. 

23. Looked after Children costs for agency and residential placements are predicted to be £307k 
over budget due to the continuing high numbers. The service has had some success in 
returning children home or placing with Herefordshire’s own foster carers (a lower cost option) 
which has resulted in an additional 4 placements over the budget at an additional cost of £97k. 
Conversely there have been a number of emergency agency foster placements which have 
resulted in no overall reduction in numbers. At the end of August there were 60 looked after 
children in agency placements (13 in residential and 47 in agency foster care placements). At 
the end of August 2010 the comparable figures were 16 and 37, a total of 53 placements. 

24. The continued high level of cases has meant that social work vacancies cannot be left unfilled in 
the key teams for looked after children, children in  need (field work teams) and the referral and 
assessment service. Two additional short term agency social workers have been agreed to 
ensure all Child protection cases are covered. Overall the anticipated overspend is £306k on 
staffing for these teams. 

25. The other key overspend within Safeguarding relates to a planned reduction of £60k in court 
costs, however numbers of children requiring court intervention have not reduced and therefore 
these planned savings will not be delivered in 11/12. 

126



 

7 

 

26. There are other significant savings targets to be delivered as part of the Children’s Services 
and, although there are some areas of risk, there are opportunities to use grant funding to 
mitigate these pressures. This has been factored in to the overall forecast outturn.  

27. There are a number of activities currently underway in order to deliver the budget savings. An 
update on the current status is provided below. 

Current Actions to Manage Budget Pressures 

28. The planned Children’s Services restructure is now almost complete and savings are on track to 
meet the budgeted savings.  

29. Additional resources recruited to increase the numbers of in house foster carers are now in 
place. Activities will be closely monitored to ensure the target increase of eight additional carers 
is achieved. 

30. The Children’s Services commissioning team is almost ready to sign a framework agreement 
with Worcestershire for agency foster care placements and initial discussions have been started 
to consider the development of a similar framework arrangement with residential placement 
providers. 

31. The directorate has been successful in using legacy grants to offset staffing costs within Early 
Years, Youth services and parenting and family support. This has delivered the £349k which 
has reduced the overall over spend down form the £774k in Safeguarding to the overall total of 
£425k. 

Provider and Commissioned Services 

32. This report has been prepared for Children’s Services based upon the old Children and Young 
People’s Directorate (CYPD) budget as work has not yet been completed on finalising the split 
into provider and commissioned services. Future reports will be produced on the new structure 
once arrangements have been finalised following completion of the OD3 consultation process. 

Potential Change to Academies Funding 

33. As previously reported, the Secretary of State for Education has announced a review of the 
methodology for cutting Local Authority funds to provide the funds for Academies.  The review is 
not yet complete and therefore it is not possible to second guess the outcomes. For 
Herefordshire either a scenario based on numbers of currently open Academies, or one based 
on number of current Academy applications would have a significantly adverse impact on the LA 
funding for Herefordshire.  The impact could be up to between £0.5- £2.0m for 2012/13. This 
figure cannot be confirmed until the outcome of the review is complete and new methodology is 
confirmed. 

127



 

8 

 

DIRECTOR FOR PLACES AND COMMUNITIES  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Overview 

34. The Directorate is expected to underspend by £25k.There are pressures on income budgets 
within parking and planning but these will be managed within the Directorate along with the 
£2.2m savings target for the year. 

Economic, Environment & Cultural Services 

35. Building control income to the end of August 2011  is 20% lower than the same period in the 
previous financial year however Development Control  income is 32% higher than the previous 
year. Based on income patterns over the last two years, it is projected that there will be a net 
income shortfall in 2011/12 Planning income  of £100k.This fall in income is due to the 
economic climate and the impact of the change in the timing of fee collection implemented in 
2010/11,  Fee income will continue to be closely monitored. 

36. The transfer of Libraries frontline staff to Customer Services from the end of June 2011 has 
been agreed along with a base budget transfer with a savings target of £98k.  The delay in 
carrying out the review of the Mobile Library service leaves Libraries with a savings shortfall of 
£30k.  

37. Income at the Hereford Butter Market continues to be under pressure.  It is likely that the £70k 
shortfall can be met from increased income from Street Trading and Open Markets. 

Homes & Communities 

38. Car parking charges will be increased from 1st November. Based on the annual income 
projections expected from these increases, income is unlikely to achieve the 11/12 budget by 
£210k. This shortfall reflects the slippage in the introduction of prices increases from the original 
implementation date of 1st September 2011. This pressure can be partly mitigated by other 
parking income which is currently above budget by £32k and is expected to exceed income 
budgets by £60k for the year.  

39. There is an underspend in Housing of £20k in relation to staff costs due to vacancies. 

Place Based Commissioning 

40. The cost to Herefordshire of the joint Waste Disposal contract for 2011/12 is expected to be 
£8.9m if tonnage levels remain the same as in 2010/11. Whilst the annual budget is £8.7m, 
there is additional funding available of up to £790k set aside as part of the 2011/12 budget to 
meet this pressure if necessary. 

£’000  Annual 
Budget 

 

 Under / (Over) 
 Spend 

Economic, Environment and Cultural 
Services 

6,932 (130) 

Homes and Community Services 
 

1,220 (130) 

Place Based Commissioning 26,103 15 

Director and Management  484 270 

Total 34,739    25 

128



 

9 

 

41. The decision by Worcester County Council to grant planning permission for the new Energy 
from Waste plant at Hartlebury has been called in for review by the Communities Secretary of 
State.  This will have an impact on the current year costs. 

42. There is currently a review of the provision of public transport in light of the reduction in 
government funding. The results of this will be known shortly with the intention that contracts 
with providers can be renegotiated from 1st October 2011 to reduce contracts costs by £135k in 
2011/12. Further other one off savings of £129k will help mitigate the overall 2011/12 pressure 
of £264k  

43. There continues to be pressure on the Street Lighting budgets in relation to energy costs of 
£61k however this is expected to be managed by a plan to replace 2,000 street lights in 
residential areas of Herefordshire with alternative lights sources (Light Emitting Diode – LED) 
along with the replacement of 959 halogen traffic signals with LEDs. This forms part of the 
Carbon Management Action Plan.  The funding of this plan is currently being reviewed. 

44. There is an underspend of £15k in relation to staff costs in the directorate management support 
team. 

Director and Management 

45. There is currently £270k underspend in relation to the Directorate’s annual non pay inflation and 
OD2 savings which is currently available to help mitigate the pressures in Parking and Planning.  

129



 

10 

 

DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES  
 

 
 

  

Overview 
 
46. The Corporate directorate has combined Deputy Chief Executive, Central Services and 

Resources areas. The savings target for the combined Directorate in 2011/12 is £1.5m. All 
savings plans are on track. 

 
47. The Budget includes the elements contracted to The Shared Services Partnership and the 

provider of Internal Audit.  
 

Customer Services and Communications 

48. The Customer Organisation project will introduce a new system and look at our business 
processes for delivering front line services; this project will deliver savings targets in 2011/12.  

People, Policy and Partnership 

49. Corporate Transformation and the ICT Strategy have been brought together in this service.  

50. Herefordshire Partnership, Human Resources and Policy Team are projected to spend within 
budget, achieving there efficiency savings targets.   

Law, Governance and Resilience 

51. Local Land Charges income continues to put pressure on the budget. However, there is a one 
off grant this year which will reduce the issue to £30k overspend. To reduce this overspend a 
review of how the current service is provided will be completed. 

52. Locums in Legal Services remain until the service is restructured.  This may cause a 
£80k budget pressure full year. However vacancy savings in other areas of Governance will 
cover this overspend until the restructure is implemented.  

Chief Finance Officer and Commercial 

53. Property outturn expenditure will match the total budget.  This assumes that there is no reactive 
maintenance expenditure later in the year.  The loss of income from the Cattle Market will be 
more than compensated for by revenue from the new Livestock Market by the year end. 

£’000  Annual 
Budget 

 

 Under / (Over) 
 Spend 

Customer Services and Communications 
 

2,896 0 

People, Policy and Partnership 
 

7,859 0 

Law, Governance and Resilience 
 

3,036 0 

Chief Finance Officer and Commercial 
 

8,670 
 

250 

Directors 
 

   618  0 

Total 23,079   250 

130



 

11 

 

54. The current system of Housing Benefit provides a financial incentive for authorities to recover 
overpayments of benefits from recipients. The Department for Works and Pensions pays 
Housing Benefit Subsidy to authorities based on benefits disbursed inclusive of overpayments 
(subject to conditions). Authorities effective in recovering overpayments may therefore receive a 
higher level of subsidy. It is estimated that the subsidy received will result in an underspend of 
£350,000. Reductions in the level of benefits payable and changes to the subsidy system are 
likely to mean that this level of surplus will not continue in future years. 

  
55. The authority also receives subsidy to cover the costs of administering benefits. The amount 

receivable this year is estimated to be approximately £100,000 less than the amount 
budgeted. Further reductions are expected in future years.  

 

 

 

 

131



132



 

12 

 

Appendix B 

Capital Forecast  

1. The capital forecast for 2011/12 totals £57.3m.  A summary by directorate and funding source is 
provided in Table A below.   

Table A – Funding of 2011/12 Capital Forecast 

Directorate 2011/12 
Forecast 
£’000 

Prudential 
Borrowing 
£’000 

Grant  

£’000 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserves 
£’000 

People’s Services  21,752 1,014 20,524 214 

Places & Communities 27,614 3,516 20,655 3,443 

Corporate Services  7,600 6,706 612 282 

Contingency 383 383 - - 

Total  57,349 11,619 41,791 3,939 

2. The changes from the previous forecast are due to the following;- 

• The Hereford leisure pool budget has been increased to represent S106 receipts received 
and the allocation of prudential borrowing (to be repaid by HALO’s increased future income 
stream) to enable the completion of the capital works. 

• The successful receipt of a capitalisation direction (£1.5m) from the Department for 
Communities and Local Government to enable the Council to capitalise statutory redundancy 
costs incurred in this financial year. This is the maximum sum available to be utilised and 
results in the Council being able to spread the cost incurred over a number of financial 
years.     

3. Table B - Schemes with a forecast exceeding £500k in 2011/12 

 Scheme Spend to 
end August 

£’000 

2011/12 
Forecast 
£’000 

Comments 

People’s Services    

Hereford Wyebridge Academy 2,051 5,852 Scheme within budget and on schedule, new 
building works complete 

Schools Devolved Capital 
Programme  

761 3,755 Devolved allocation and carry forward of capital 
funding to schools 

Condition property works 366 2,696 Annual programme of works at various sites 
committed on a highest need first basis 

SEN Targeted Capital Fund 1,071 2,417 Block funding allocation towards SEN provision at 
Hampton Dene, Barrs Court and Blackmartons 

Basic Need - Schools - 2,154 This funding is being allocated to schools through a 
bidding process, approved schemes will be notified 
in September 

Primary Grant 133 1,731 To provide an all through primary school provision 
in Leominster 

133



 

13 

 

Places & Communities    

Local Transport Plan 3,296 10,348 Annual programme of works to highways, footways 
and bridges 

Ledbury Library 26 2,487 This is the original funding allocation, scheme being 
progressed on a piecemeal basis 

Grange Court 475 2,213 Refurbishment works underway 

Disabled Facilities Grant 265 1,727 There is a large demand for these grants, 
applications are progressed through an approval 
process 

Rural Enterprise Grant 694 1,667 Various grant funded schemes 

Credenhill Flood Alleviation 
Scheme 

1,502 1,617 Grant funded flood alleviation works in association 
with Hereford Futures 

Livestock Market 1,784 1,352 New market provision open 

Broadband Pilot  - 1,000 Herefordshire’s Pilot scheme awarded by central 
government 

Affordable Housing Grants 380 766 Various grants awarded to approved schemes  

Rotherwas Futures 240 528 Work progressing on the northern access road 

Connect 2 135 509 Non-motorised connection between the city centre 
and Rotherwas, preferred route in planning 

Putson Community Building 21 500 S106 funded new build 

Corporate Services    

Hereford Leisure Pool 1,834 3,396 Improvement works to complete in November 

Corporate accommodation 593 1,100 Budget allocated to deliver a new headquarters, 
building work expected to start in 2012/13 

Herefordshire’s ICT efficiencies 490 638 Improved ICT provision to generate efficiencies 

Sub Total  16,117 48,453  

Schemes with a budget <£500k 
in 2011/12 

2,436 8,896  

Total 18,553 57,349  
 

Prudential Borrowing   

4. A summary of the forecast Prudential Borrowing (PB) position is set out below.  

 £’000 £’000 
2011/12 Original Prudential Borrowing Forecast  10,920 
Add:  Halo loan 1,700  
          Capitalisation direction 1,543  
  3,243 
Less: Slippage into future years  (2,544) 
Expected use of Prudential Borrowing in 
2011/12 

    11,619 

 
5. The slippage of funds into future years relates to schemes slipping into 2011/12 and then into 

2012/13, the main scheme slippage relates to the corporate accommodation capital scheme. 
 

134



 

14 

 

Capital Receipts Reserve 
 
6. The opening capital receipts reserve balance was £6.8m as at 1st April 2011. During 2011/12 

£3.9m is expected to fund the capital forecast and receipts are expected from the sale of Hillrise 
and the former Whitecross school site. The remaining capital receipts reserve balance is 
earmarked to fund corporate accommodation, any remaining compensation claims relating to 
the Rotherwas development and an element of infrastructure works required as part of Hereford 
Futures.    

135



136



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Five months to 31 August 2011 
 

15 
 

 
This report demonstrates the council is embracing best practice in accordance with CIPFA’s 
recommendations, by keeping members informed of Treasury Management activity.   
 
1. The Economy 
 
1.1. Recent economic events and statistics show the following: 
 

• Financial conditions deteriorating in most major economies. 
• Inflation remaining high (4.4% in July) and expected to increase further in the short 

term due to increases in gas and electricity prices. 
• Unemployement increasing in the quarter to June 2011 from 7.7% to 7.9%. 
• The Bank Base Rate now expected to remain at 0.50% until late 2012 or early 2013. 

 
 
2. The Council’s Investments 
 
2.1 As at 31st August 2011 the council held the following investments: 
 

Investment Term Maturity 
Date 

Interest 
Rate 

Amount invested 
£m £m 

Instant access bank accounts:     
 National Westminster N/A N/A 1.10% 2.50    
 Royal Bank of Scotland N/A N/A 1.10% 5.00 7.50 
       
       
Instant access Money Market Funds:     
 Prime Rate N/A N/A 0.73% 4.95  
 Ignis N/A N/A 0.74% 2.01 6.96 
       
Rolling monthly programme of £1 million one year term deposits:   
 Barclays 364 days 16/09/11 1.46% 1.00   
 Nationwide 334 days 25/10/11 1.25% 1.00  
 Nationwide 364 days 24/11/11 1.33% 1.00   
 Bank of Scotland 335 days 28/12/11 1.82% 1.00  
 Bank of Scotland 364 days 26/01/12 1.95% 1.00  
 Bank of Scotland 364 days 13/02/12 2.05% 1.00  
 Newcastle City Council 364 days 15/03/12 1.55% 1.00  
 Bank of Scotland 364 days 05/04/12 2.05% 1.00  
 Bank of Scotland 364 days 02/05/12 2.05% 1.00  
 Barclays 364 days 14/06/12 1.52% 1.00  
 Lloyds TSB 364 days 25/07/12 2.05% 1.00 11.00 
       
Rolling monthly programme of £1 million six month term deposits: 
 Lloyds TSB 182 days 17/02/12 1.42% 1.00 1.00 
 
 
 

      

       
Other fixed term deposits:      
 Santander 122 days 25/11/11 1.21% 2.00  
 Nationwide 215 days 05/12/11 1.09% 1.00  
 Santander 148 days 21/12/11 1.28% 2.00  
 Nationwide 245 days 01/01/12 1.14% 1.00  

137



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Five months to 31 August 2011 
 

16 
 

 Santander 184 days 26/01/12 1.41% 1.00  
 Barclays 275 days 27/01/12 1.32% 1.00  
 Nationwide 278 days 06/02/12 1.19% 1.00  
 Newcastle City Council 339 days 27/02/12 1.48% 2.00  
 Barclays 306 days 27/02/12 1.41% 1.00  
 Barclays 328 days 20/03/12 1.47% 1.00  
 Lloyds TSB 449 days 27/07/12 2.65% 0.50  13.50 
       

Total      39.96 

      

The term deposits shaded grey are those placed in the last three months  

 
 
2.2 Recent weeks have seen a deterioration in financial markets in the “Eurozone” where the lack 

of any real progress in resolving sovereign debt problems is having a wider effect.  The Council 
has responded to advice from its treasury management advisors (Arlingclose) that the 
maximum maturity limit for UK and foreign banks and the Nationwide building society be 
reduced from one year to six months.  The exceptions are Santander and Clydesdale where 
the limits have similarly been halved to become three months and one week respectively. 

 
2.3 Arlingclose have stated that they do not believe that there are solvency issues with any of the 

institutions on their recommended lending list but believe the reduced maximum maturity limits 
is an appropriate and prudent response to recent events. 

 
2.4 For the foreseeable future the council intends to continue restricting its investments to the 

largest of the UK financial institutions. 
 
2.5 The forecast of the first change in the Bank Base Rate has once again been put back and is 

not now expected to take place until the end of 2012.  Arlingclose has provided the following 
forecast (forecast provided in August 2011): 

 

Bank Rate Sep-11 Dec-11 Mar-12 Jun-12 Sep-12 Dec-12 Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 

Upside risk    +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 

Central case     0.50      050      0.50      0.50     0.50      0.75      0.75      1.00      1.25      1.50  

Downside risk      -0.25 -0.25 -0.50 -0.50 -0.50 

 
  
2.6 The council has earned interest on its investments as follows: 
 

Month Average 
Invested £m 

Average rate of 
interest earned 

Amount of 
interest 
earned 

April 2011 40.6 1.08% £36,046 
May 2011 47.4 1.15% £46,099 
June 2011 47.0 1.17% £45,261 
July 2011 48.2 1.17% £47,788 
August 2011 48.0 1.23% £49,707 
Total   £224,901 

138



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Five months to 31 August 2011 
 

17 
 

 
 

2.7 Interest earned in the first five months has exceeded budget due to both higher investment 
balances and higher average interest rates, due principally to the effect on income of 
maintaining the rolling programme of one year deposits. Reducing the maximum maturity limit 
for investments will have an impact on the amount of interest received but it is anticipated that 
interest earned in 2011/12 should still exceed the £249k budget by at least £100,000. 

  
3. The Council’s Borrowing 
 
3.1 On 12th July 2011 the council borrowed a further £7.50 million from the Public Works Loan 

Board.  The new loan is for a period of 15 years at an interest rate of 3.59%, with £250,000 
being repaid to the PWLB every six months. 

 
3.2 On 12th July the June CPI inflation figure was released showing that the June figure had fallen 

to 4.2% from 4.5% a month earlier.  At this point PWLB rates fell by 0.14%.  Arlingclose 
advised that the rates would quickly go up and so we took the opportunity to take out some 
further borrowing at a rate which, at the time, was the lowest in 2011. 

 
3.3 In recent weeks the unresolved debt problems in Europe have caused rates to remain low.  A 

further loan will therefore be taken out before rates resume an upward trend.  The council will 
delay as long as possible because of the cost of carry in the short-term, but rates will be 
monitored to ensure that the opportunity is not missed.   The council can demonstrate a use for 
this funding. 

 
3.4 As previously reported, the long-term borrowing budget was set in January 2011 at a time 

when PWLB rates were steadily increasing and there was concern over the interest rates that 
would need to be paid on future borrowing.  Arlingclose’s forecast was for the 20 year PWLB 
rate to reach 6% in the third quarter of 2011.  In order to set a prudent budget, and give the 
council flexibility with regard to maturity periods, the budget was set using an interest rate of 
5.75%.  The borrowing budget can be analysed as follows:  

   
 Budget Forecast Surplus 

 £m £m £m 

Minimum Revenue Provision 9.87 9.69 0.18 

Interest on existing loans (January 2011 position) 5.43 5.43 - 
Borrowing of £5m to be taken out before the end of 2010/11 
(Budget 4.00%; Actual 3.71%) 0.20 0.18 0.02 

Borrowing requirement for 2011/12 
(Actual loan of £7.5m now taken out at lower rates than 
budgeted) 

0.40 0.19 0.21 

Borrowing of £10m to externalise internal borrowing used to 
support the capital programme in 2008/09 and 2009/10 0.58 0.32 0.26 

Provision for refinancing of LOBO loans at a higher rate 0.12 0.04 0.08 

Total 16.60 15.85 0.75 
 

139



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Five months to 31 August 2011 
 

18 
 

3.5 When interest rates were increasing rapidly it was a possibility that the council would borrow 
sooner rather than later.  However the slowdown in the upward trend, then subsequent 
reversal, has delayed borrowing in 2011/12.   

 

140



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

John Jones, Head of Governance (01432) 260222 
  

$sjn3lxu5.doc 

 

MEETING: CABINET  

DATE: 20 OCTOBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REVIEW OF PARLIAMENTRY CONSTITUENCIES  

REPORT BY  CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To explain to the Cabinet the Boundary Commission for England’s’ proposals for new Parliamentary 
constituencies in Herefordshire and to ask if it wishes to make representations to Council on the 
Boundary Commission’s  proposals as they affect the Herefordshire Parliamentary constituencies.  

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Reason for Urgency  

The last date for the submission of representations on these proposals is 5 December and the only 
meeting of Council before then is on 18 November.  

Recommendation 

 THAT: 

  The Cabinet formulates a view on the proposed new constituencies for 
Herefordshire and makes a recommendation to Council on 18 November 2011.    

Key Points Summary 

• The first stage of the review process for the new Parliamentary constituency boundaries in 
England has been completed and the initial proposals have been published.   

• Consultation on the initial proposals will close on 5 December 2011. 

• The West Midlands region has been allocated 54 constituencies, which is a reduction of five 
from the current arrangements. 

AGENDA ITEM 12

141



 

2 

 

• The Commission’s proposals include a constituency that would contain electorate from 
Herefordshire only, a constituency with electorate from both Herefordshire and Shropshire to 
include the towns of Leominster and Ludlow, and another constituency, which would include 
electorate from both Herefordshire and Worcestershire to include the towns of Ledbury and 
Great Malvern. 

Alternative Options 

1 That no response be made to the Boundary Commission for England for new Parliamentary 
constituencies.  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 It is for Members of the Cabinet to formulate a view on the proposals. 

Introduction and Background 

3 The Boundary Commission for England are undertaking a periodic review of all the 
Parliamentary constituencies in England.  It is currently conducting a review on the basis of 
new rules laid down by Parliament.  These rules involve a significant reduction in the number 
of constituencies in England from 533 to 502 and require that every constituency apart from 
two specific exceptions (relating to the Isle of White) must have an electorate that is no 
smaller than 72,810 and no larger the 80,473.  

Key Considerations 

Initial proposals  

4 The Boundary Commission for England has now completed the first stage of the review 
process and has published its initial proposals for the new Parliamentary constituency 
boundaries in England. 

5 The West Midlands region has now been allocated 54 constituencies which is a reduction of 
five from the current arrangements.  The current proposals leave 10 of the existing 59 
constituencies unchanged.  

6 As it has not always been possible to allocate whole numbers of constituencies to individual 
counties, the Boundary Commission has grouped some Local Authority areas into sub-
regions.  The number of constituencies allocated to each sub-region is determined by the 
electorate of the combined Local Authorities.  

 

Sub-Region Existing Allocation Proposed Allocation 

142



 

3 

 

Herefordshire, 

Shropshire, 

Telford and Wrekin and 

Worcestershire 

13 12 

Staffordshire and  

Stoke on Trent 

12 11 

Warwickshire and 

West Midlands 

34 31 

 

7 The Commission’s proposals include a Hereford constituency (76,780 electorate), a 
constituency which contains electorate from both Herefordshire and Shropshire which 
includes the towns of Leominster and Ludlow (77,911 electorate) and another constituency 
which includes electors from both Herefordshire and Worcestershire combing the towns of 
Ledbury and Great Malvern (79,100 electorate), 

8 Details of the Herefordshire wards in the new constituencies including the electorate are 
attached as an Appendix to this report.  

9 In deciding boundaries of Parliamentary constituencies the Commissioner takes into account: 

(a) Special geographical considerations, including the size, shape and 
accessibility of a constituency; 

(b) Local Government boundaries as they existed on 6 May 2010; 

(c) Boundaries of existing constituencies; and 

(d) Any local ties that would be broken by the changes in constituencies 

10 None of the above factors will override the necessity to achieve an electorate in each 
constituency that is within the range allowed. 

11 The Boundary Commission for England is currently consulting on the proposals until 5 
December 2011.  It will then publish the representations made on the proposals, following 
which there will be a further four week period when additional written representations on the 
submissions can be made. 

12 If the Commission decide to change its proposals as a result of the representations received, 
it will publish revised proposals and consult on them for a further period of eight weeks.  

13 When the Commission has decided on its final recommendations for the whole of England, it 
will submit its proposals to the Government. 

14 With regard to the naming of any new Constituency the Commissions policy is that when 
Constituencies remain largely unchanged, the existing constituency name would usually 

143



 

4 

 

remain unchanged.  Generally, the name would reflect the main population centres contained 
in the constituency, though if a suitable alternative name is proposed which generally 
commands greater support locally, then the Commission will usually be prepared to 
recommend the alternative. 

15 On receipt of the Commissioners final report the Government will then lay a draft order in 
Council which will be debated in Parliament.  It is proposed that the new constituencies take 
effect at the Next General Election (2015).  Any by-elections held in the meantime will be held 
on the basis of the existing constituencies.   

 Community Impact 

16 Local ties could be broken by the proposed changes in the constituencies and there could well 
be accessibility issues for constituents and the Member of Parliament.  

Financial Implications 

17 There would be costs to the Council in preparing electoral data for the new Constituencies.  
These have not as yet been assessed. 

Legal Implications 

18 None 

Risk Management 

19 There are minor risks around the preparation of electoral data in the lead up to the next 
Parliamentary elections to ensure that no elector is disenfranchised. .   

Consultees 

20 All Members of the Council have been advised of the Boundary Commission for England’s 
proposals and there has been a national publicity exercise.  

Appendices 

21 Appendix 1- Proposed constituencies including wards and electorates for the Herefordshire 
constituencies  

Background Papers 

• None  

144



Appendix 1 

 

5 

 

Constituency Ward District/borough/city/county Electorate  
Hereford CC  76,780 

Aylestone Herefordshire  4,987 
Backbury Herefordshire  2,474 
Belmont Herefordshire  6,364 
Burghill, Holmer & Lyde  Herefordshire  2,618 
Central Herefordshire  2,001 
Credenhill Herefordshire  2,581 
Hollington Herefordshire  1,566 
Kerne Bridge Herefordshire  2,548 
Llangarron Herefordshire  2,619 
Old Gore Herefordshire  2,518 
Penyard Herefordshire  2,680 
Pontrilas Herefordshire  2,809 
Ross – on – Wye East Herefordshire  3,823 
Ross – on – Wye West Herefordshire  4,246 
St Martins and Hinton Herefordshire  8,313 
St Nicholas Herefordshire  4,860 
Stoney Street Herefordshire  2,419 
Three Elms Herefordshire  7,643 
Tupsley Herefordshire  7,089 
Vallets Herefordshire  2,622 

Ludlow and Leominster 
CC 

 77,911 
Bircher  Herefordshire  2,340  
Castle  Herefordshire  2,528  
Golden Cross with Weobley  Herefordshire  2,342  
Golden Valley North  Herefordshire  2,379  
Golden Valley South  Herefordshire  2,384  
Kington Town  Herefordshire  2,451  
Leominster North  Herefordshire  4,156  
Leominster South  Herefordshire  4,433  
Mortimer  Herefordshire  2,578  
Pembridge and Lyonshall with 
Titley  Herefordshire  2,387  

Upton  Herefordshire  2,330  
Wormsley Ridge  Herefordshire  2,047  
Alveley and Claverley  Shropshire  3,299  
Bishop’s Castle  Shropshire  2,837  
Brown Clee  Shropshire  3,033  
Chirbury and Worthen  Shropshire  2,397  
Church Stretton and Craven Arms  Shropshire  6,933  
Clee  Shropshire  3,566  
Cleobury Mortimer  Shropshire  5,509  
Clun  Shropshire  3,093  
Corvedale  Shropshire  3,050  
Highley  Shropshire  2,720  
Ludlow East  Shropshire  3,038  
Ludlow North  Shropshire  3,030  
Ludlow South  Shropshire  3,051  

Malvern and Ledbury CC    79,100  
Bringsty  Herefordshire  2,290  
Bromyard  Herefordshire  4,547  

145



Appendix 1 

 

6 

 

 

Frome  Herefordshire  2,751  
Hagley  Herefordshire  2,909  
Hampton Court  Herefordshire  2,157  
Hope End  Herefordshire  4,492  
Ledbury  Herefordshire  7,342  
Sutton Walls  Herefordshire  2,440  
Alfrick and Leigh  Malvern Hills  2,927  
Baldwin  Malvern Hills  1,691  
Broadheath  Malvern Hills  2,825  
Chase  Malvern Hills  4,876  
Dyson Perrins  Malvern Hills  2,906  
Hallow  Malvern Hills  1,534  
Lindridge  Malvern Hills  1,823  
Link  Malvern Hills  4,958  
Martley  Malvern Hills  1,419  
Pickersleigh  Malvern Hills  4,481  
Priory  Malvern Hills  2,965  
Teme Valley  Malvern Hills  1,559  
Tenbury  Malvern Hills  3,022  
West  Malvern Hills  3,240  
Woodbury  Malvern Hills  1,660  
Hartlebury  Wychavon  2,139  
Lovett and North Claines  Wychavon  4,287  
Ombersley  Wychavon  1,860  

146


	Agenda
	
	3 MINUTES
	4 YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN
	Youth Justice Plan 2011 - Appendix 1
	Youth Justice Plan 2011 - Appendix 2

	5 NEW CHARTER 2011
	New Charter DRAFT Version Cabinet October 20th

	6 HEREFORDSHIRE PUBLIC SERVICES PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE
	HPS Future Partnership Appendix A

	7 INTEGRATED CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT
	Appendix 1 Key
	Appendix 2a - Exceptions (Green)
	Appendix 2b - Exceptions (Red and Amber)
	Appendix 3 - Proposal for Theme 2 refresh
	Appendix 3a - Original Theme 2
	Appendix 3b - Revised Theme 2

	8 LOCALITY ASSET REVIEW AND ACCOMMODATION PROGRAMME
	9 ESTABLISHING THE EVIDENCE BASE FOR COMMISSIONING
	10 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 2011
	App 1 to Cabinet DPH AR 11 Executive Summary

	11 BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2011/12
	Appendix A End of August 2011
	Appendix B
	Appendix C TM Report 5m to 31 Aug 11

	12 REVIEW OF PARLIAMENTARY CONSTITUENCIES
	Appendix 1


